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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes ¨ No x

The aggregate market value of the Registrant�s outstanding common stock held by non-affiliates was $24,145,000 based on the reported
last sale price on September 30, 2003, which was the last business day of the Registrant�s most recently completed second quarter. Shares of
the Registrant�s common stock held by each executive officer and director and by each entity that owns 5% or more of the Registrant�s
outstanding common stock have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This determination of affiliate status is not
necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

As of June 14, 2004, there were 28,921,000 shares of the Registrant�s common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement to be delivered to stockholders in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held August 31, 2004 are incorporated by reference into Part II, Item 5 and Part III of this Report.
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PART I

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of the Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements other than statements of historical fact
are forward-looking statements for purposes of federal and state securities laws, including projections of earnings, revenue or other financial
items; statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations; statements concerning proposed new services or
developments; statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; statements of belief; and statements of assumptions.
Forward-looking statements may include the words �may,� �could,� �will,� �estimate,� �intend,� �continue,� �believe,� �expect� or
�anticipate� or other similar words. These forward-looking statements present our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this
Report on Form 10-K. Except for our ongoing reporting obligations, we do not intend, and undertake no obligation, to update any forward-
looking statement. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any of our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual results
could differ materially from those projected or assumed in any of our forward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and results
of operations, as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to change and to inherent risks and uncertainties. The factors impacting
these risks and uncertainties are discussed in the section entitled �Risk Factors� and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

eUniverse, Inc. and its subsidiaries are referred to herein as �the Company�, �we� or �our�.

Item 1. Business

Overview

We are an Internet marketing company that offers external marketers a compelling group of entertainment and community-oriented
Internet properties through which to reach consumers and that markets and distributes a select group of products and services.

We group the Company�s businesses into two business segments, the product marketing segment and the network segment. In fiscal
year 2004, our revenues were predominately generated from a combination of credit card sales of the Company�s products by our product
marketing segment and invoiced sales of paid advertising by our network website businesses. In fiscal years 2003 and 2002, we combined our
products, services and gaming businesses into one segment called the products and services business segment. Due to a change in internal
reporting, we now report our gaming and non-product businesses in the network segment. The network segment was previously referred to as
the media and advertising business segment and this segment now includes our gaming and non-product businesses. The fiscal year 2003 and
2002 segment disclosures have been reclassified to be consistent with the fiscal year 2004 presentation.

A summary of revenues, gross profit and assets by business segment is located in Note 11- Segment Disclosures of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. In addition, see Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations for information about the business segment operating performance and business trends.

Product Marketing Segment

We sold various products through e-commerce websites and telemarketing centers in fiscal year 2004. Customers are obtained by online
advertising on both Company-owned and third party websites and by television, radio and print advertising. These products change over time
and in fiscal year 2004 included herbal and all-natural ingestible and topical products, collectibles, fitness products, ink cartridges and various
niche products. The Company continuously tests product offerings to determine customer acquisition costs and revenue potential and the most
effective marketing programs.

3
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The Company�s selection and marketing of products is largely a function of competition for advertising media. Only products that yield
a rate of return that enables payment of competitive rates for advertising can be sold through e-commerce websites and telemarketing centers.
We believe that we have competitive advantages in this space from the ability to quickly test product offerings at comparatively low cost, our
expertise in developing marketing campaigns and creating incremental revenue opportunities from initial transactions and customer contact,
and our expertise in purchasing Internet advertising media. These factors result in a higher likelihood that the Company will be able to source
and create new product offerings that are viable on the Internet, as compared to smaller or more focused online retailers and providers.

The Company also uses television, radio and print advertising to drive customers to e-commerce websites and telemarketing centers. In
fiscal year 2004, we purchased significant television advertising for the direct response Body Dome fitness product line. The assets of this
product line were sold in February 2004. We expect to purchase more television, radio and print advertising for our Hydroderm product line in
fiscal year 2005, as we expand on-line sales of this product and continue to build brand recognition.

We also sell printer ink cartridges at AllYouCanInk.com, PremiumInk.com and 2for1InkJet.com. These websites offer a low-priced
alternative to printer manufacturer�s ink cartridges with remanufactured cartridges, compatible cartridges and refill kits for all major printer
brands. We also sell paper products, software and home office products on these websites.

Each product the Company sells is generally sourced through a single vendor. In some cases, the vendor created the product and we
entered into a distribution agreement as the exclusive or non-exclusive distributor for the product. In other cases, we purchase the product
from a third party and we are generally a non-exclusive reseller for the product. In addition, we have a joint venture for the exclusive
distribution of one significant product line where the other venture partner is the product supplier and we provide marketing and order
fulfillment activities. Most of these products were purchased in fiscal year 2004 from among five vendors.

The primary websites that we sold our products through in fiscal year 2004 were 24HourPayCheck.com, BodyDome.com,
Hydroderm.com, IncreaseYourHealth.com, CoolOnLine.com and our three ink cartridge websites. The top selling products were Apple Cider
Vinegar, Body Shape, Dream Shape, Hydroderm and Vigel. Revenues from the sale of Dream Shape and Hydroderm products were
approximately 15% and 24%, respectively of fiscal year 2004 product marketing segment revenues.

In February 2004, we signed an agreement with Body By Jake to develop and market a new line of health supplements under the Body
By Jake brand. The first product to be sold under this brand is a carbohydrate blocking health supplement.

We experienced a significant decline in fiscal year 2004 revenues in our ResponseBase business unit compared to fiscal year 2003. This
business unit sells seasonal and limited life products and was not able to source and sell popular products in fiscal year 2004. In January 2004,
we merged the ResponseBase products business into our Performance Marketing Group business unit and the ResponseBase advertising
business into our Flowgo business unit.

In August 2002, the Company purchased a telemarketing center in Montclair, California from which we marketed Company and third
party products and services. The telemarketing center was closed in March 2004 and telemarketing activities are now performed by third
parties and at the Company�s Los Angeles office. In fiscal year 2004, we created a multi-level marketing company, under the brand 24 Hour
Paycheck, to distribute herbal and all-natural ingestible and topical products. This company was not profitable and was sold in March 2004. In
September 2002, the Company entered into two joint ventures to produce television infomercials for two home fitness products. In February
2003, the Company sold its interest in one of the joint ventures and in February 2004, the Company sold the assets of the other joint venture,
the Body Dome fitness product line. The revenues and operating loss of the Body Dome business unit are classified as a discontinued
operation in the
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fiscal year 2004 consolidated statement of operations. The revenues and operating losses of the other discontinued businesses are not material
and have not been reclassified to discontinued operations.

In fiscal year 2004, we sold products through our Performance Marketing Group, ink cartridge, Body Dome, ResponseBase, 24 Hour
Paycheck and telemarketing business units. We recently renamed our Performance Marketing Group as Alena, and the Alena and ink cartridge
business units are the two ongoing business units of the product marketing segment.

Alena�s fiscal year 2005 business objective is to market and distribute a select group of products that are unique and well suited for
continuity sales on the Internet. Alena secures exclusive Internet rights to the products and builds brand awareness for the products by
profitably distributing them on the Internet with the goal of ultimately distributing the products through offline sales channels.

Network Segment

We have a diverse network of websites that provide entertainment and community oriented content (the �eUniverse Network�). We earn
paid advertising revenues through a variety of traditional ad units such as banner, skyscraper, pop-up and interstitial ads, targeted E-mail
marketing, paid search marketing, lead generation marketing and affiliate marketing. Our advertising is primarily performance based with
pricing based on the number of times our audience views the ad or performs a specific action, or clicks through to the customer�s website.

The eUniverse Network is the third most visited entertainment destination on the Internet(1), offering a suite of fun and viral interactive
entertainment websites that people use to communicate and connect. The eUniverse Network attracted over 15 million unique U.S. visitors in
March 2004(1), with Flowgo.com and GameRival.com being the Company�s most popular entertainment websites. Network websites offer
thousands of pages of funny pictures, jokes, animations, greetings, parodies, poems, stories, quizzes, polls and games. The nature of the
content ranges from the edgy and satirical comedy found on MadBlast.com, to the lighthearted fun pages and humor of GotLaughs.com, to the
inspirational stories and pages of BlessTheDay.com, to the mind, body and spirit self-evaluation aids at SelfNetwork.com, to the fun and easy
to play games at GameRival.com. Visitors to the eUniverse Network are encouraged to share the content they experience with family and
friends by clicking a link at the bottom of each content web page. This link is a tool that enables users to E-mail links of the content they view
to up to ten other people at a time. Visitors to eUniverse Network websites are also encouraged to sign up to website mailing lists in order to
receive updates about new content and the daily picks of eUniverse Network Webmasters.

The Company distributes content via daily E-mails to millions of subscribers to our network. Our E-mail newsletters are sent to over 35
million unique subscribers each month. A majority of the newsletters are E-mailed daily. The Company has over 35 newsletters in its
portfolio, covering specific topics such as sports, technology, entertainment, business and finance. A large number of these newsletters are
vehicles for delivering content from the numerous websites that make up the eUniverse Network. Some of the Company�s more popular
newsletters are IntelligentX, with two daily publications, and InfoBeat, with five daily publications, both providing factual news delivery and
other fare similar to that found in traditional newspapers or magazines. These two newsletter groups have a combined subscriber base of over
five million.

We derive our content from a variety of sources and relationships, but the vast majority of our content is produced internally by the
Company�s webmasters, programmers and graphic artists. The Web publishing side of our business has enabled the Company to attract a
large and diverse audience and to amass a considerable database of subscriber and viewer information. This audience, and our ability to
communicate effectively with potential customers, has proven an attractive proposition to third-party paid advertisers. The Company�s
audience

(1) Source: Nielsen NetRatings, March 2004, connecting from home and work.
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includes a strong reach into some of the most lucrative demographic segments of the Internet population. Over 90% of the eUniverse Network
audience has participated in online shopping in the past six months and 75% of our audience has gone on to purchase something online. Our
network reaches one in ten U.S. Internet users overall, and one in nine U.S. Internet users ages 25 to 54 and one in seven U.S. Internet users
ages 12 to 17.(1) Each demographic group can be directly reached by targeted advertising on the eUniverse Network.

In addition to selling our own Web and E-mail advertising inventory, the Company also develops Internet advertising campaigns on
behalf of third-party clients. In this regard, the Company fills the creative function of a traditional advertising agency in addition to providing
the media in which the ads are run.

In fiscal year 2004, we introduced download applications that are distributed by Flowgo.com and bundled with third party free
applications, such as the Kazaa Media Desktop. One application is a customizable toolbar that attaches to Internet Explorer® and contains
functionality for paid user actions such as Web search, travel, shopping and games. Another application redirects misspelled searches and
timed-out searches to a search page that helps the user find the desired destination. As of March 31, 2004, we have revenue sharing
arrangements with 16 third-party distributors of our applications. We earn advertising revenues from Overture Services, Inc. when customers
use our applications. Revenues from Overture Services, Inc. were approximately 12% of fiscal year 2004 network segment revenues.

We have a private community website at MySpace.com that we created in fiscal year 2004. Users can share photos, journals and
interests with their network of friends. They can communicate with friends, meet other individuals, keep in touch with family, co-workers and
classmates, and search for long lost friends. This website is one of the fastest growing community websites on the Internet.

The eUniverse Network also has websites that generate subscription revenues, provide marketing services and conduct transaction-based
revenues in addition to the websites that are primarily paid advertising based. These websites include CupidJunction.com, DietingPlans.com,
CasesLadder.com, SkillJam.com and GameIgnition.com.

We provide online matchmaking services at CupidJunction.com. Users sign-up for a free profile which can be browsed by all users and
daily matches are delivered to the user�s E-mail address. In order for users to communicate with their matches, they must upgrade to a paying
premium subscription membership.

We also provide online diet subscription programs at DietingPlans.com. This website creates a personalized diet with daily food menus
derived from a personal profile that members fill out. Through a �Virtual Trainer�, users create a customized exercise program including
online videos and step-by-step instructions for each exercise. A personal journal tracks the food, fat and calories users consume, exercise and
weight-loss, and charts the individual�s progress.

The Company has three of the premier properties in their respective online gaming categories, CasesLadder.com, SkillJam.com and
GameRival.com. These three properties have over 10 million registered users. The online gaming market has become one of the fastest
growing areas of Internet commerce.

Cases Ladder is a leader in Internet gaming ladders, leagues and tournaments for online multiplayer games. Cases Ladder leagues are set
up for hundreds of online games and can be created and co-branded specifically for online gaming services and game developers. Cases
Ladder offers both free and premium subscription membership programs to mass-market game players and operates the largest collection of
online ladders, leagues and tournaments. In November 2003, Case�s Ladder announced an agreement with America Online to launch a service
allowing video game players to enter tournaments. The new AOL Ladders service will be offered for games on PlayStation 2 consoles.
Support for GameCube is planned for next year.

(1) Source: Nielsen NetRatings, March 2004, connecting from home and work.
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Skill Jam is a premier destination for cash prize, skill game play. Skill Jam offers nearly 100 fun games including favorites like Trivia
Challenge, Diamond Mine, Pool, MahJong, Solitaire and more. Users select the games they would like to play and compete for fun, prizes and
cash. Skill Jam provides skill-based gaming solutions for a number of Internet portals including MSN�s Zone, iWon/Excite and iVillage. The
Skill Jam business is currently for sale, but we are not able to predict the timing or amount, if any, of proceeds to be received from the sale of
Skill Jam.

Game Rival is one of the Internet�s leading advertising sponsored casual game websites. Visitors to Game Rival play some of the most
entertaining games on the Internet, every game is free and no downloads are required. Players can also create a free account at Game Rival to
record their scores, leave comments and send challenges to other players.

Marketing and Sales

The Company markets its own products and services by using various proprietary direct marketing tools and techniques. The Company
also has an internal sales force to sell third-party advertising on the eUniverse Network. This team sources, tests and monitors advertising
campaigns on the eUniverse Network.

The products and services business units have a team of media buyers that purchase online advertising inventory from third party
websites to market the Company�s products and services. This group is able to rapidly test new marketing campaigns and determine the
response rate to the advertising. We make our advertising buying decisions by determining the maximum price of the advertising that we can
purchase based on the lifetime value of the customer for that product. Depending on the availability of acceptably priced advertising on third-
party websites, we may purchase more or less advertising month-to-month. We have also created an affiliate marketing system called
Partner2Profit (�P2P�) that provides Web publishers the ability to promote our products and services, and third party products and services, to
their audience. Users of the P2P service retrieve advertising creatives from the P2P Website to deliver to their audience, for which they
receive a commission for any sales resulting from the ads shown.

The Company intends to continue investing in the marketing and sales teams of its various products and services offerings, including
expansion beyond the online market. Additionally, the Company considers customer care to be a vital component of customer acquisition and
retention. Accordingly, we intend to invest in the enhancement of our customer care function.

Product Development

We maintain technology centers at the Company�s two Los Angeles, California offices and in Mount Vernon, Washington that are
staffed with software developers and systems engineers. This staff monitors the Company�s network of websites 24 hours a day, 7 days a
week. The Company�s computer hardware to support its network and other Internet activities is housed at several co-location facilities, with
most Web activity at one Tier 1 co-location service provider and bulk E-mail activity at several co-location service providers. We are in the
process of consolidating most of our bulk E-mail activity to one of our Los Angeles co-location service providers. Our websites and
supporting systems are based on both Microsoft and Linux platforms.

Using a combination of proprietary solutions and licensed technologies, the Company has deployed systems for online content
dissemination, online transaction processing, customer service, market analysis and electronic data interchange. All of the Company�s E-mail
is transmitted and tracked by a proprietary system. The Company�s E-mail system can send the appropriate type of E-mail to specific domains
based on information generated from previous E-mail campaigns. Additionally, we have built a content delivery system that enables our users
to freely transmit greeting cards and other content to their friends and family. The content delivery system has a full-featured ad tracking
subsystem that allows us to monitor usage of the system. Finally, the Company has built a full-featured ad distribution system capable of
meeting our dynamic ad creative, ad reporting and ad tracking needs. This system allows us to use many different types of ad creative from
pop-ups to dynamic flash creative.
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All of our product development costs are technology-related costs. We do not internally development the products we sell. We rely on
third parties to bring us products or ideas for products and we use our marking expertise to evaluate the on line and off line profit potential for
the proposed products.

General and Administrative

See Item 2. Properties for information about the Company�s office and warehouse facilities.

Domain Names, Patents and Trademarks

The Company�s domain name portfolio is important intellectual property that is essential to our business. As of March 31, 2004, we had
over 600 domain names registered to the Company. Also important to our business are the trademarks and service marks registered to our
Company. As of March 31, 2004, we had 25 registered trademarks and service marks and seven applications for trademarks and service marks
in the United States. We also have one patent application filed in the United States. We believe that we presently have, or are capable of
acquiring, ownership and control of the intellectual property rights which are necessary to conduct our operations.

Backlog

We believe that backlog is not a meaningful indicator of future business prospects due to the short period of time from customer order to
product shipment. Most products are shipped one to three days from the date ordered. Therefore, we believe that backlog information is not
material to an understanding of our business.

Seasonality

We believe that there is some seasonality to our product marketing segment businesses. We sell some holiday products and these
products impact revenues in the quarter ended December 31. We sold fewer holiday products in fiscal year 2004 compared to prior years and
we expect this trend to continue. We also sell health and fitness products and these products favorably impact revenues in the quarters ended
March 31 and June 30. We were somewhat impacted by the seasonality in sales of these health and fitness products in the quarter ended
March 31, 2004, and we expect to see a greater impact in future years as sales of these products are expected to represent a greater part of our
business.

Competition

Our products businesses compete with numerous large and small, online and offline, shopping channels and networks. We compete on
the basis of price, product selection and product marketing claims. We frequently see new online e-commerce sites that sell products that
appear to be similar to ours and that are sold using business models that are similar to ours. Our gaming businesses compete with numerous
privately-held gaming competitors, and our Cupid Junction business competes with numerous online dating services and print dating pages.

Our advertising businesses compete with numerous advertising networks such as ValueClick, Advertising.com, Sportsline.com and
Traffix, as well as more focused information providers such as Overture and Google. In addition, our eUniverse Network competes with large
media companies such as AOL Time Warner and Yahoo! for online multi-channel offerings, which include information, entertainment,
community, commerce and activity based experiences. We also face competition from traditional offline media such as print, radio and
television for a share of advertisers� budgets. We expect the advertising market to remain intensely competitive for the foreseeable future, and
barriers to entry are not prohibitive, thus new and existing competitors may expand their offerings at a relatively low cost.
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Some of our current competitors have larger user bases, longer operating histories, higher brand recognition, and greater financial
resources than we have. As we expand the scope of our offerings, we may have to compete with a larger number of Internet websites as well
as media companies. In addition, larger, more well-financed or well-established companies may expand into, acquire, invest or continue to
consolidate, thus increasing the competitive pressures that we face.

Employees

As of March 31, 2004, we had 228 employees, including 119 in marketing and sales, 71 in product development, and 38 in finance,
human resources, legal and administration. No employees are covered by collectively bargained agreements and we consider our employee
relations to be excellent.

Information about our officers is located in Item 10. Directors and Officers of the Registrant.

Development of the Business

The Company was created in April 1999 through a series of transactions colloquially referred to as a reverse merger into a publicly
traded shell. The April 1999 transactions resulted in eUniverse, Inc. (f/k/a Motorcycle Centers of America, Inc., a non-operating Nevada
corporation whose shares were publicly traded on the OTC Bulletin Board) becoming the parent and sole stockholder of CD Universe, Inc., a
corporation engaged in the business of selling music CD�s and movie videos and DVD�s on the Internet. Simultaneously with the reverse
merger transaction, the Company completed a $6.5 million private placement with approximately 40 Series A preferred stock investors. In
December 2002, the Company changed its state of incorporation and became a Delaware corporation.

During the Company�s first fiscal year, fiscal year 2000, the Company acquired the online gaming companies Cases Ladder, Inc.,
Gamer�s Alliance, Inc. and The Big Network, Inc., entertainment content properties Funone.com, PokemonVillage.com and
JustSayWow.com, and online retailer Falcon Ventures Corporation.

During fiscal year 2001, the Company continued to acquire entertainment content websites including Send4Fun.com,
DebsFunPages.com and FunnyGreetings.com to build its core entertainment network audience. In fiscal year 2001, the Company also
launched what has become its flagship entertainment property, Flowgo.com. By the end of fiscal 2001, Flowgo had become one of the most
frequented entertainment properties on the Internet. With the acquisition and introduction of these and other entertainment websites, the
eUniverse network of websites quickly became one of the Internet�s most trafficked destinations. Also in fiscal year 2001, the Company
divested itself of the music and movie retail products segment of its business, CD Universe and Falcon Ventures.

As the Company entered fiscal year 2002, the Company�s revenue was derived almost exclusively from paid third-party advertising on
the eUniverse Network. The Company then embarked on a strategy of diversifying its revenue streams. As part of this strategy, the Company
launched the online dating website CupidJunction.com. Over the course of the year, the Company added seven additional product and/or
service offerings consisting of a combination of internally developed and acquired properties. Also during its fiscal year 2002, the Company
expanded its E-mail newsletter portfolio by acquiring the various publications distributed under the IntelligentX and InfoBeat brand names. In
conjunction with its acquisition of InfoBeat, the Company raised $5 million in a private placement of Series B preferred stock with an indirect
subsidiary of Sony Corporation of America.

In fiscal year 2003, we began leveraging our expertise in developing and distributing online advertising campaigns by signing
agreements with major media and consumer product companies to promote their properties, artists and products on the eUniverse Network.
Also during fiscal year 2003, and in an effort to gain broader consumer reach for the Company�s products and services, the Company
launched the Performance
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Marketing Group business unit. Performance Marketing Group�s primary objective was to generate sales on networks and websites beyond
the eUniverse Network and using offline advertising. In September 2002, the Company continued its effort to broaden its consumer reach by
acquiring certain assets of ResponseBase LLC. ResponseBase is an on-line marketing company that manages permission-based E-mail records
to which it markets and sells its own proprietary products and services as well as those of third parties. The Company also signed a multi-year
agreement with Microsoft Corporation relating to its skilled gaming and gaming download offerings in September 2002. The joint offerings
went live in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003.

In May 2003, the Company announced the discovery of accounting errors in the first three quarterly reports of fiscal year 2003 and
subsequently corrected and restated the financial results for those quarters. Costs related to the accounting restatement including the resulting
regulatory actions and litigation were significant. The Company borrowed $2 million and raised $8 million in a private placement of Series C
preferred stock with affiliates of VantagePoint Venture Partners (�VantagePoint�). The Company also raised $2.5 million in a private
placement of common stock with existing and new stockholders. In November 2003, a newly formed Company subsidiary signed application
download and content distribution agreements with Sharman Networks, Ltd. Sharman Networks bundled two of the Company�s applications
with other applications that are downloaded from the Internet with the Kazaa Media Desktop. Sharman Networks also included channel links
on the Kazaa Media Desktop to content provided by the Company. The Company also signed a multi year agreement with AOL relating to
league and ladder gaming in November 2003.

In May 2004, the Company announced its intention to change its name to Intermix Media, Inc. We plan to make the name change
official in July 2004 and we will do business as Intermix Media until the name is officially changed.

Accounting Restatement

On May 6, 2003, the Company announced its intent to restate previously reported quarterly financial results for the first three quarters of
fiscal year 2003 because of accounting errors it had identified in the Company�s financial statements. Management initiated an internal review
of accounting records to quantify the errors and restate previously reported financial results. In an effort to identify any deficiencies in the
Company�s system of internal controls, management significantly expanded its accounting and finance staff and retained an outside
accounting firm to assist in the process. The Company�s Board of Directors also directed the Audit Committee of the Board to explore the
facts and circumstances giving rise to the accounting restatement as well as to evaluate the Company�s accounting practices, policies and
procedures. The Audit Committee engaged the law firm of Foley & Lardner to assist them in their investigation. The Audit Committee
investigation was completed in October 2003.

During management�s and the Audit Committee�s reviews of the Company�s accounting records and procedures, and during the audit
of the Company�s financial statements for fiscal year 2003, various deficiencies in the Company�s internal controls were identified. The
Company believes such deficiencies were attributable to the following broad factors: insufficient supervision and oversight of the Company�s
accounting systems and personnel; a poorly designed, non-integrated accounting system; the rapid growth in the Company�s business
operations during the course of fiscal year 2003; difficulties in absorbing and integrating the acquisition of a sizable e-commerce company,
ResponseBase LLC, during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2003; the loss of critical personnel; and limited human resources in the
Company�s accounting and financial reporting function with which to respond to the Company�s increased business scale and growing
complexity.

On May 6, 2003, NASDAQ halted trading of the Company�s common stock. On June 13, 2003, the Company received a NASDAQ
Staff Determination stating that our common stock was subject to delisting from The NASDAQ SmallCap Market due to the NASDAQ
Staff�s inability to assess the Company�s current financial position and the Company�s ability to sustain compliance with NASDAQ�s
continued listing requirements. The Company appealed the NASDAQ Staff�s determination to delist the Company�s securities to a Listing
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Qualifications Hearings Panel (the �Panel�). The Panel decided to delist the Company�s securities from The NASDAQ SmallCap Market on
September 2, 2003. The Company appealed the Panel�s decision and on March 15, 2004, the Panel decided to not re-list the Company�s
common stock on The NASDAQ SmallCap Market. The Company has appealed the Panel�s decision and is exploring other listing or
quotation options. The Company�s common stock has been trading on what is commonly called the �Pink Sheets� since September 2, 2003.

The Company filed amended Form 10-Q�s for the quarters ended June 30, September 30, and December 31, 2002 with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on November 3, 2003.

Website Access to SEC Reports

The Company�s Internet website can be found at www.euniverse.com (www.intermixmedia.com after our name change is official).
Information contained on the Company�s Internet website is not part of this report. The Company�s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the Section 16 filings of its officers, directors, and stockholders beneficially owning 10% or
more of the Company�s common stock are available on the Company�s website, free of charge, as soon as reasonably practicable after such
reports are filed with or furnished to the SEC. Alternatively, you may access these reports at the SEC�s Internet website at www.sec.gov.

Risk Factors

NASDAQ delisted our common stock and there is no guarantee of relisting or a suitable alternative.

On May 6, 2003, in response to the announcement of our intent to restate our quarterly financial statements for fiscal year 2003,
NASDAQ halted trading in our common stock due to our inability to provide the market place with sufficient current financial information.
On June 13, 2003, we received a NASDAQ Staff Determination stating that our common stock was subject to delisting from The NASDAQ
SmallCap Market due to the NASDAQ Staff�s inability to assess the Company�s current financial position and its ability to sustain
compliance with NASDAQ�s continued listing requirements. On July 2, 2003, we received notice of an additional listing deficiency from
NASDAQ indicating that the Company was not in compliance with the filing requirements for continued listing due to our failure to timely
file our Annual Report on Form 10-K. On July 31, 2003, in a hearing before the Panel, we presented our plan for providing current financial
information about the Company to the marketplace and complying with NASDAQ filing requirements. On August 15, 2003, the Company
filed a Report on Form 12b-25 with the Securities and Exchange Commission as a result of its failure to timely file its Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003. On August 22, 2003, we filed our Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Panel delisted
the Company�s securities from The NASDAQ SmallCap Market on September 2, 2003. The Company�s common stock has been trading on
what is commonly referred to as the �Pink Sheets� since September 2, 2003.

The Company appealed the Panel�s decision to the Nasdaq Listing and Hearing Review Council (the �Listing Council�) and on
December 2, 2003, the Listing Council rendered a decision on the Company�s appeal. The Listing Council noted that the Company was now
current in its public filing requirements and that events occurring subsequent to the Panel�s August 28, 2003 decision may address the public
interest concerns. The Listing Council instructed the Panel to determine whether public interest concerns continue to exist and to determine if
there are any other deficiencies under NASDAQ�s continued listing standards. The Panel conducted their investigation and on March 15,
2004 rendered their decision. The Panel acknowledged the conclusion of the NASDAQ Staff that no public interest concerns currently exist
related to the accounting and internal control issues addressed in the Audit Committee�s investigation report. Nevertheless, citing the
Company�s failure to comply with requirements for listing, both while previously listed and subsequently in connection with the Company�s
financing transactions, the Panel determined that re-listing of the Company�s securities at this time would not be in the best interests of the
investing public or NASDAQ. The Company has appealed the Panel�s
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decision to the Listing Council and is evaluating other options for an exchange or quotation system listing of the Company�s stock. We cannot
predict whether or not the Listing Council will be inclined to modify or reverse the Panel�s decision or what other listing options may become
available to the Company.

NASDAQ has various quantitative listing requirements for a company to remain listed on The NASDAQ SmallCap Market. We were in
compliance with these quantitative listing requirements as of March 31, 2004. The initial listing requirements for a company to be admitted to
The NASDAQ SmallCap Market are much higher. We were not in compliance with the initial listing requirements as of March 31, 2004.
There can be no assurance that the Listing Counsel will apply the continued listing requirements rather than the initial listing requirements
when considering our most recent appeal of the Panel�s decision. In addition, there can be no assurance that if we are relisted that we will
remain in compliance with the continued listing requirements in the future.

If we do not resume trading on The NASDAQ SmallCap Market or another exchange or quotation system, trading in our common stock
could be conducted in the over-the-counter market on the OTC Bulletin Board, or where it is currently traded in what is commonly referred to
as the �Pink Sheets.� Continued trading in the over-the-counter market or the �Pink Sheets� could further damage our general business
reputation and could impair our ability to raise funds. This could further adversely affect our stock price and limit our ability to grow our
business. Furthermore, if our shares continue to be traded on the over-the-counter bulletin board or the �Pink Sheets,� their value could be
negatively affected because stocks which trade on the over-the-counter bulletin board or the �Pink Sheets� tend to be less liquid and trade
with larger variations between the bid and ask price than, for example, stocks on The NASDAQ SmallCap Market.

Litigation and regulatory proceedings regarding the restatement of our financial statements could seriously harm our business.

As previously reported, on October 14, 2003, the purported stockholder class action lawsuits previously filed against the Company and
several current and former Company officers and/or employees in the United States District Court for the Central District of California were
consolidated into one action and lead counsel and plaintiff were appointed (the �Securities Litigation�). The Securities Litigation arises out of
the Company�s restatement of quarterly financial results for fiscal year 2003 and includes allegations of, among other things, intentionally
false and misleading statements regarding the Company�s business prospects, financial condition and performance. On December 17, 2003,
plaintiffs in the Securities Litigation filed their amended and consolidated class action complaint reiterating those allegations and also naming
the Company�s former auditor as an additional defendant. The Company and other defendants have filed motions to dismiss the lawsuit for,
among other things, the failure of the complaint to state a valid claim for violation of securities laws. A decision on the motions is still
pending.

Also as previously reported, two purported stockholder derivative actions, which are substantially similar, are pending against various
current and former Company directors, officers, and/or employees. One of the actions is pending in the United States District Court for the
Central District of California and the other, formerly two actions which have been consolidated, is pending in the Superior Court of California
for the County of Los Angeles (collectively, the �Derivative Litigation�). The Derivative Litigation similarly arises out of the Company�s
restatement of quarterly financial results for fiscal year 2003 and includes claims of breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the
restatement and in connection with allegedly improper insider sales of Company stock by one officer and one former Company employee. On
January 12, 2004, the Company filed a motion to dismiss plaintiffs� consolidated derivative complaint in the State Court derivative action on
the grounds, among others, that plaintiffs have not pled, and will not be able to plead, facts sufficient to demonstrate that demand on the
Company�s Board of Directors would have been futile. On April 27, 2004, the Company�s motion, as well as those filed by the individual
defendants in the case, were sustained in there entirety and plaintiffs were given leave to amend their complaint with respect to all but one
claim. On May 27, 2004, plaintiffs filed an amended consolidated derivative complaint which essentially replicated the allegations made in the
Securities Litigation. Discovery in the action remains stayed. The Federal Court derivative action has been stayed pending the outcome of the
hearing on defendants� motions challenging the complaint in the Securities Litigation.
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The Company intends to vigorously defend itself in the Securities Litigation and to address the Derivative Litigation as appropriate.
Defending against existing and potential securities and class action litigation relating to the fiscal year 2003 accounting restatement will likely
require significant attention and resources of management and, regardless of the outcome, result in significant legal expenses. If the
Company�s defenses were ultimately unsuccessful, or if the Company was unable to achieve a favorable settlement, the Company could be
liable for large damage awards that could seriously harm its business and results of operations. While one of the Company�s insurance carriers
has agreed that certain claims made in the lawsuits are covered by a directors and officers� insurance policy, such coverage is subject to the
limits and other terms and conditions of the policy. The Company cannot predict how much of the ongoing litigation costs or any eventual
settlement or judgment, if any, will be reimbursed by the insurance carrier.

In addition, the SEC has commenced an informal inquiry regarding the circumstances leading up to the accounting restatement.
Responding to any such review could require significant diversion of management�s attention and resources in the future. For example, if the
SEC elects to pursue an enforcement action, the defense against this type of action could be costly and require additional management
resources. If we are unsuccessful in defending against this or other investigations or proceedings, we may face penalties or fines that could
seriously harm our business and results of operations.

Our other litigation will require resources to resolve and may result in an unfavorable judgment.

We are subject to litigation in the ordinary course of our business. We could be subject to future litigation related to acquisitions we
consider or consummate, products we sell, the content of our Web pages and the technology we use, among other potential issues. The
resolution of these issues will require resources, management time and could result in an adverse judgment.

Failure or circumvention of our controls or procedures could seriously harm our business.

In response to the Company�s announcement that it intended to restate its quarterly financial statements for fiscal year 2003, both
management and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors undertook a review of the Company�s accounting records, policies, practices
and procedures. During the course of this review, and during the course of the audit of the Company�s financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2003, various deficiencies in the Company�s internal controls were identified. As described in Item 9A. Controls and Procedures,
we have taken a number of steps to improve our internal controls and procedures. Additionally, management is undertaking a number of
initiatives to further enhance our internal controls and procedures. However, we can provide no assurance that these actions or any other
actions we may take will be successful. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the control system�s objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no system of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have
been detected. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and we
cannot assure you that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. A failure of our controls and
procedures to detect error or fraud could seriously harm our business and results of operations.

We are controlled by our management, preferred stockholders, large common stockholders and members of our Board of Directors whose
interests may differ from those of other stockholders.

As of March 31, 2004, our executive officers, common and preferred stockholders holding a 5% or greater beneficial ownership in our
securities and members of our Board of Directors beneficially own approximately 62% of our common stock on an as-converted basis,
excluding vested stock options and warrants to purchase common stock. As a result, our executive officers, our large common and preferred
stockholders, and our directors would be able to influence the outcome of matters requiring a stockholder vote, including the election
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of directors, the issuance of new securities and the approval of significant transactions, thereby controlling our affairs and our management.
The interests of our executive officers, our large common and preferred stockholders, and our directors may conflict with the interests of our
other stockholders and may delay, defer or prevent a change in control of our Company, or make some transactions more difficult or
impossible. Examples of potentially conflicting transactions include the issuance of additional preferred securities, proxy contests, tender
offers, mergers or other purchases of common stock that could give you the opportunity to realize a premium over the then-prevailing market
price of our common stock.

We may issue securities with rights superior to those of our common stock, which could materially limit the ownership rights of existing
stockholders.

On October 31, 2003, the Company sold 5,333,000 shares of a new series of convertible preferred stock with rights, preferences and
privileges that are senior to the rights, preferences and privileges of the Company�s common stock and Series A and Series B preferred stock.
Further information with respect to the agreements with VantagePoint is set forth in Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

We may issue additional preferred stock at such time or times and for such consideration as the Board of Directors may determine. Each
series is required to be so designated as to distinguish the shares thereof from the shares of all other series. The Board of Directors is expressly
authorized, subject to the limitations prescribed by law and the provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation, to provide for the issuance of all
or any shares of preferred stock, in one or more series, each with such designations, preferences, voting powers, relative, participating,
optional or other special rights and privileges and such qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof as are determined by the Board of
Directors.

In addition, our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes blank check preferred stock. Our Board of Directors can set the voting,
redemption, conversion and other rights relating to the preferred stock and can issue the stock in either a private or public transaction. The
issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of the Company without further stockholder
action and may adversely affect the rights and powers, including voting rights of the holders of our common stock, rights to receive dividends
and rights to payments upon liquidation. In certain circumstances, the issuance of preferred stock could depress the market price of our
common stock, and could encourage persons considering unsolicited tender offers or other unilateral takeover proposals to negotiate with our
Board of Directors rather than pursue non-negotiated takeover attempts.

We have many potentially dilutive securities outstanding.

As of March 31, 2004, we had 7,844,000 outstanding stock options and 258,000 outstanding warrants to purchase our common stock.

As of March 31, 2004, we had 194,000 shares of our Series A preferred stock outstanding. The Series A preferred stock may be
converted into our common stock at the then-applicable conversion rate. The Series A preferred stock has a $3.60 per share liquidation
preference which increases at the rate of 6% per annum. Each share of Series A preferred stock may be converted to common stock at a rate of
one share of common stock for each $3.60 of liquidation preference. The liquidation preference was $4.67 as of March 31, 2004. Because of
the 6% accretion factor, each share of Series A preferred stock will be converted into greater than one share of common stock. Prior to any
conversion, the conversion price is also adjusted to account for any increase or decrease in the number of outstanding shares of common stock
by stock split, stock dividend, issuance of additional equity securities (other than those reserved as employee shares pursuant to any employee
stock option plan) at a purchase price less than the then-current conversion price.

As of March 31, 2004, we had 1,923,000 shares of our Series B preferred stock outstanding. The Series B preferred stock may be
converted into our common stock at the then applicable conversion rate. The Series B
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preferred stock has a $2.60 per share liquidation preference. Each share of Series B may be converted to common stock at an initial rate of one
share of common stock for each $2.60 of liquidation preference. Prior to any conversion, the conversion price is adjusted to account for any
increase or decrease in the number of outstanding shares of common stock by stock split, stock dividend or other similar event. The
conversion price per share of Series B may be adjusted downward if we issue additional equity securities other than certain excluded stock,
without consideration or for consideration per share less than the then-current conversion price.

On October 31, 2003, the Company sold 5,333,000 shares of a new series of convertible preferred stock to VantagePoint. The Series C
preferred stockholders are paid an 8% annual dividend in additional Series C preferred stock for one year and on December 31, 2003 and
March 31, 2004, we issued an aggregate of 177,000 additional shares as dividends. The Series C preferred stock also has a $1.50 per share
liquidation preference and the conversion price is also adjusted to account for any increase or decrease in the number of outstanding shares of
common stock by stock split, stock dividend, issuance of additional equity securities (other than those reserved as employee shares).

The issuance of common stock upon the exercise of our outstanding options and warrants, or the conversion of the Series A, Series B,
Series C or any newly issued series of preferred stock, will cause dilution to existing stockholders and could adversely affect the market price
of our common stock. The Series C preferred stock issued in October 2003 and the 1,643,000 shares of common stock issued in November
2003 are unregistered and these stockholders have registration rights. If the registration rights are exercised and the stock is re-sold in the
market, the market price of our common stock could be adversely affected.

We may not recoup non-refundable advances made to Sharman Networks, Ltd.

In November 2003, a newly formed Company subsidiary signed application download and content distribution agreements with
Sharman Networks, Ltd. The subsidiary agreed to provide an aggregate $2.3 million of non-refundable cash advances to Sharman Networks at
various dates and additional monthly cash advances for at least one year that are recoupable against a sharing of revenues. The Company also
issued 500,000 shares of eUniverse common stock to Sharman Networks. Sharman Networks agreed to bundle two of the Company�s
applications with other applications that are downloaded from the Internet with the Kazaa Media Desktop. Sharman Networks also agreed to
include channel links on the Kazaa Media Desktop to content provided by the Company. The Kazaa Media Desktop is a peer-to-peer file
sharing application. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004, we concluded that the cash advance under the content channel link agreement
would not be recouped against a sharing of the revenues and we expensed $475,000 of the cash advance. If the revenue earned from the two
download applications does not meet Company expectations, the advances to Sharman Networks will not be recouped. In addition, if Sharman
Networks fails to continue to bundle the application or host the content for any reason, the advances to Sharman Networks may also not be
recouped. Any unrecouped advances and the unamortized value of the Company common stock issued to Sharman Networks, if any, will be
expensed. The balance of unrecouped cash advances and the unamortized value of Company common stock was $1,787,000 at March 31,
2004.

The utilization of our net operating losses to offset future taxable income could be limited if stockholders acquire large positions in our
common stock.

The utilization of net operating losses is subject to annual limitations if a change in ownership by 5% or more stockholders within a
three-year period that aggregates 50 percentage points or more occurs. The Company�s sales of preferred stock to VantagePoint and 550
Digital Media Ventures and the purchase by VantagePoint from 550 Digital Media Ventures of Company common and preferred stock
occurred within a three-year period. Other stockholders have also acquired more than 5% of our common stock in the same three-year period.
If the aggregate change in ownership by these stockholders exceeds 50 percentage points, the utilization of our net operating losses would be
limited. If we were to have future taxable income, our net operating losses might not be available to offset the taxable income and we could
have to pay income taxes.
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If we are unable to use new technologies effectively or adapt our websites, proprietary technology and transaction-processing systems to
customer requirements or emerging industry standards, customers may not visit our network of websites, which could result in a decrease
in our revenues.

To remain competitive, we must continue to enhance and improve the responsiveness, functionality, features of our websites, and
develop new features to meet customer needs. The Internet is characterized by rapid technological change, changes in user and customer
requirements and preferences, frequent new product and service introductions, and the emergence of new industry standards and practices that
could render our existing network and websites, technology and systems obsolete. Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to license
leading technologies useful in our business, enhance our existing services, develop new services and technology that address the needs of our
customers, and respond to technological advances and emerging industry standards and practices on a cost-effective and timely basis.

If we are unable to continue to develop compelling entertainment and other content for our network of websites and electronic newsletters,
the Company��s traffic, subscriber and user base may be reduced and our revenues could decrease.

The online business market is new, rapidly evolving and intensely competitive, and we expect competition will further intensify in the
future. Similarly, the competition for website traffic and subscribers, as well as advertising revenues, both on Internet websites and in more
traditional media, is intense. Barriers to entry are currently minimal, and current and new competitors can launch new websites and electronic
newsletters at a relatively low cost. The primary competitive factors in providing entertainment and multi-channel products and services via
the Internet are name recognition, variety of value-added offerings, ease of use, price, quality of service, availability of customer support and
technical expertise. Our prospects for achieving our business objectives will depend heavily upon our ability to continuously provide high
quality, entertaining content, along with user-friendly website features, and value-added Internet products and services. If we fail to continue
to attract a high volume of traffic for our websites or a broad subscriber base, revenues could decrease and our business, results of operations
and financial condition may be materially adversely affected.

We depend on strategic relationships with our partners.

We expect to generate significant commerce and advertising revenues from strategic relationships with certain outside companies.
However, there can be no assurance that our existing relationships will be maintained through their initial terms or that additional third-party
alliances will be available to the Company on acceptable commercial terms, or at all. The inability to enter into new or to maintain any one or
more of our existing, strategic alliances could result in decreased third-party paid advertising and product and service sales revenue. Even if
we are able to maintain our strategic alliances, there can be no assurance that these alliances will be successful or that our infrastructure of
hardware and software will be sufficient to handle any potential increased traffic or sales volume resulting from these alliances.

We have a concentration of our business in certain products and vendors, and in one customer.

Revenues from the sale of Dream Shape and Hydroderm products were approximately 15% and 24%, respectively of fiscal year 2004
product marketing segment revenues. Most of the products we sold in fiscal year 2004 were purchased from among five vendors. In addition,
revenues from Overture Services, Inc. were approximately 12% of fiscal year 2004 network segment revenues. These concentrations of our
business in certain products, vendors and in one customer create the risk of adverse financial impact if we are not able to continue to sell these
products, source these products from our current vendors or continue to use Overture Services, Inc. in our download application business. We
believe that we can mitigate the financial impact of the loss of a key vendor by sourcing an alternative vendor, but we cannot predict the
timing of locating and qualifying the alternative vendor, or the pricing and terms that the alternative vendor might offer. In addition, we can
mitigate the financial impact of the loss of Overture Services, Inc. as a customer by using an alternative customer for our download
application business, but we cannot predict the pricing and terms that the alternative customer might offer.
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Some of our sponsorship arrangements may not generate anticipated revenues.

Advertising revenues are partly generated by sponsored services and placements by third parties in our online media properties. We
receive sponsorship fees or a portion of transaction revenues in return for advertising impressions to be provided by us. Consequently, we are
exposed to potential financial risks if sponsors do not renew the arrangement or do so at a lower rate, the shared revenue is lower than
expected, fees are adjusted to reflect performance or we are obligated to provide additional services to supplement lower than anticipated
performance. Additionally, any material reduction of our user base may effect these sponsorship arrangements and adversely effect revenues.

Our success depends on retaining our current key personnel and attracting additional key personnel.

The Company is dependent on the services of key personnel, including our senior management, vice presidents, and business unit
managers. Due to the specialized knowledge of these individuals, as it relates to our Company and our operations, if they were to terminate
employment, we could have difficulty hiring qualified individuals to replace the personnel in a timely manner. Consequently, operations and
productivity surrounding the vacated position may be impaired and cause an adverse effect on operating results. In addition, our success
depends on our continuing ability to attract, hire, train and retain highly skilled managerial, technical, sales, marketing and customer support
personnel, particularly in the areas of content development, product development, website design, and sales and marketing. Competition for
qualified personnel is intense, and our ability to retain key employees, or to attract or retain other highly qualified personnel, may be harder
given recent adverse changes in our business.

We may not be able to continue to grow through acquisitions of other companies and we may not manage the integration of acquired
companies successfully.

A significant portion of our future growth and profitability may depend in part upon our ability to identify companies that are suitable
acquisition candidates, to acquire those companies upon acceptable terms, and to effectively integrate and expand their operations within our
infrastructure. We may not be able to identify additional candidates that are suitable for acquisition or to consummate desired acquisitions on
favorable terms. Acquisitions involve a number of special risks including the diversion of management�s attention to the assimilation of the
operations and personnel of the acquired companies, adverse short-term effects on our operating results, and the potential inability to integrate
financial and management reporting systems. A significant portion of our capital resources could be used for these acquisitions. Accordingly,
we may require additional debt or equity financing for future acquisitions, which may not be available on terms favorable to us, if at all.
Moreover, we may not be able to successfully integrate an acquired business into our business or to operate an acquired business profitably. It
could have a material adverse effect on our business if we are not able to identify appropriate acquisition candidates or integrate and expand
the operations of acquired companies without excessive costs, delays or other adverse developments.

If we do not effectively manage our growth, our business will be harmed.

Even after giving effect to our fiscal year 2004 reduction in headcount, the scope of our operations and our workforce has expanded
significantly over the past three years. This growth requires significant time and resources of senior management, and may distract from other
business initiatives. If we are unable to effectively manage this growth, then our earnings could be adversely affected. In addition, we rely on
the effectiveness of our financial reporting and data systems, which have become increasingly complex due to rapid expansion and
diversification. Management of our business is dependent on the information from these systems, and if we do not adapt to the rapid changes
in the business, then our business could be adversely effected.

Our previous acquisitions and any future acquisitions may require us to incur significant charges for goodwill and other intangible
assets.

We are required to review our intangible assets for impairment when events or changes in conditions may prevent the Company from
recovering the carrying value. Furthermore, goodwill is required to be tested for
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impairment at least once per year. If our stock price and market capitalization decline, we may be required to record a material charge to
earnings in our financial statements during the period in which we analyze our intangible assets for impairment. Furthermore, future cash
flows associated with our various advertising segment properties may decline due to changes in market conditions or technology, thereby
requiring an impairment assessment of the property�s goodwill and other intangible assets. For example, revenues in our ResponseBase
business unit declined significantly in the third quarter of fiscal year 2004 compared to the same period last year. This decline in revenues
required us to test for goodwill and other intangible asset impairment and resulted in a $1.2 million impairment charge in the third quarter of
fiscal year 2004.

If we are unable to protect our trademarks and other proprietary rights, our reputation and brand could be impaired, and we could lose
customers.

We regard our trademarks, trade secrets and similar intellectual property as valuable to our business, and rely on trademark and
copyright law, trade secret protection and confidentiality or license agreements with our employees, partners and others to protect our
proprietary rights. There can be no assurance that the steps taken by us will be adequate to prevent misappropriation or infringement of our
proprietary property. We have some of our trademarks or service marks registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office, and
we are currently applying for registration of a number of other trademarks and service marks. Completion of our applications for these
trademarks and service marks may not be successful.

If we are unable to protect our domain names, our reputation and brand could be impaired, and we could lose customers.

We own numerous Internet domain names. National and international Internet regulatory bodies generally regulate the registration of
domain names. The regulation of domain names in the United States and in other countries is subject to change. Regulatory bodies could
establish additional top-level domains, appoint additional domain name registrars or modify the requirements for holding domain names. As a
result, we might not be able to maintain our domain names or obtain comparable domain names in all the countries in which we conduct
business, which could harm our business. Furthermore, the relationship between regulations governing domain names and laws protecting
trademarks and similar proprietary rights is unclear and still evolving. Therefore, we might be unable to prevent third parties from acquiring
domain names that infringe or otherwise decrease the value of our trademarks and other proprietary rights.

As we provide more audio and video content, particularly music, we may be required to spend significant amounts of money on content
acquisition and content broadcasts.

The majority of our content is created internally or licensed to us by third parties. However, we have been using increasing amounts of
audio and video content, particularly the broadcast of music. In order to broadcast music through our online properties, we are required to pay
a royalty on the music we broadcast. The revenue we receive due to the broadcast of the audio and video content may not justify the costs of
providing such services to our customers.

We have a limited operating history and compete in new and rapidly evolving markets. These facts make it difficult to evaluate our future
prospects based on historical operating results.

We commenced operations in April 1999, and we have a limited operating history upon which an evaluation of our prospects can be
based. In addition, we have repositioned our service and product offerings to adjust to evolving customer requirements and competitive
pressures. Our prospects for financial success must be considered in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by
companies in new, unproven and rapidly evolving markets, such as the Internet market. To address these risks, we must, among other things,
expand our customer base, respond effectively to competitive developments, continue to attract, retain and motivate qualified employees, and
continue to upgrade our technologies. If we are not successful in further
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developing and expanding our entertainment content, product and services businesses, and other related business opportunities, our ability to
maintain and increase profitability may not be achieved and our market price may decline.

Our quarterly and long-term operating results are volatile and difficult to predict.

Due to the nature of our business, our future operating results may fluctuate. If we are unable to meet the expectations of investors and
public market analysts, the market price of our common stock may decrease. We expect to experience fluctuations in future quarterly and
annual operating results that may be caused by a variety of factors, many of which are outside our control. Factors that may affect our
operating results include:

� our ability to increase our current level of e-commerce merchandise sales;

� our ability to purchase online advertising at competitive rates to attract new e-commerce customers;

� our reliance on three principal suppliers of e-commerce merchandise sales for our Performance Marketing Group;

� our ability to retain existing users, attract new users at a steady rate and maintain user satisfaction;

� the announcement or introduction of new or enhanced content, websites, products and services, and strategic partnerships by us and
our competitors;

� seasonality of products revenue, which is still material to our overall revenue mix;

� the level of use of the Internet and increasing consumer acceptance of the Internet for entertainment and the purchase of consumer
products, services and activity based offerings;

� our ability to upgrade and develop our systems and infrastructure in a timely and effective manner; and,

� the amount and timing of operating costs and capital expenditures relating to expansion of our business, operations and
infrastructure and the implementation of marketing programs, key agreements and strategic partnerships, and general economic
conditions and economic conditions specific to the Internet.

More individuals are utilizing non-PC devices to access the Internet and we may not be successful in adapting our services to these new
devices.

Devices other than personal computers, such as personal digital assistants, cellular telephones, and television set-top devices, are
expected to increase dramatically in the coming years. Our services are designed for presentation on graphic rich devices such as the personal
computer. The decreased functionality and lower resolution of the new technologies available to consumers may make it difficult for us to
adapt our services in a compelling manner. Consequently, we may face adverse financial effects and operational changes that effect earnings,
in order to adapt our services to these new devices. It is difficult to predict with certainty what effect these devices will have on our earnings
potential, and significant resources may be required in the future to leverage our online presence in this new format.

We depend on the acceptance and growth of the Internet and the Internet Infrastructure.

Our revenues are dependant on the future of the Internet. Our future results and growth may not be realized and our business could suffer
if the use of the Internet does not continue to increase. Internet usage may be inhibited for a number of reasons, including:

� inadequate network infrastructure;

� security concerns;

� inconsistent quality of service;
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� changes in government regulation of the Internet; and,

� changes in communications technology.

If Internet usage grows, the Internet infrastructure might not be able to support the demands placed on it by this growth or its
performance and reliability may decline. In addition, future outages and other interruptions occurring throughout the Internet could lead to
decreased use of our network of websites and harm our business.

We may face litigation for information retrieved from the Internet.

We could be sued for information retrieved from the Internet. Because material may be downloaded from websites and may be
subsequently distributed to others, there is a potential that claims could be made against us under legal theories, such as defamation,
negligence, copyright or trademark infringement or other theories based on the nature and content of the material. These claims have been
brought against online companies in the past. In addition, we could be exposed to liability for material that may be accessible through its
products, services and websites, including claims asserting that, by providing hypertext links to websites operated by third parties, we are
liable for wrongful actions by those third parties through the websites. Although we carry general liability insurance, our insurance may not
cover potential claims of this type, or the level of coverage may not be adequate to fully protect us against all liability that may be imposed.
Any costs or imposition of liability or legal defense expenses that are not covered by insurance or in excess of insurance coverage could
reduce our working capital and have a material adverse effect on its business, results of operations and financial condition. Also, the legal
effectiveness of our terms and conditions of use is uncertain.

We may become subject to government regulation and legal uncertainties that could reduce demand for our products and services or
increase the cost of doing business.

Government regulation and legal uncertainties could increase our costs and risks of doing business on the Internet. There are currently
few laws or regulations that specifically regulate commerce on the Internet. Moreover, it may take years to determine the extent to which
existing laws relating to issues such as property ownership, libel, taxation and personal privacy are applicable to the Internet. The application
of existing laws, or the adoption of new laws and regulations in the future, that address issues such as user privacy, pricing, taxation and the
characteristics and quality of products and services, could create uncertainty in the Internet marketplace. Such uncertainty could reduce
demand for our products and services or increase the cost of doing business due to increased costs of litigation or increased service delivery
costs.

In December 2003, the President signed a new law that has impacted the way certain commercial E-mails are sent over the Internet. The
new law went into effect January 1, 2004 and supercedes the future enforcement of most state commercial E-mail laws, including the recently
enacted California commercial E-mail law. The new law prohibits E-mails that have misleading headers (the digital path to the recipient) and
other practices that disguise the origin or path of the E-mail, false or misleading sender information and deceptive subject lines. The new law
requires commercial E-mail�s to clearly identify the E-mail as an advertisement or solicitation, and contain a method for the recipient to opt-
out of future mailings and the sender must honor the opt-out decision. The new law also calls on the Federal Trade Commission to create a do-
not-E-mail registry similar to the do-not-call registry. Penalties for failure to comply with the new law include significant fines, forfeiture of
property and imprisonment. This law and other laws or regulations that impact E-mail advertising could harm our business.

If the delivery of Internet advertising on the Web, or the delivery of our E-mail messages, are limited or blocked, demand for our products
and services may decline.

Our business may be adversely affected by the adoption by computer users of technologies that impact access to our products and
services. For example, computer users may use software designed to filter or prevent the delivery of Internet advertising or deploy Internet
browsers set to block the use of cookies. Microsoft Corporation has announced plans to add pop-up blocking features to Internet Explorer in
2004. In addition,
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Internet service providers have recently introduced anti-pop-up tools or agreed not to sell pop-ups to third parties. The number of computer
users who employ these or other similar technologies may increase, thereby diminishing the efficacy of our products and services. In the case
that one or more of these technologies becomes widely adopted by computer users, demand for our products and services would decline.

We also depend on our ability to deliver E-mails over the Internet through Internet service providers and private networks. Internet
service providers are able to block messages from reaching their users and we do not have, nor are we required to have, agreements with any
Internet service providers to deliver E-mails to their customers. As a result, we could experience periodic temporary blockages of our delivery
of E-mails to their customers, which would limit the effectiveness of our E-mail marketing. Some Internet service providers also use
proprietary technologies to handle and deliver E-mail. If Internet service providers materially limit or block the delivery of our E-mails, or if
our technology fails to be compatible with these Internet service providers� E-mail technologies, then our business, results of operations or
financial condition could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, the effectiveness of E-mail marketing may decrease as a result of
increased consumer resistance to E-mail marketing in general.

We may be not able to keep pace with rapid technological changes in the Internet industry, which could cause us to lose customers and
revenue.

Rapid technological developments, evolving industry standards and user demands, and frequent new product introductions and
enhancements characterize the market for Internet products and services. These market characteristics are exacerbated by the emerging nature
of the market and the fact that many companies are expected to introduce new Internet products and services in the near future. Our future
success will depend on our ability to continually improve our content offerings and products and services. In addition, the widespread
adoption of developing multimedia-enabling technologies could require fundamental and costly changes in our technology and could
fundamentally affect the nature, viability and measurability of Internet-based advertising and direct marketing, which may harm our business.

Our operations could be significantly hindered by the occurrence of a natural disaster or other catastrophic event.

Significant portions of our operations are located in California, which is susceptible to earthquakes and forest fires. In addition, our
operations are susceptible to outages due to �rolling black-outs�, fire, floods, telecommunication failures, break-ins, and other natural
disasters. We have multiple website capacity to minimize disruption to our services; however, not all services provided by the Company are
supported by such redundancy. Despite our implementation of network security measures, our services may become vulnerable to new
computer viruses and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering with our computer systems or personal computers for individuals.

Item 2. Properties

We lease approximately 42,200 square feet of office space in two facilities in Los Angeles, California. The lease for one Los Angeles
office expires in February 2006 and has a current monthly rental rate of approximately $62,800. The lease for the other Los Angeles office
expires in December 2004 and has a current monthly rental rate of approximately $20,300. The Company also leases approximately 13,500
square feet of warehouse space for inventory and order fulfillment in Los Angeles, California. This lease expires in October 2004 and has a
current monthly rental rate of approximately $10,200.

The Company leases approximately 5,000 square feet of office space for a call center in Montclair, California. This lease expires in July
2004 and has a current monthly rental rate of approximately $5,100. The Company also leases approximately 2,000 square feet of office space
for our Cases Ladder subsidiary in Mount Vernon, Washington. The lease expires in January 2005 and has a current monthly rental rate of
approximately $2,000.
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Management believes that the current facilities are adequate to accommodate the needs of the business, and that suitable additional space
is available, if needed, to accommodate growth in operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See Note 7�Commitments and Contingencies of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Item 8) for information on legal
proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

We held our 2003 annual meeting of stockholders on January 29, 2004. The Board of Directors submitted to a vote of the Company�s
stockholders and solicited proxies for, a slate of directors to hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders, two other matters
related to the VantagePoint Series C preferred stock and debt transactions and the appointment of independent auditors. Mr. Brad Greenspan,
the Company�s past Chairman and Chief Executive Officer offered an alternative slate of directors in opposition to the slate offered by the
Board of Directors and opposed one of the two VantagePoint Series C preferred stock and debt matters proposed by the Board of Directors.
The independent inspectors of elections issued their final report on February 6, 2004 reporting that the four Board of Director proposals were
passed and the two Brad Greenspan proposals were not passed.

Proposal 1. Election of Directors:

For Withheld

Board of Directors nominees:

Brett Brewer
18,388,136 1,593,970

Daniel Mosher
18,399,136 1,582,970

Lawrence Moreau
18,402,201 1,579,905

Bradley Ward
18,401,901 1,580,205

Brad Greenspan nominees:

Ken Schapiro
8,398,220 238,579

John Neubauer
8,398,220 238,579

Vincent Bitteti
8,398,220 238,579
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James Somes
8,398,220 238,579

Nathan Peck
8,398,220 238,579

Proposal 2. To approve the issuance of a warrant to VantagePoint if we draw down on a $4 million loan commitment and the
modification of the terms of an existing note due to VantagePoint, including the preferred stock issuable on exercise or conversion and the
conversion of the preferred stock into common stock at the applicable conversion rate:

For Against Abstain

Board of Directors proposal
12,486,317 144,042 7,351,747

Brad Greenspan proposal
19,000 8,444,965 172,834

Proposal 3. To approve amendments to the Series A and Series B Certificates of Designation:

For Against Abstain

Board of Directors proposal
18,266,767 145,223 1,570,116

Proposal 4. To ratify the appointment of Moss Adams LLP as the Company�s independent auditors for fiscal year 2004:

For Against Abstain

Board of Directors proposal
18,426,835 15,373 1,539,898
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant��s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information

As of March 31, 2004, there were 28,819,000 shares of the Company�s common stock outstanding, which were held by approximately
3,400 stockholders.

From April 20, 2000 to July 14, 2003, our common stock was listed on The NASDAQ Small Cap Market under the symbol EUNI. From
July 15, 2003 to September 2, 2003 our common stock was listed under the symbol EUNIE due to the failure to timely file our fiscal year
2003 Annual Report on Form 10-K. On May 6, 2003, NASDAQ halted trading in our common stock and on September 2, 2003 NASDAQ
delisted our stock. Since September 2, 2003, trading in our common stock has been quoted on the Pink Sheets under the symbol EUNI.PK. On
March 31, 2004, the closing bid price per share of our common stock was $2.20. Pink Sheet quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without
retail mark-up, mark-down or commissions, and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

The following table sets forth the range of low and high bid quotations for our common stock based on published financial sources:

Quarter Ending Low High

March 31, 2004
$1.52 $2.75

December 31, 2003
1.60 2.65

September 30, 2003
1.51 2.26

June 30, 2003
3.40 6.01

March 31, 2003
4.23 7.30

December 31, 2002
2.07 6.23

September 30, 2002
2.67 6.15

June 30, 2002
3.79 6.78

Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends and have no intention to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Our
present policy is to retain earnings, if any, to finance future growth.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information in the Proxy Statement regarding our equity compensation plans under the caption �Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management� for the 2004 annual meeting of stockholders to be held on August 31, 2004 (�Proxy Statement�) is
incorporated herein by reference.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On April 2, 2003, the Company issued 1,152 shares of common stock in a net issuance exercise of a warrant to purchase 1,875 shares of
Company common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share originally issued to a Series A preferred stockholder on March 26, 2001.

On April 2, 2003, the Company issued 5,382 shares of common stock in a net issuance exercise of warrants to purchase 8,125 shares of
Company common stock at an exercise price of $1.75 per share originally issued to Series A preferred stockholders on October 22, 2001.
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On April 8, 2003, the Company issued 9,604 shares of common stock in a net issuance exercise of warrants to purchase 15,625 shares of
Company common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share originally issued to Series A preferred stockholders on March 26, 2001.

On April 17, 2003, the Company issued 11,934 shares of common stock in a net issuance exercise of a warrant to purchase 18,750 shares
of Company common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share originally issued to a Series A preferred stockholder on April 16, 2001.

On April 21, 2003, the Company issued 1,729 shares of common stock in a net issuance exercise of a warrant to purchase 2,813 shares
of Company common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share originally issued to a Series A preferred stockholder on March 27, 2001.

On May 2, 2003, the Company issued 112,492 shares of common stock in a net issuance exercise of warrants to purchase 185,000 shares
of Company common stock at an exercise price of $2.10 per share originally issued to a consultant on January 2, 2001.

On October 31, 2003, the Company sold 5,333,000 shares Series C convertible preferred stock to VantagePoint for $8 million. The
Series C preferred stockholders are paid an 8% annual dividend in additional Series C preferred stock for one year and on December 31, 2003
and March 31, 2004, we issued an aggregate of 177,000 additional shares as dividends. The Company has given demand registration rights to
VantagePoint for this unregistered preferred stock.

On November 13, 2003, as partial consideration for the application download and content distribution agreements with Sharman
Networks, Ltd., the Company issued Sharman Networks 500,000 shares of Company common stock valued at $975,000. The Company has
given piggy back registration rights to Sharman Networks for this unregistered common stock.

On November 18, 2003, the Company sold 1,643,000 shares of common stock to existing and new stockholders for $1.50 per share
generating approximately $2.4 million of proceeds. The Company has given piggy back registration rights to the holders of this unregistered
common stock.

On January 15, 2004, the Company issued a one year warrant to purchase 150,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $1.87
per share to a former consultant. The warrant was issued in settlement of amounts due for services provided by the consultant.

The issuances of securities were made in reliance upon the exemptions from registration set forth in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of
1933 and/or Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder for transactions not involving a public offering. No underwriters were engaged
in connection with the issuances of securities. These transactions were made without general solicitation or advertising. Each purchaser was an
accredited investor or a sophisticated investor with access to all relevant information necessary to evaluate the investment and who
represented to the Company that the securities were being acquired for investment.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On October 14, 2003, the Registrant accepted 26,704 shares of common stock at $2.39 per share from the Company�s Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and the Company�s President in connection with agreements to repay bonuses paid in fiscal year 2003. The
Registrant did not repurchase any other equity securities in fiscal year 2004.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data are derived from our audited financial statements for fiscal years 2000 to 2004. The historical
results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any future period. The data below should be read in conjunction with
Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements and the
related notes to consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Prior year operating expense
information was reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Revenues
$57,318 $65,742 $33,196 $15,668 $1,842

Cost of revenues
13,766 17,264 5,837 � 154

Gross profit
43,552 48,478 27,359 15,668 1,688

Operating expenses:

Marketing and sales
24,646 24,563 6,364 9,532 1,441

Product development
6,854 8,342 3,618 2,321 1,140

General and administrative
17,179 14,510 10,733 6,288 5,709

Restatement professional fees
4,771 � � � �

Amortization of other intangible assets
1,291 1,141 508 3,521 17

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets
1,200 130 � 14,474 �

Total operating expenses
55,941 48,686 21,223 36,136 8,307
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Operating income (loss)
(12,389) (208 ) 6,136 (20,468) (6,619 )

Interest expense, net
(478 ) (590 ) (525 ) (6,333 ) 61

Cancellation of stock options
� (452 ) � � �

Gain on debt extinguished
� 1,266 � � �

Other gains and (losses)
� 365 (231 ) (321 ) 4

Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxes

(12,867) 381 5,380 (27,122) (6,554 )

Income taxes
(20 ) (63 ) � � �

Income (loss) from continuing operations
(12,887) 318 5,380 (27,122) (6,554 )

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
(252 ) 235 285 (13,917) (4,514 )

Net income (loss)
(13,139) 553 5,665 (41,039) (11,068)

Preferred stock dividends and liquidation preference
(329 ) (77 ) (205 ) � �

Income (loss) to common stockholders
$(13,468) $476 $5,460 $(41,039) $(11,068)

Income (loss) per common share:

Continuing operations
$(0.48 ) $0.01 $0.25 $(1.50 ) $(0.42 )

Discontinued operations
(0.01 ) 0.01 0.01 (0.77 ) (0.29 )
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Basic income (loss) per common share
$(0.49 ) $0.02 $0.26 $(2.27 ) $(0.71 )

Diluted income (loss) per common share
$(0.49 ) $0.02 $0.22 $(2.27 ) $(0.71 )
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Balance Sheet Data
(In thousands)

March 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Cash and cash equivalents
$6,245 $4,663 $8,008 $ 219 $2,323

Working capital (deficit)
782 1,590 4,196 (6,569 ) (787 )

Total assets
37,887 39,929 34,578 11,879 37,778

Long term debt and capital lease
obligations

33 2,727 3,028 3,041 �

Stockholders� equity (deficit)
21,750 23,436 20,676 (1,558 ) 30,739

Item 7. Management��s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Recent Events

In December 2003, Brad Greenspan resigned as a director and sued the Company and the Board of Directors in the Chancery Court of
Delaware. In January 2004, Mr. Greenspan dropped all of his claims. In addition, in January 2004 Mr. Greenspan proposed a slate of director
nominees in opposition to the incumbent director nominees proposed by the Board of Directors. At the January 29, 2004 stockholder�s
meeting, the incumbent director nominees were re-elected by the Company�s stockholders. One other matter related to the VantagePoint
Series C preferred stock sale proposed by the Board of Directors and opposed by Mr. Greenspan was also approved by the Company�s
stockholders at the January 29, 2004 stockholder�s meeting. The Company and Mr. Greenspan have each sued each other regarding matters
related to the January 29, 2004 stockholder�s meeting. On May 3, 2004, both the Company and Mr. Greenspan dismissed their lawsuits,
without prejudice, in order to avoid proceeding with the litigation until the parties had the opportunity to pursue an out of court resolution of
the issues. In the event no resolution is reached, the Company and Mr. Greenspan are free to reinstate their lawsuits and pursue their
respective claims.

On February 23, 2004, the Board of Directors appointed our new Chief Executive Officer, Richard Rosenblatt. We entered into an
employment agreement with Mr. Rosenblatt. Mr. Rosenblatt was also appointed to the Board of Directors on February 23, 2004.

On May 31, 2004, Bradley Ward resigned from the Board of Directors and on June 1, 2004, James Quandt was appointed to the Board
of Directors.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect our reported assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other assumptions we believe to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Future events, however, may differ markedly from our current expectations and assumptions. While
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there are a number of significant accounting policies affecting our consolidated financial statements, we believe that goodwill and other
intangible assets impairment, revenue recognition and reserves for accounts receivable, inventories, sales returns and deferred tax assets are
critical accounting policies involving the most complex, difficult and subjective estimates and judgments.

Goodwill and other intangible assets impairment

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, and whenever events or
circumstances suggest that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Intangible assets with
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definite useful lives are tested for impairment whenever events or circumstances suggest that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Events or circumstances which could trigger an impairment review include a significant adverse change in business climate, an adverse action
or assessment by a regulator, unanticipated competition, a loss of key personnel, significant changes in the manner of our use of acquired
assets, the strategy for our overall business, or significant negative industry or economic trends.

Our principal consideration in determining impairment includes the strategic benefit to the Company of the particular assets as measured
by expected future cash flows. An impairment loss would be reported to the extent that the carrying value of the assets exceeds the fair value
as determined by discounted future cash flows.

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2004, the ResponseBase business unit�s revenues declined $7.1 million compared to the same period
last year. We recorded a $1.2 million impairment charge in the third quarter of fiscal year 2004 due to the significant reduction in
ResponseBase�s revenues. We performed our annual goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives impairment evaluation
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004. No other indicators of impairment, other than the ResponseBase impairment that was recorded in
the third quarter of fiscal year 2004, were identified in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the price is fixed or determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the service is performed or
the product is shipped and collectability of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

We recognize revenue on shipment of products or provision of services. Revenue includes shipping and handling charges. Product
warehousing and fulfillment is handled internally or is outsourced to independent third-parties.

Revenues for subscriptions and memberships to our Internet websites are recognized ratably as earned over the term of the subscription
or membership. Upon commencement of the subscription or membership, we record deferred revenue for the fee charged. This deferred
revenue is then recognized ratably over the period of the arrangement. Service revenue also includes fees from the sale of non-refundable
dating credits, which are recognized in the period the consumer uses the dating credit.

Advertising revenue is earned from the sale of banner and button advertisements, pop-up and other Web-based advertising, and
sponsorships of E-mail newsletters or parts of our websites. We recognize revenue from the sale of our banner and button advertisements,
pop-up and other Web-based advertising in the period delivered. The arrangements are evidenced either by an insertion order or contract that
stipulates the types of advertising to be delivered and pricing. Under certain arrangements, we charge fees to merchants based on the number
of users who click on an advertisement or text link to visit websites of our merchant partners, which we refer to as a �click-through�. Click-
through arrangements are evidenced by a contract that stipulates the click-through fee. The fee becomes fixed and determinable upon delivery
of the click-through and these revenues are recognized in the period in which the click-through is delivered to the merchant. Revenues relating
to E-mail newsletters are derived from delivering advertisements to E-mail lists for advertisers and websites. Agreements are primarily short-
term and revenues are recognized as services are delivered provided that we have no significant remaining obligations. In certain
arrangements, we sell banner advertising, click-through programs, and E-mail newsletter or website sponsorships to customers as part of a
bundled arrangement. For these arrangements, we allocate revenue to each deliverable based on the relative fair value of each deliverable.
Revenue is recognized in these arrangements as we deliver on our obligation.

We occasionally purchase a product or service from a vendor and at the same time we sell advertising or other services to the vendor.
These barter transactions are recorded at the lower of the estimated fair value of the advertisements received or the estimated fair value of the
advertisements given, with the difference recorded as an advance or prepaid expense. The related advertising expense is recorded in cost of
revenues.
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Reserve for uncollectible accounts receivable

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts to reduce billed accounts receivable to estimated realizable value. A considerable
amount of judgment is required when we assess the realization of accounts receivable, including assessing the probability of collection and the
current credit-worthiness of each customer. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, an additional provision for doubtful accounts could be required. We initially record a provision for doubtful
accounts based on our historical experience, and then adjust this provision at the end of each reporting period based on a detailed assessment
of our accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts. In estimating the provision for doubtful accounts, we consider the aging of the
accounts receivable, trends within and ratios involving the age of the accounts receivable, the customer mix in each of the aging categories
and the nature of the receivable, our historical provision for doubtful accounts, the credit worthiness of the customer, economic conditions of
the customer�s industry, and general economic conditions, among other factors.

Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory

The quantities of inventory on hand and their values are reviewed periodically for potentially excess and obsolete product or pricing.
Consequently, we maintain an allowance for excess and obsolete inventory to reduce cost to estimated realizable value. A considerable
amount of judgment is required when we assess the realization of inventory, including assessing the probability of sale and the current market
demand for each product. If actual market conditions for our products differ from those projected by management, and our estimates prove to
be inaccurate, additional write downs or adjustments to cost of revenues may be required.

Reserve for sales returns

We maintain an allowance for estimated customer sales returns. In determining the estimate of products that will be returned, we analyze
historical returns, current economic trends, changes in customer demand and acceptance of our products, known returns we have not received
and other assumptions. Similarly, we record reductions to revenue for the estimated future credits to our advertising customers in the event
that delivered advertisements do not meet contractual specifications. Should the actual amount of product returns or advertising credits differ
from our estimates, adjustments to revenues may be required.

Reserve for deferred tax assets

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the liability method for accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected
to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. We then assess the
likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income. To the extent that we believe that recovery is not assured,
we establish a valuation allowance. When this allowance is established, or increases or decreases in the future, we increase or decrease our
income tax expense. If our estimate of the likelihood of future taxable income proves to be incorrect, adjustments to income tax expense could
be required. At March 31, 2004, we fully reserved our deferred tax assets since we believe that realization is not reasonably assured.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth consolidated statement of operations data expressed as a percentage of revenues:

Years Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Revenues:

Product marketing
50.8 % 52.9 % 25.9 %

Network
49.2 47.1 74.1

100.0 100.0 100.0

Cost of revenues:

Product marketing
19.1 25.4 17.6

Network
4.9 0.8 �

24.0 26.2 17.6

Operating expenses:

Marketing and sales
43.0 37.3 19.2

Product development
12.0 12.7 10.9

General and administrative
30.0 22.2 32.3

Restatement professional fees
8.3 � �

Amortization of other intangible assets
2.2 1.7 1.5
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Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets
2.1 0.2 �

Total operating expenses
97.6 74.1 63.9

Operating income (loss)
(21.6 ) (0.3 ) 18.5

Interest expense, net
(0.8 ) (0.9 ) (1.6 )

Cancellation of stock options
� (0.7 ) �

Gain on debt extinguished
� 1.9 �

Other gains and (losses)
� 0.6 (0.7 )

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes
(22.4 ) 0.6 16.2

Income taxes
� (0.1 ) �

Income (loss) from continuing operations
(22.4 ) 0.5 16.2

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
(0.5 ) 0.3 0.9

Net income (loss)
(22.9 )% $0.8 % $17.1 %

Revenues

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

Revenues declined 13% to $57.3 million in fiscal year 2004 from $65.7 million in fiscal year 2003. The decline in revenues was
attributable to both business segments with the product marketing segment producing $29.1 million in revenues in fiscal year 2004 compared
to $34.7 million in fiscal year 2003, and the network segment producing $28.2 million in revenues in fiscal year 2004 compared to $31.0
million in fiscal year 2003.
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For fiscal year 2004, product marketing segment revenues decreased by 16% to $29.1 million compared to the same period last year.
The Performance Marketing Group business unit produced $6.7 million in increased revenues in fiscal year 2004 compared to fiscal year 2003
due to higher continuity program sales in the current year. ResponseBase product revenues declined by $7.0 million in fiscal year 2004
compared to fiscal year 2003 due to lower seasonal and limited life products in the current year. We also experienced a $6.0 million decline in
revenues at our ink cartridge business unit in fiscal year 2004 due to lower spending on the acquisition of new customers.
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For fiscal year 2004, network segment revenues decreased by 9% to $28.2 million compared to the same period last year. The decrease
in revenues was due to significantly lower commercial E-mail advertising revenues and a greater use of advertising inventory by other
business units, partially offset by $3.3 million of additional advertising revenues from application downloads. We also realized $4.0 million of
higher revenues at our Skill Jam and Cases Ladder businesses due to a significant increase in the number of customers. ResponseBase
advertising revenues were $3.9 million in fiscal years 2004 and 2003.

We occasionally enter into barter or non-cash advertising transactions where we exchange advertising on our websites for similarly
valued online advertising or other services. We typically use barter transactions to test prospective media and advertising purchases or sales
campaigns with the anticipation of additional advertising business. There was no barter revenue in fiscal year 2004. In fiscal year 2003, the
barter revenue was $888,000 or 1.4% of our revenues.

Fiscal Year 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year 2002

Revenues increased $32.5 million to $65.7 million, up from $33.2 million for fiscal year 2002. The revenue growth was primarily
attributable to growth in product marketing segment revenues, which produced $34.7 million of revenues for fiscal year 2003 compared to
$8.6 million in revenues in fiscal year 2002. Network segment revenues also contributed to the overall growth in revenues, increasing to $31.0
million in fiscal year 2003 from $24.6 million in fiscal year 2002.

For fiscal year 2003, the increase in product marketing segment revenues was attributable to the increase in e-commerce transactions at
our Performance Marketing Group business unit, the Company�s acquisition of ResponseBase in September 2002, and increased spending on
new customer acquisition by our ink cartridge business. Revenues at these business units increased by $13.7 million, $10.1 million and $1.9
million, respectively. Network segment revenues also increased in fiscal year 2003 due to the Company�s acquisition of ResponseBase in
September 2003 and an increase in revenues at our Skill Jam and Cases Ladder business units. Revenues at these business units increased by
$3.9 million and $2.0 million, respectively. Network segment revenues were also impacted by an increase in available advertising space from
newly launched and acquired websites, but this increase was substantially offset by a significant decrease in commercial e-mail advertising
revenue during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003 and by the allocation of a greater percentage of available advertising inventory to
promote the Company�s own products and services. In fiscal year 2003, the value of barter revenue was $888,000 or 1.4% of our revenues. In
fiscal year 2002, the Company had $645,000 of barter revenue which was 1.9% of our revenues.

Cost of Revenues

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

Cost of revenues are primarily associated with the product marketing segment and consist of the cost of products, list rental fees,
warehouse and shipping costs, game prizes and credit card fees. The cost of revenues decreased to $13.8 million in fiscal year 2004 from
$17.3 million in fiscal year 2003 due to lower revenues. The gross profit margin of the product marketing segment was 62% in fiscal year
2004 compared to 52% last fiscal year. The gross profit margin improvement was due to cost reductions and a greater percentage of revenues
by the Performance Marketing Group business unit which has a lower cost of revenues, partially offset by higher product costs by the ink
cartridge business unit. Cost of network segment revenues was $2.8 million in fiscal year 2004 compared to $563,000 last year. The $1.5
million increase in cost of revenues at the Skill Jam and Cases Ladder business units was the primary reason for the increase in cost of
revenues for the network segment. We expect the gross profit margin for the product marketing segment to be approximately 65% in fiscal
year 2005.

Fiscal Year 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year 2002

The cost of revenues increased to $17.3 million in fiscal year 2003 from $5.8 million in fiscal year 2002. The mix of fiscal year 2003
products sold was changed by the September 2002 acquisition of ResponseBase and
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higher revenues by the Performance Marketing Group business unit. The gross profit margin of the product marketing segment increased to
52% in fiscal year 2003 compared to 32% in fiscal year 2002.

Marketing and Sales

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

Marketing and sales costs consist primarily of fees paid to third parties for media space, bad debts, ad shared-revenue arrangements,
promotional and advertising costs, personnel costs, commissions, agency and consulting fees and allocated overhead costs. The Company also
has a direct sales force that sells our inventory of advertising to advertisers and advertising agencies.

Marketing and sales costs were $24.6 million in fiscal years 2004 and 2003, but were 43% of revenues for fiscal year 2004 compared to
37% of revenues for fiscal year 2003. Media space costs decreased by $3.9 million and advertising costs decreased by $750,000 in fiscal year
2004 due to the elimination of unprofitable media buys. Salary expense increased by $1.7 million due to additional personnel in fiscal year
2004 and royalty expense increased by $1.1 million in fiscal year 2004 due to higher affiliate revenue sharing arrangements.

We plan to concentrate the efforts of our direct sales, marketing and customer care teams during fiscal year 2005 to increase customer
continuity program retention and drive new network revenue growth. The Company�s strategy is to develop a longer-term relationship with its
customers and enhance the lifetime value of each relationship. We expect marketing and sales costs will increase in fiscal year 2005 compared
to fiscal year 2004, but should decrease to about 37% of revenues.

Fiscal Year 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year 2002

Marketing and sales costs increased to $24.6 million or 37% of revenues for fiscal year 2003 from $6.4 million or 19% of revenues for
fiscal year 2002. The $18.2 million increase in fiscal year 2003 was primarily due to a $14.4 million increase in media space costs to market
the Company�s products and services. Salary expense also increased by $2.8 million as a result of additional staffing for fiscal year 2003 and
bad debt expense increased by $529,000 due to collection issues at one business unit.

Product Development

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

Product development costs consist of payroll and related expenses for developing and maintaining the Company�s websites, developing
and maintaining key proprietary technology, and developing proprietary products and services. Product development costs decreased to $6.9
million or 12% of revenues for fiscal year 2004, from $8.3 million or 13% of revenues for fiscal year 2003. The $1.5 million decrease was a
result of $2.0 million of lower salaries and consulting services due to a reduction in development capacity in fiscal year 2004, partially offset
by higher license fees and other costs. We expect product development costs in fiscal year 2005 will remain about the same as fiscal year
2004.

Fiscal Year 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year 2002

Product development costs increased to $8.3 million or 13% of revenues for fiscal year 2003, from $3.6 million or 11% of revenues for
fiscal year 2002. The $4.7 million increase was primarily a result of a $3.3 million increase in salaries and a $958,000 increase in consulting
fees due an increase in development capacity to support the expansion in network traffic, website development and product and service
development.
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General and Administrative

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

General and administrative costs consist of payroll and related costs for executive, finance, legal, human resources and administrative
personnel, recruiting and professional fees, internet, rent, depreciation and amortization and other general corporate expenses. General and
administrative costs increased to $17.2 million, amounting to 30% of revenues for fiscal year 2004, from $14.5 million or 22% of revenues for
fiscal year 2003. Salaries expense decreased $967,000 in fiscal year 2004 compared to fiscal year 2003 due to reduced headcount. In addition,
$1.3 million of contested-proxy costs negatively impacted fiscal year 2004, partially offset by the reversal of a $534,000 royalty accrual due to
the favorable settlement of an audit and the $200,000 refund of prior year officer bonuses. Depreciation and amortization of property and
equipment increased $394,000 in fiscal year 2004 compared to fiscal year 2003 due to fixed asset additions.

As a percent of revenues, general and administrative costs increased to 30% in fiscal year 2004 from 22% in fiscal year 2003 because
most general and administrative costs are relatively fixed. For fiscal year 2005, the Company anticipates that general and administrative costs
will increase overall, but will be decrease to about 25% of revenues.

Fiscal Year 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year 2002

General and administrative costs increased to $14.5 million or 22% of revenues for fiscal year 2003, from $10.7 million or 32% of
revenues for fiscal year 2002. The $3.8 million increase was due primarily to a $1.0 million increase in the number of management, legal and
finance personnel, a $779,000 expansion of facilities and a $1.0 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense due to fixed asset
additions.

Restatement Professional Fees

We incurred approximately $4.8 million of restatement professional fees in fiscal year 2004. These costs consist of legal expenses,
including litigation, regulatory and Audit Committee investigation costs, additional auditing costs and consultants and temporary personnel to
assist in the restatement of our financial statements for the first three quarters of fiscal year 2003. These costs are expected to continue,
although at a much lower rate into fiscal year 2005. Certain of our litigation costs are now being reimbursed by our insurance carrier. We do
not know how long the litigation and regulatory matters will continue or how much each will cost.

Amortization of Other Intangible Assets and Impairment of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In fiscal years 2004 and 2003, amortization of other intangible assets was $1.3 million and $1.1 million, respectively. In fiscal year 2003,
we made a change from an indefinite life to a definite life of 7 years for intangible assets associated with the eUniverse Network. We recorded
$508,000 of amortization of other intangible assets in fiscal year 2002.

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2004, the ResponseBase division�s revenues declined $7.1 million compared to the same period last
year. We recorded a $1.2 million impairment charge in the third quarter of fiscal year 2004 and reduced goodwill by $556,000 and other
intangible assets by $644,000 due to the significant reduction in ResponseBase�s revenues. The impairment charge was computed by
comparing discounted future cash flows of the ResponseBase business to the book value of the ResponseBased business. In January 2004, we
merged the ResponseBase products business into our Performance Marketing Group and we merged the ResponseBase advertising business
into our Flowgo business unit. In fiscal year 2003, based on the discounted cash flow method, the Company recognized a $130,000
impairment of other intangible assets related to the websites PokemonVillage.com, JustPigs.com and DustCloud.com. We did not recognize
any impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets in fiscal year 2002.
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Non-Operating Income (Expense)

In fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recorded $478,000, $590,000 and $525,000 of net interest expense on debt obligations and
capitalized lease obligations. In fiscal year 2003, we recognized a $1.3 million gain on the extinguishment of debt and $452,000 of cost related
to the cancellation of 910,000 stock options. Other gains and (losses) for fiscal years 2003 and 2002 were $365,000 and ($231,000),
respectively and consisted of a number of smaller items.

Income Taxes

The Company recorded a $20,000 and $63,000 provision for state income taxes for fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively. Federal net
operating loss carry forwards were available to offset fiscal year 2003 and 2002 taxable income. State net operating loss carry forwards were
available to offset fiscal year 2002 income, but were not available in fiscal year 2003 due to the temporary suspension of net operating loss
carry forwards by the State of California.

The Company has net operating losses carried-forward since inception. Our net operating loss carry forwards begin to expire in 2021.
Due to uncertainties regarding realization of the deferred tax assets, we provided a full valuation allowance on the net deferred tax assets.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

In fiscal year 2004, we sold the assets of the Body Dome fitness product line and realized a $225,000 gain on sale. This product line had
$6,229,000 in revenues and $6,706,000 in costs and expenses in fiscal year 2004. Prior year operations were not significant.

For fiscal years 2003 and 2002, the income from the discontinued operations was due primarily to the favorable settlement of certain
liabilities related to operations discontinued in fiscal year 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities was ($7.6) million in fiscal year 2004, $2.5 million in fiscal year 2003 and $7.2
million in fiscal year 2002. The net cash used in operating activities in fiscal year 2004 was primarily due to the loss from operations including
the costs associated with the accounting restatement, the cash advances to Sharman Networks and a decrease in current liabilities, partially
offset by an impairment charge and non-cash expenses. Net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal year 2003 consisted primarily of
net income, non-cash expenses and an increase in current liabilities, partially offset by a non-cash gain on extinguishment of debt and an
increase in current assets. Net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal year 2002 consisted primarily of net income and an increase in
current liabilities, partially offset by an increase in current assets.

Net cash used in investing activities was $563,000 in fiscal year 2004, $7.4 million in fiscal year 2003 and $3.2 million in fiscal year
2002. Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal year 2004 was due to the purchase of computer equipment, partially offset by the reduction
in a certificate of deposit used to secure a capital lease obligation. Net cash used by investing activities in fiscal year 2003 was primarily due
to the acquisition of ResponseBase, purchases of computer equipment and intangible assets, and an increase in a certificate of deposit used to
secure a capital lease obligation. Net cash used by investing activities in fiscal year 2002 was due to purchases of computer equipment and
intangible assets.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $9.8 million in fiscal year 2004, $1.5 million in fiscal year 2003 and $3.8 million in fiscal
year 2002. Net cash provided by financing activities in the fiscal year 2004 was due to the proceeds from the $2.0 million loan and $8 million
sale of preferred stock to VantagePoint and proceeds from the issuance of common stock, including a $2.4 million common stock sale in
November 2003,
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partially offset by the repayment of capital lease and debt obligations. Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal year 2003 was
primarily due to proceeds from sale and lease back transactions and proceeds from the exercise of stock options, partially offset by the
repayment of capital lease and debt obligations. Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal year 2002 was primarily due to proceeds
from the sale of Series B preferred stock to 550 Digital Media Ventures and proceeds from the issuance of debt obligations, partially offset by
the repayment of debt obligations.

As of March 31, 2004, we had $6.2 million in cash and cash equivalents and $2.8 million in restricted cash, and $782,000 in working
capital. As of March 31, 2003, we had $4.7 million of cash and cash equivalents and $3.3 million in restricted cash, and $1.6 million in
working capital. The increase in total cash from March 31, 2003 to March 31, 2004 was due to the $10.3 million sales of common and
preferred stock and $2.0 million borrowing under a debt obligation, partially offset by the net loss for the year including the costs related to
the accounting restatement, working capital uses and repayment of capital lease and debt obligations.

On October 31, 2003, VantagePoint invested $8 million in our Company by purchasing 5,333,000 shares of a new series of convertible
preferred stock, designated Series C convertible preferred stock. VantagePoint will receive an additional 427,000 shares of Series C preferred
stock as dividends during the year ended October 31, 2004. The Company allocated 20 million shares of authorized preferred stock for the
Series C preferred stock and has reserved shares of common stock for conversion of the Series C preferred stock into common stock. In
addition, on July 15, 2003, 550 Digital Media Ventures and VantagePoint entered into an option agreement pursuant to which VantagePoint
was entitled to purchase up to 3,050,000 shares of our common stock and 1,750,000 shares of our Series B preferred stock, owned by 550
Digital Media Ventures until January 16, 2004. On October 31, 2003, the option term was extended to April 16, 2004 and VantagePoint
partially exercised the option and purchased 454,545 shares of our Series B preferred stock from 550 Digital Media Ventures. On April 16,
2004, VantagePoint exercised the remainder of the option and purchased 3,050,000 shares of our common stock and 1,295,455 shares of our
Series B preferred stock from 550 Digital media Ventures. 550 Digital Media Ventures also released the Company from any claims that it may
have, other than claims relating to the outstanding $2.4 million convertible secured promissory note held by 550 Digital Media Ventures,
including the related security interest, and any current advertising arrangements with the Company. 550 Digital Media Ventures� rights
associated with its common stock and the Series B preferred stock, including registration and voting rights, were transferred to VantagePoint
upon exercise of the option and payment of the purchase price. In connection with the transaction, 550 Digital Media Ventures waived its anti-
dilution protection, preemptive rights and rights of first refusal. 550 Digital Media Ventures agreed to and voted in favor of VantagePoint�s
investment and loan transactions at the Company�s January 29, 2004 stockholder meeting.

As consideration for the 550 Digital Media Ventures common and preferred stock option, 550 Digital Media Ventures sold to
VantagePoint a $500,000 convertible promissory note of the Company. In anticipation of the preferred stock investment, on July 15, 2003,
VantagePoint loaned $2 million to the Company. VantagePoint and the Company then terminated the $500,000 convertible promissory note
and issued to VantagePoint a new $2.5 million convertible promissory note. The $2.5 million note bears interest at 8% and is collateralized by
a security interest in all of the Company�s assets. The Company and VantagePoint also agreed that in the event that VantagePoint does not
exercise the option within 120 days of its grant, VantagePoint could, within 10 days after the expiration of such 120-day period, transfer the
option to the Company in exchange for a warrant to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company�s Series B preferred stock at $2.50 per share
expiring three years from the date of issuance. VantagePoint did not transfer the option to the Company within the 120-day period.

On October 31, 2003, VantagePoint agreed to provide a one-year senior secured $4 million bridge loan to the Company or provide a
bank guarantee of a $4 million one-year senior secured bridge loan to the Company for certain proposed business development initiatives. The
bridge loan would bear interest at the prime rate and be secured by a security interest in all of our assets that is senior to the $2.5 million
convertible note with VantagePoint and the $2.4 million convertible note with 550 Digital Media Ventures. The senior secured bridge loan
needed to be accessed by the Company by February 28, 2004, but was not. If the Company had drawn upon
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the senior secured bridge loan, for each $1 million in loan proceeds we would have received, the Company would have issued a warrant to
purchase 250,000 shares of Series C preferred stock at $2.00 per share expiring five years from the date of issuance. In addition, on October
31, 2003, the Company amended the terms of the $2.5 million note due to VantagePoint to accelerate the due date to February 10, 2004. The
Company�s stockholders subsequently approved the extension of the maturity date to October 31, 2004 and the addition of a conversion
feature to the note to allow the conversion into a prospective series of Company preferred stock at the rate of one share for each $2.00 of
principal.

In January 2004, we amended the Series C stock purchase agreement to limit the number of shares issuable on conversion if we sell
additional securities below the per share issue price, as adjusted, of the Series C preferred stock. NASDAQ has a marketplace rule that
requires listed companies to obtain stockholder approval for the issuance of new securities that represent more than 20% of outstanding
common stock. We agreed with VantagePoint that we would either obtain stockholder approval if we need to issue securities that exceed the
20% rule or alternatively pay cash to VantagePoint for the value of the securities that would otherwise be issuable. We intend to ask our
stockholders to approve the issuance of additional Series C preferred stock at our next stockholder�s meeting so that we do not need to pay
cash to VantagePoint if we were ever to issue securities below the per share issue price, as adjusted.

In connection with the VantagePoint transactions, the Company entered into a management rights agreement pursuant to which
VantagePoint is entitled to consult with and advise the Company�s management on significant business issues, inspect the Company�s books
and records and appoint a representative to attend all meetings of the Board as a non-voting observer.

We have a $2.5 million convertible note due to VantagePoint that will either be converted into Series C preferred stock by October 31,
2004 or will need to be repaid. VantagePoint controls the conversion or repayment of this note. We also have a $2.4 convertible note due to
550 Digital Media Ventures that will need to be repaid or converted into to Series B preferred stock after March 31, 2005. We control the
conversion or repayment of this note. If VantagePoint converts their note into Series C preferred stock, we intend to repay the 550 Digital
Media Ventures note. If we need to repay the VantagePoint note, we do not presently know if we will convert or repay the 550 Digital Media
Ventures note. We have enough cash and available borrowing capacity to fund our business for at least the next 12 months and repay these
two notes, if necessary.

In September 2003, we announced the hiring of an investment advisor to seek to raise capital for our newly formed subsidiary,
GameUniverse, Inc. We intended to contribute our online gaming properties, including SkillJam.com and CasesLadder.com, to GameUniverse
in connection with a capital raising transaction. In April 2004, we modified this plan and we decided to pursue the possible sale of the Skill
Jam gaming property and retain our other gaming properties. There can be no assurance that the sale of Skill Jam will be successful or what
the sales proceeds or timing of receipt might be. The amount of proceeds from the sale of the Skill Jam gaming property, if any, may have an
impact on our decision to convert or repay the 550 Digital Media Ventures note.

In November 2003, a newly formed Company subsidiary signed application download and content distribution agreements with
Sharman Networks, Ltd. The subsidiary agreed to provide an aggregate $2.3 million of non-refundable cash advances to Sharman Networks at
various dates and additional monthly cash advances for at least one year that are recoupable against a sharing of revenues. The Company also
issued Sharman Networks 500,000 shares of eUniverse common stock. Sharman Networks agreed to bundle two of the Company�s
applications with other applications that are downloaded from the Internet with the Kazaa Media Desktop. Sharman Networks also agreed to
include channel links on the Kazaa Media Desktop to content provided by the Company. The Company has guaranteed the obligations of the
newly formed Company subsidiary. We have made all of the initial advances required under these agreements. We expect to continue to make
minor additional monthly cash advances over the remaining term of one agreement.

At March 31, 2004, the Company had no off-balance sheet financing arrangements or undisclosed liabilities related to special purpose,
related party, or unconsolidated entities.
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Contractual Obligations

We have outstanding notes payable maturing at various dates through March 31, 2005. We also lease facilities and equipment under
various capital and operating lease agreements expiring at various dates through March 2008.

Our material contractual obligations at March 31, 2004 are as follow (in thousands):

Total

Amounts

Committed

March 31,

2005

March 31,

2006 Thereafter

Convertible note payable to 550 Digital Media Ventures
$ 2,404 $ 2,404 $ � $ �

Note payable to SFX Entertainment, Inc.
320 320 � �

Convertible note payable to VantagePoint
2,500 2,500 � �

Capital lease obligations
537 503 24 10

Operating lease obligations
1,756 1,042 714 �

Total contractual obligations
$ 7,517 $ 6,769 $ 738 $ 10

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk represents the potential impact to our financial position, results of operations or cash flows due to adverse changes in the
financial markets. We are exposed to market risk from changes in the base interest rate of our variable rate debt. A 1% change in interest rates
would increase or decrease our annual interest expense by $25,000.

We place our cash and cash equivalents in banks with high quality standards. Cash investments consist of high quality overnight
investments that bear minor exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Financial statements required pursuant to this item are included in Part IV, Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are
presented beginning on page F-1. The supplementary financial information required by this item is included in Note 12�Unaudited Quarterly
Results of Operations of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

On April 28, 2003 the Board of Directors, through the Audit Committee, engaged Moss Adams LLP as independent auditors, replacing
Merdinger, Fruchter, Rosen & Company, P.C. (�MFR&C�).
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MFR&C�s reports on our financial statements for the two fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 did not contain an adverse opinion or
disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles.

During the two fiscal years ended March 31, 2002 and through the date of MFR&C�s dismissal, there were no disagreements with
MFR&C on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure which, if not
resolved to MFR&C�s satisfaction, would have caused MFR&C to make reference to the subject matter in connection with its report of the
financial statements for such years. There were no reportable events as defined in item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Overview

On August 22, 2003, the Company restated previously reported quarterly financial results for the first three quarters of fiscal year 2003
because of accounting errors it had previously identified in the Company�s financial statements. As a result of the discovery of the accounting
errors, management initiated an internal review of its accounting records and its accounting policies and procedures. In an effort to identify the
extent of the accounting errors, and to identify any deficiencies in the Company�s system of controls, management significantly expanded the
accounting and finance staff and retained an outside accounting firm to assist in the process. In addition, the Company�s Board of Directors
directed the Audit Committee to explore the facts and circumstances giving rise to the restatement as well as to evaluate the Company�s
accounting practices, policies and procedures. To assist with the Audit Committee review, the Audit Committee engaged the law firm of Foley
& Lardner.

During management�s and the Audit Committee�s reviews of the Company�s accounting records and procedures, and during the audit
of the Company�s financial statements for fiscal year 2003, various deficiencies in the Company�s internal controls were identified. The
Company believes such deficiencies were attributable to the following broad factors: insufficient supervision and oversight of the Company�s
accounting systems and personnel; a poorly designed, non-integrated accounting system; the rapid growth in the Company�s business
operations during the course of fiscal year 2003; difficulties in absorbing and integrating the acquisition of a sizable e-commerce company,
ResponseBase LLC, during the third and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2003; the loss of critical personnel; and limited human resources in the
Company�s accounting and financial reporting function with which to respond to the Company�s increased business scale and growing
complexity.

In response to the matters identified by management�s and the Audit Committee�s reviews, the Company implemented a number of
remedial and other actions designed to improve its accounting and financial reporting procedures and controls. Actions designed to broadly
strengthen the functioning and oversight of the accounting function have included:

� a significant expansion of the resources of the accounting department, nearly doubling the staff size and replacing all accounting
personnel with individuals of greater experience;

� the replacement of the leadership of the department with a new controller who has experience with the challenges of system and
business scaling;

� the appointment of Lawrence Moreau, a Certified Public Accountant, to the Company�s Board of Directors and to serve as the
Audit Committee Chair; and,

� the appointment of Thomas Flahie, our Chief Financial Officer, to fill the vacancy resulting from the departure of Joseph Varraveto,
who resigned effective August 19, 2003.

The Company also implemented or strengthened specific internal controls, including:

� the segregation of accounting duties;

� the reconciliation of all material balance sheet accounts;

� reorganizing and upgrading its accounting systems and processes, and the storage of backup data;

� enhanced levels of authorization for transactions;

� limiting access to various accounting modules;

� improving the processing of transactional documentation;
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� augmenting cash management controls;

� enhancing inventory controls;
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� redesigning the sales order process; and,

� creation of a process for documenting accounting policies and procedures at the time of implementation.

Finally, the Company is continuing to implement a new integrated financial reporting system that is more appropriate to the size and
complexity of the Company�s current business operations.

Pending full implementation of an integrated financial reporting system, the Company has adopted supplemental control measures to
ensure that the financial statements and other financial information included in the reports it files with the Securities and Exchange
Commission fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for,
the periods presented. The Company expects that full implementation of its integrated financial reporting system will render these
supplemental control measures redundant.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls or
our internal controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system�s objectives will be met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any,
within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and
that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls also can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by
collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and we cannot assure you that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all
potential future conditions. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected.

The Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as of the end of the period covered by this report. This
evaluation was done under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer. As part of their controls evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer considered the results of the
Audit Committee review of the matters leading to the accounting restatement.

Based in part on the foregoing, the Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of March
31, 2004, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information the Company is required to disclose in the reports
that it files with the Securities and Exchange Commission was recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Changes to Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The changes to the Company�s internal controls identified above are intended, and have been undertaken by the Company, to enhance
the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control procedures. These steps constitute significant changes in internal control over financial
reporting. We will continue to evaluate the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting
on an ongoing basis, and will take further action as appropriate.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Officers of the Registrant

Information with respect to directors may be found under the caption �Nominees for Election of Directors� in our Proxy Statement. This
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Our officers as of March 31, 2004 were as follows:

Name Age Position with the Company

Richard Rosenblatt
35 Chief Executive Officer

Brett Brewer
31 President

Thomas Flahie
47 Chief Financial Officer

Adam Goldenberg
23 President, Performance Marketing Group

Christopher Lipp
32

Secretary, Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Michael Mincieli
35 Vice President, Corporate Controller

Richard Rosenblatt has served as Chief Executive Officer and a Director since February 23, 2004. He also serves as Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director of Prime Ventures, LLC and is a member of its Management Committee. Prime Ventures, LLC has
been fully invested for several years. Mr. Rosenblatt was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Supernation LLC from November
2002 to February 20, 2004 and he is currently a Director. Mr. Rosenblatt was the Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Drkoop.com,
Inc. from August 22, 2000 to December 17, 2001. Mr. Rosenblatt was the founding investor and Vice Chairman of GreatDomains and
Webmillion from November 1999 until the sale of both companies. Webmillion was acquired by L90, Inc. in July 2000 and GreatDomains
was acquired by VeriSign, Inc. in October 2000. Mr. Rosenblatt co-founded iMall, Inc. in October 1994 and became Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in June 1997. iMall, Inc. was acquired by At Home Corporation in October 1999. Until March 2000, Mr. Rosenblatt served
as At Home Corporation�s Senior Vice President of E-Business Services. Mr. Rosenblatt received a B.A. degree from the University of
California at Los Angeles and a J.D. degree from the University of Southern California Law School.

Brett Brewer has served as President and a Director since August 29, 2000. He joined the Company in April 1999 and was named Vice
President of its e-Commerce Division in December 1999 and named President of CD Universe, Inc., a subsidiary of eUniverse, in July 2000.
Prior to joining eUniverse, Mr. Brewer helped run the Southern California Retail Sales Division of CB Richard Ellis between October 1996
and December 1998. Mr. Brewer received a B.A. degree in business/economics from the University of California at Los Angeles.

Thomas Flahie has served as Chief Financial Officer since August 25, 2003 and as a Director and President of the Company�s
subsidiary Download Solutions, Limited. He was the Chief Financial Officer of eLabor, Inc. from June 2000 to March 2003 and the Senior
Vice President of Finance and Administration of Balance Bar Company from February 1998 to March 2000. Mr. Flahie was a director of
Bariatrix Products International Incorporated, a company in which Balance Bar Company had an investment, from May 1999 to March 2000.
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From December 1978 to February 1998, he held various positions with Andersen Worldwide, an international accounting and consulting firm.
He was a partner with Andersen Worldwide for the last seven years. Mr. Flahie is a Certified Public Accountant and he received his B.S. in
Business Administration from the University of Arizona.

Adam Goldenberg has served as President of the Performance Marketing Group business unit since January 29, 2004 and was the
Company�s Chief Operating Officer from October 26, 2001 to January 29, 2004. In 1997, Mr. Goldenberg founded Gamer�s Alliance, Inc.,
an online entertainment portal, and served as its president before and after it was acquired by eUniverse in April 1999. Mr. Goldenberg served
as Vice President, Strategic Planning of eUniverse from April 1999 to October 2001.

Christopher Lipp has served as Senior Vice President and General Counsel since October 26, 2001, Vice President, General Counsel
since May 1, 2001, Secretary since March 30, 2001 and Vice President, Business and
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Legal Affairs since January 11, 2000. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Lipp was employed as an attorney in the Intellectual Property Group
of Pillsbury Madison & Sutro LLP in Los Angeles, California. He has been a member of the California State Bar since 1997. Mr. Lipp
received his J.D. from the University of Southern California Law School and a B.A. degree in government and sociology from Georgetown
University.

Michael Mincieli has served as Vice President, Corporate Controller since April 16, 2003, and joined the Company on January 20, 2003.
In addition, he serves as a Director and Vice President of the Company�s subsidiary Download Solutions, Limited. He was employed as Vice
President, Corporate Controller and Director of Information Systems for Media Technology Source, formerly Soundelux Entertainment
Group, from December 1997 to December 2002. Previously he was Division Controller for SLI, Inc. (NYSE: SLI). Mr. Mincieli is a member
of the AICPA and a Certified Public Accountant. He received his B.A. in Finance from Aurora University, with further education in
aeronautical and astronautical engineering at the University of Illinois, Urbana.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has determined that Larry Moreau, Chairman of the Audit Committee, and Jeffrey Edell, Audit Committee
Member, are audit committee financial experts as defined in Item 401(h) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (�Exchange
Act�) and that all Audit Committee members are independent within the meaning of Item 7(d)(3)(iv) of Schedule 14A of the Exchange Act.

The Audit Committee was established by the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. The Audit
Committee Members are Larry Moreau, Jeffrey Edell and Daniel Mosher.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Information in the Proxy Statement under the caption �Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance� is incorporated
herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted the eUniverse Finance Code of Conduct. This code of conduct applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Corporate Controller and accounting department management. The code of conduct is available on our website at
www.euniverse.com. If we make any substantive changes to our code of conduct or if we grant any substantive waiver to compliance with the
code of conduct, we will disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver on our website and in a report of Form 8-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information in the Proxy Statement under the captions �Executive Compensation� and �Director Compensation in Fiscal Year 2004� is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information in the Proxy Statement under the caption �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management� is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information in the Proxy Statement under the caption �Certain Relationships and Related Transactions� is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
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Information in the Proxy Statement under the caption �Fees Paid to Auditors� is incorporated herein by reference.

40

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Table of Contents

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Financial Statements and Schedules

The consolidated financial statements contained herein begin at page F-1. No schedules are included herein because they are not
applicable or not required or because the required information is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto. Separate
financial statements of 50% or less owned subsidiaries accounted for by the equity method are not summarized herein and have been omitted
because, in the aggregate, they would not constitute a significant subsidiary.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

We filed two reports on Form 8-K during the quarter ended March 31, 2004. One report was filed on February 24, 2004 and contained a
press release announcing the appointment of Richard Rosenblatt as our new Chief Executive Officer. The second report was filed on March
17, 2004 and contained a press release announcing that the Panel has denied the Company�s request for re-listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap
Market. We furnished two reports on Form 8-K during the quarter ended March 31, 2004. The first report was dated January 7, 2004 and
furnished a press release issued on January 7, 2004 that contains an open letter to eUniverse, Inc. stockholders from Jeffrey Edell, Chairman
of the eUniverse, Inc. Board of Directors. The press release contains a statement regarding expectations about net income for the quarter ended
December 31, 2003. The second report was dated February 6, 2004 and furnished a press release announcing our financial results for the
quarter ended December 31, 2003.

(c) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Title/Description

2 � Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between eUniverse, Inc., a Nevada corporation, and eUniverse, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, dated October 31, 2002.(1)

3.01 � Certificate of Incorporation of eUniverse, Inc. dated October 31, 2002.(1)

3.02 � Certificate of Designation of Series A 6% Convertible Preferred Stock of eUniverse, Inc., dated October 31, 2002.(1)

3.03 � Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Designation of Series A 6% Convertible Preferred Stock of eUniverse, Inc., dated
February 17, 2004.*

3.04 � Certificate of Designation of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of eUniverse, Inc., dated October 31, 2002.(1)

3.05 � Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Designation of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of eUniverse, Inc., dated
February 17, 2004.*

3.06 � Certificate of Designation of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of eUniverse, Inc., dated October 31, 2003.(3)

3.07 � Certificate of Designation of Series C-1 Convertible Preferred Stock of eUniverse, Inc., dated October 31, 2003.(3)

3.08 � Bylaws of eUniverse.(14)

10.01 � Entertainment Universe, Inc. Regulation D Subscription Agreement, dated as of April 1999.(5)

10.02 � Entertainment Universe, Inc. Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 1999.(5)
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit Title/Description

10.03 � eUniverse, Inc. 1999 Stock Awards Plan.(5)

10.04 � Stock Purchase Agreement by and between eUniverse, Inc. and 550 Digital Media Ventures, Inc., dated as of July 13,
2001.(7)

10.05 � Share Purchase Agreement by and among eUniverse, Inc., Indimi, L.L.C., Indimi, Inc., 550 Digital Media Ventures, Inc. and
Sony Music Entertainment, Inc., dated as of July 13, 2000.(7)

10.06 � Registration Rights Agreement by and between eUniverse, Inc. and 550 Digital Media Ventures Inc., dated as of October 23,
2001.(8)

10.07 � Letter agreement by and between eUniverse, Inc. and 550 Digital Media Ventures Inc., dated as of October 23, 2001,
regarding amendment of that certain Secured Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated September 6, 2000.(8)

10.08 � eUniverse, Inc. Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Saggi Capital Corp., dated September 25, 2001.(9)

10.09 � eUniverse, Inc. Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Bridge Ventures, Inc., dated September 25, 2001.(9)

10.10 � Form of Warrant issued to certain eUniverse, Inc. Series A Preferred Stockholders as of October 22, 2001.(10)

10.11 � eUniverse, Inc. 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.(11)

10.12 � Asset Purchase Agreement, by and among ResponseBase, LLC, Internet Products Group, LLC, TTMM, L.P., Robert G.
Rosen, Christopher DeWolfe, Tom Anderson, Pamela Schwilk, Mazen Araabi, Joshua Berman and Aber Whitcomb, dated
September 4, 2002.(12)

10.13 � Security Agreement, by and between eUniverse, Inc. and New Technology Holdings Inc. (predecessor in interest to 550
Digital Media Ventures, Inc.), dated September 6, 2001.(12)

10.14 � Third Amended and Restated Secured Convertible Promissory Note dated October 31, 2003, in the principal amount of
$2,403,528.*

10.15 � Secured Note Purchase Agreement, by and between eUniverse, Inc. and VP Alpha Holdings IV, L.L.C., dated July 15,
2003.(12)

10.16 � Form of eUniverse, Inc. Series B Preferred Stock Purchase Warrant to be issued to VP Alpha Holdings IV, L.L.C.(12)

10.17 � Option Agreement, by and among eUniverse, Inc., 550 Digital Media Ventures, Inc. and VP Alpha Holdings IV, L.L.C.,
dated July 15, 2003.(12)

10.18 � Security Agreement, by and between eUniverse, Inc. and VP Alpha Holdings IV, L.L.C., dated July 15, 2003.(12)

10.19 � Bonus Repayment Agreement, by and between eUniverse, Inc. and Brad D. Greenspan, dated August 21, 2003.(12)

10.20 � Bonus Repayment Agreement, by and between eUniverse, Inc. and Brett C. Brewer, dated August 21, 2003.(12)

10.21 � Bonus Repayment Agreement, by and between eUniverse, Inc. and Chris Lipp, dated August 21, 2003.(12)

10.22 � Series C Preferred Stock Agreement between eUniverse, Inc. and affiliates of VantagePoint Venture Partners, dated October
31, 2003.(3)
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Exhibit

Number Exhibit Title/Description

10.23 � Agreement between eUniverse, Inc. and Series C preferred stockholders, dated January 30, 2004.(2)

10.24 � Amended and Restated (Convertible) Secured Promissory Note between eUniverse, Inc. and VP Alpha Holdings IV, L.L.C.,
dated as of October 31, 2003.(4)

10.25 � Form of Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series C Preferred Stock issued to VP Alpha Holdings IV, L.L.C., dated October 31,
2003.(3)

10.26 � Voting Agreement with affiliates of VantagePoint Venture Partners, dated October 31, 2003.(3)

10.27 � 550 DMV Consent and Waiver Agreement, dated October 31, 2003.(3)

10.28 � Registration Rights Agreement between eUniverse, Inc. and affiliates of VantagePoint Venture Partners, dated October 31,
2003.(3)

10.29 � Form of Director Indemnification Agreement for David Carlick and Andrew Sheehan.(3)

10.30 � Form of Common Stock Purchase Agreement, with various investors, dated November 18, 2003.(2)

10.31 � Form of Registration Rights Agreement, with various investors, dated November 18, 2003.(2)

10.32 � Employment Agreement, with Richard Rosenblatt, dated January 23, 2004.*

10.33 � Employment Agreement with Adam Goldenberg, dated April 6, 2004.*

14 � eUniverse Finance Code of Conduct.*

16 � Letter regarding change in certifying accountant.(13)

21 � Subsidiaries of eUniverse, Inc.*

23.01 � Consent of Moss Adams LLP.*

23.02 � Consent of Merdinger, Fruchter, Rosen & Corso, PC.*

31 � Certification of the Principle Executive Officer and the Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.*

32 � Certification of the Principle Executive Officer and the Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.*

* Filed herewith.
(1) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 8-K filed on January 9, 2003.
(2) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 10-Q filed on February 12, 2004.
(3) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 8-K filed on November 6, 2003.
(4) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Definitive Proxy Statement filed on December 30, 2003.
(5) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 10 filed on June 15, 1999 (Registration File No. 0-26355).
(6) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 8-K filed on June 28, 2000.
(7) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 10-K filed on July 16, 2001.
(8) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 8-K filed on November 7, 2001.
(9) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2001.
(10) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 10-Q filed on February 14, 2002.
(11) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Definitive Proxy Statement filed on October 10, 2002.
(12) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 10-K filed on August 22, 2003.
(13) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 8-K filed on May 5, 2003.
(14) Incorporated by reference to eUniverse, Inc.�s Form 10-Q filed on November 13, 2004.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Annual
Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on June 14, 2004.

eUNIVERSE, INC.

By:
/s/ THOMAS J. FLAHIE

Thomas J. Flahie

Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this Annual Report Form 10-K has been signed on June 14, 2004 by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities indicated.

By:
/s/ RICHARD M. ROSENBLATT

Richard M. Rosenblatt

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

By:
/s/ THOMAS J. FLAHIE

Thomas J. Flahie

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer)

By:
/s/ BRETT C. BREWER

Brett C. Brewer

President and Director

By:
/s/ DANIEL L. MOSHER

Daniel L. Mosher

Director

By:
/s/ LAWRENCE R. MOREAU

Lawrence R. Moreau

Director

By:
/s/ JEFFREY S. EDELL

Jeffrey S. Edell

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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By:
/s/ DAVID S. CARLICK

David S. Carlick

Director

By:
/s/ ANDREW T. SHEEHAN

Andrew T. Sheehan

Director

By:
/s/ JAMES R. QUANDT

James R. Quandt

Director
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Independent Auditors�� Report

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of eUniverse, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of eUniverse, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004 and 2003, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
eUniverse, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Moss Adams LLP

Los Angeles, California
June 3, 2004

F-1
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Independent Auditors�� Report

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of eUniverse, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholders� equity and cash flows of eUniverse, Inc. and
Subsidiaries for the year ended March 31, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Merdinger, Fruchter, Rosen & Corso, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

New York, New York
June 14, 2002

F-2
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eUniverse, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except par value data)

March 31,

2004 2003

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
$6,245 $4,663

Restricted cash
2,116 1,842

Accounts receivable, net
3,921 4,985

Inventories, net
1,168 1,610

Prepaid expenses and other assets
3,436 1,777

Total current assets
16,886 14,877

Property and equipment, net
2,454 3,229

Goodwill
15,018 15,487

Other intangible assets, net
2,555 4,447

Deposits and other assets
974 1,889

Total assets
$37,887 $39,929

Liabilities and Stockholders�� Equity
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Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
$5,793 $5,293

Accrued expenses
3,706 4,230

Deferred revenue
892 1,126

Current portion of debt obligations
5,224 1,460

Current portion of capitalized lease obligations
489 1,178

Total current liabilities
16,104 13,287

Debt obligations, less current portion
� 2,290

Accrued interest
� 479

Capitalized lease obligations, less current portion
33 437

Total liabilities
16,137 16,493

Stockholders� equity:

Preferred stock, $0.10 par value; 40,000 shares authorized; 7,627 and 2,280 shares issued and
outstanding, respectively

763 229

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 250,000 shares authorized; 28,819 and 26,271 shares issued and
outstanding, respectively

29 26

Additional paid-in capital
82,178 70,993

Accumulated deficit
(61,220) (47,812)
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Total stockholders� equity
21,750 23,436

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity
$37,887 $39,929

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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eUniverse, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Revenues
$57,318 $65,742 $33,196

Cost of revenues
13,766 17,264 5,837

Gross profit
43,552 48,478 27,359

Operating expenses:

Marketing and sales
24,646 24,563 6,364

Product development
6,854 8,342 3,618

General and administrative
17,179 14,510 10,733

Restatement professional fees
4,771 � �

Amortization of other intangible assets
1,291 1,141 508

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets
1,200 130 �

Total operating expenses
55,941 48,686 21,223

Operating income (loss)
(12,389) (208 ) 6,136
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Interest expense, net
(478 ) (590 ) (525 )

Cancellation of stock options
� (452 ) �

Gain on debt extinguished
� 1,266 �

Other gains and (losses)
� 365 (231 )

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes
(12,867) 381 5,380

Income taxes
(20 ) (63 ) �

Income (loss) from continuing operations
(12,887) 318 5,380

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
(252 ) 235 285

Net income (loss)
(13,139) 553 5,665

Preferred stock dividends and liquidation preference
(329 ) (77 ) (205 )

Income (loss) to common stockholders
$(13,468) $476 $5,460

Income (loss) per common share:

Continuing operations
$(0.48 ) $0.01 $0.25

Discontinued operations
(0.01 ) 0.01 0.01

Basic income (loss) per common share
$(0.49 ) $0.02 $0.26
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Diluted income (loss) per common share
$(0.49 ) $0.02 $0.22

Basic weighted average common shares
27,335 24,474 21,040

Diluted weighted average common shares
27,335 31,182 26,315

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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eUniverse, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders�� Equity
(In thousands)

Preferred Stock Common Stock

Shares

Par

Value Shares

Par

Value

Paid-in

Capital

Accumulated

Deficit Total

Balance at March 31, 2001
1,455 $146 18,818 $ 19 $ 50,384 $ (52,107 ) $(1,558 )

Additional shares issued in acquisitions
� � 126 � 597 � 597

Conversion of preferred to common stock
(505 ) (50 ) 952 1 421 � 372

Cost of offering stock conversion
� � � � (372 ) � (372 )

Exercise of stock options
� � 92 � 86 � 86

Exercise of warrants
� � 128 � � � �

Common stock issued for InfoBeat
� � 3,058 3 9,937 � 9,940

Sony warrant redemption
� � 308 � 1,000 � 1,000

Cancellation of Sony warrants
� � � � (1,000 ) � (1,000 )

Issuance of preferred stock to Sony
1,923 192 � � 4,808 � 5,000

Beneficial conversion of Sony preferred stock
issued below market

� � � � 1,923 (1,923 ) �

Warrants issued to preferred stockholders in
connection with Sony transaction

� � � � 110 � 110

Warrants issued in connection with services to be
performed

� � � � 376 � 376
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Stock options granted to consultant
� � � � 85 � 85

Big Network settlement
� � 50 � 105 � 105

New shares issued to Isosceles
� � 85 � 212 � 212

Take 2 settlement agreement
� � (100 ) � � � �

Other
� � (6 ) � 58 � 58

Net income for the year ended March 31, 2002
� � � � � 5,665 5,665

Balance as of March 31, 2002
2,873 288 23,511 23 68,730 (48,365 ) 20,676

Exercise of stock options
� � 699 1 1,692 � 1,693

Employee stock purchase plan
� � 5 � 63 � 63

Redemption of warrants
� � 1,130 1 � � 1

Conversion of preferred to common stock
(593 ) (59 ) 710 1 58 � �

Conversion of note payable
� � 216 � 450 � 450

Net income for the year ended March 31, 2003
� � � � � 553 553

Balance as of March 31, 2003
2,280 229 26,271 26 70,993 (47,812 ) 23,436

Exercise of stock options
� � 73 � 149 � 149

Employee stock purchase plan
� � 9 � 47 � 47

Redemption of warrants
� � 142 � � � �
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Conversion of preferred to common stock
(163 ) (17 ) 207 � 17 � �

Repay officer bonuses
� � (26 ) � (60 ) (4 ) (64 )

Issuance of preferred stock to VantagePoint
5,333 533 � � 7,153 � 7,686

Preferred stock dividends
177 18 � � 247 (265 ) �

Issuance of common stock
� � 2,143 3 3,397 � 3,400

Stock option and warrant compensation
� � � � 235 � 235

Net loss for the year ended March 31, 2004
� � � � � (13,139 ) (13,139)

Balance as of March 31, 2004
7,627 $763 28,819 $ 29 $ 82,178 $ (61,220 ) $21,750

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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eUniverse, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Years Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Operating activities:

Net income (loss)
$(13,139) $553 $5,665

Adjustment to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment
1,738 1,344 300

Amortization of other intangible assets
1,291 1,141 508

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets
1,200 130 �

Non-cash income from discontinued operations
� (235 ) �

Gain on debt extinguished
� (1,266) �

Other non-cash charges
206 72 149

Provision for doubtful accounts
1,131 953 424

Stock and warrants granted to consultants and affiliates
235 620 517

Changes in other current assets
(167 ) (4,546) (3,453 )

Changes in current liabilities
(123 ) 3,704 2,522

Other
� 59 545
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Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
(7,628 ) 2,529 7,177

Investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment
(901 ) (2,280) (1,673 )

Purchases of intangible assets
(50 ) (911 ) (1,502 )

Deposits and other
475 (1,470) �

Acquisition of ResponseBase
(87 ) (2,733) �

Net cash used in investing activities
(563 ) (7,394) (3,175 )

Financing activities:

Proceeds from capitalized lease obligations
� 1,283 �

Repayment of capitalized lease obligations
(1,330 ) (882 ) �

Proceeds from debt obligations
2,000 � 2,263

Repayment of debt obligations
(1,140 ) (845 ) (3,510 )

Financing costs
� 207 �

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
7,686 � 5,000

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
2,408 � �

Repayment of advances from officer
� � 34
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Proceeds from exercise of stock options
149 1,757 �

Net cash provided by financing activities
9,773 1,520 3,787

Change in cash and cash equivalents
1,582 (3,345) 7,789

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
4,663 8,008 219

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
$6,245 $4,663 $8,008

Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest
$332 430 $232

Cash paid for income taxes
94 22 �

Equipment acquired under capital leases
135 1,023 �

Common stock issued to Sharman Networks
975 � �

Preferred stock dividends
265 � �

Common stock issued on conversion of note
� 450 �

Reduction of purchase price of acquired asset and related liability
� 200 �

Common stock issued in connection with acquisitions
� � 10,537

Common stock issued as settlement agreement
� � 213

Common stock issued in connection with services
� � 221
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Warrants issued in connection with services
� � 401

Warrants issued to preferred stockholders
� � 110

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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eUniverse, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. The Company and Basis of Presentation

eUniverse, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, is an Internet marketing company that offers external marketers a compelling group of
entertainment and community-oriented Internet properties and markets and distributes a select group of products and services. The Company
conducts operations from facilities located in Los Angeles, California and Mount Vernon, Washington.

The financial statements include the accounts of eUniverse, Inc. and its majority owned subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances have been eliminated. Equity investments and investments in joint ventures in which we own at least 20% of the voting securities are
accounted for using the equity method, except for investments in which the Company is not able to exercise significant influence over the
investee, in which case the cost method of accounting is used.

Note 2. Accounting Restatement

On August 22, 2003, the Company restated previously reported quarterly financial results for the first three quarters of fiscal year 2003
because of accounting errors it had identified in the Company�s financial statements. As a result of the discovery of the accounting errors,
management and the Audit Committee conducted an internal review of the Company�s accounting records and its accounting policies and
procedures to determine the cause and persons responsible for the accounting restatement. Changes in personnel, personnel supervision,
systems and accounting procedures were implemented in response to the management and Audit Committee reviews.

On May 6, 2003, NASDAQ halted trading of the Company�s common stock. On June 13, 2003, the Company received a NASDAQ
Staff Determination stating that our common stock was subject to delisting from The NASDAQ SmallCap Market due to the NASDAQ
Staff�s inability to assess the Company�s current financial position and the Company�s ability to sustain compliance with NASDAQ�s
continued listing requirements. The Company appealed the NASDAQ Staff�s determination to delist the Company�s securities to a Panel. The
Panel decided to delist the Company�s securities from The NASDAQ SmallCap Market on September 2, 2003. The Company appealed the
Panel�s decision and on March 15, 2004, the Panel decided to not re-list the Company�s common stock on The NASDAQ SmallCap Market.
The Company has appealed the Panel�s decision and is exploring other listing options.

Note 3. Accounting Policies

Estimates and assumptions

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Examples of significant estimates used in preparing the accompanying financial statements
include goodwill and other intangible assets impairment, revenue recognition, and reserves for accounts receivable, inventories, sales returns
and deferred tax assets. Actual results and outcomes may differ from management�s estimates and assumptions.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by the purchase method of accounting. Under the purchase method, the purchase price is
allocated to the underlying net assets of the business acquired based on their
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eUniverse, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements��(Continued)

respective estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. The judgments made in determining the estimated fair values and expected useful lives assigned to each class of assets and
liabilities acquired can significantly impact net income. For example, different classes of assets will have useful lives that differ.
Consequently, to the extent a longer-lived asset is assigned greater value under the purchase method than a shorter-lived asset, there may be
less amortization recorded in a given period.

Determining the fair value of certain assets and liabilities acquired is subjective in nature and often involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions. We use a one-year period following the consummation of acquisitions to finalize estimates of the fair values of
assets and liabilities acquired. Two areas in particular that require significant judgment are estimating the fair values and related useful lives of
identifiable intangible assets. While there are a number of different methods used in estimating the value of acquired intangibles, the two
primarily approaches used are the discounted cash flow method and market comparison method. Some of the more significant estimates and
assumptions inherent in the two approaches include projected future cash flows (including timing), discount rate reflecting the risk inherent in
the future cash flows, perpetual growth rate, determination of appropriate market comparables, and the determination of whether a premium or
a discount should be applied to comparables.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly-liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents. The
Company holds its cash in what it believes to be credit-worthy financial institutions, however cash balances exceed FDIC insured levels.

Restricted cash and deposits

At March 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had $1,699,000 and $1,842,000, respectively of funds held by banks as reserves against any
possible charge backs and returns on credit card transactions related to customer disputes that are not offset against the Company�s daily sales
deposit activity. These amounts are reflected as restricted cash. The Company also has $1,051,000 and $1,447,000 in certificates of deposit at
March 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively which collateralize operating and capital lease obligations. At March 31, 2004, a $417,000 certificate
of deposit was classified as restricted cash and the remaining balances at March 31, 2004 and 2003 are classified as long-term deposits.

Accounts receivable

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are believed to be limited due to the number, diversification and
character of the customers and the Company�s credit evaluation process. Typically, the Company has not required customers to provide
collateral for such obligations.

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable by applying a reserve for all accounts receivable outstanding over
60 days based upon historical experience, and a specific reserve is maintained for accounts with a high likelihood of becoming uncollectible.
Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal year

Balance at

beg. of

year

Charged

to marketing and

sales expense Deductions

Balance at

end of

year

2004
$ 1,179 $ 1,131 $ (1,600 ) $ 710

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


2003
452 953 (226 ) 1,179

2002
123 424 (95 ) 452
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements��(Continued)

Prepaid expenses

In November 2003, a newly formed Company subsidiary signed application download and content distribution agreements with
Sharman Networks, Ltd. The subsidiary agreed to provide an aggregate $2.3 million of non-refundable cash advances to Sharman Networks at
various dates and additional monthly cash advances for at least one year that are recoupable against a sharing of revenues. The Company also
agreed to issue Sharman Networks 500,000 shares of Company common stock. Sharman Networks agreed to bundle two of the Company�s
applications with other applications that are downloaded from the Internet with the Kazaa Media Desktop. Sharman Networks also agreed to
include channel links on the Kazaa Media Desktop to content provided by the Company. The Company has guaranteed the obligations of the
newly formed subsidiary. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004, we concluded that the cash advance under the content channel link
agreement would not be recouped against a sharing of the revenues and we expensed $475,000 of the cash advance. The unrecouped cash
advances and the unamortized value of the common stock that are included in prepaid expenses at March 31, 2004 was $1,787,000. The
common stock issued to the third party was valued at the closing market value on the date issued and is amortized to marketing and sales
expense over twelve months.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in, first-out method) or market value. As of March 31, 2004 and
2003, inventories consisted of finished goods. Activity in the reserve for excess and obsolete inventory is as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal year

Balance at

beg. of

year

Charged

to cost of

revenues Deductions

Balance at

end of

year

2004
$ 362 $ 459 $ � $ 821

2003
� 362 � 362

2002
� � � �

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based upon the estimated useful lives
of the assets or terms of the related capital lease agreements. Computers and equipment and purchased software are depreciated over five
years. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Costs incurred for internally generated goodwill and other intangible assets are expensed as incurred. Purchased goodwill is not
amortized. Other intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from three to seven years. In
fiscal year 2002, certain other intangible assets were considered to have indefinite lives and were not amortized. In fiscal year 2003, the
Company began amortizing the other intangible assets that had been classified as having indefinite lives.
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We assess the potential impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives in our fourth quarter or whenever events
or circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. We assess the potential impairment of intangible assets with
definite lives whenever events or circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the carrying value exceeds fair
value, an impairment loss is recognized for the excess. Fair value is determined based on the estimated future cash inflows on a discounted
basis attributable to the asset less estimated future cash outflows on a discounted basis. The assessment of the potential impairment of
goodwill and other intangible assets requires significant judgment and estimates.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements��(Continued)

Accrued expenses

Included in accrued expenses are $797,000 of accrued compensation at March 31, 2004 and $1,255,000 at March 31, 2003. In addition,
included in accrued expenses are estimated reserves for sales returns. Activity in the estimated reserves for sales returns is as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal year

Balance at

beg. of

year

Charged

to revenues Deductions

Balance at

end of

year

2004
$ 666 $ 7,994 $ (7,756 ) $ 904

2003
240 6,093 (5,667 ) 666

2002
� � � �

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying values of debt obligations and capital lease obligations approximate fair
value as the obligations were negotiated at market rates or interest was imputed at market rates for debt obligations with unstated interest.

Revenues

Product revenue is generated from the sale of herbal and all-natural ingestible and topical products, collectibles, fitness products, ink
cartridges and various niche products. For these transactions, the Company recognizes revenue upon shipment of the products. Product
revenue includes shipping and handling charges. Fulfillment for these products is handled internally or outsourced to third-parties.

Shipping and handling fees charged to customers are included in revenues, and shipping and handling costs are included in cost of
revenues. Amounts included in revenues and cost of revenues for shipping and handling were $4,340,000 and $2,108,000, respectively in
fiscal year 2004, and $3,153,000 and $3,010,000 in fiscal year 2003. Shipping and handling fees and costs were not significant in fiscal year
2002.

Subscription and non-refundable membership revenues are recognized ratably over the period that services are provided. Advertising,
commerce content and other revenues are recognized as the services are performed or when the goods are delivered. Service revenue also
includes fees from the sale of nonrefundable dating credits, which are recognized at the time of use. Deferred revenue consists primarily of
prepaid commerce and advertising, and prepaid deposits and subscription revenues billed in advance.

The Company recognizes revenue upon fulfillment and delivery of customer advertising. The Company generates advertising revenues
based on delivered quantities of advertising, action by the recipient of the advertising message, or upon revenue generation by the Company�s
customer. Revenues are recorded when delivery has occurred, the sales price is determinable and collection is probable. Third party
distribution fees are included in marketing and sales expense in the month the related advertising is earned.
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Barter transactions are recorded at the lower of the estimated fair value of advertising received or the estimated fair value of the
advertising given, with the difference recorded as an advance or prepaid expense. Barter advertising expense is recorded in cost of revenues.
During fiscal year 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company recorded $0, $888,000 and $645,000, respectively of bartered advertising revenue.
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Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for its stock option plan under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, �Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees� using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting. Compensation expense is measured at the grant date for
the difference between the fair value of the stock and the exercise price, if any. Compensation expense is recognized immediately if vesting is
at issuance or ratably over the vesting period if the options vest over time. Common stock issued to vendors is valued at the closing market
price on the date of issuance and other equity instruments granted to consultants and vendors are valued using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model.

The Company has adopted the disclosure provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148 (�SFAS 148�),
�Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation�Transition and Disclosure�. The following table illustrates the effect on income (loss) to
common stockholders and income (loss) per share to common stockholders had the Company applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS 148 to stock-based employee compensation (in thousands, except per share data):

Years ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Income (loss) to common stockholders:

As reported
$(13,468) $476 $5,460

Add stock-based compensation expense in income (loss) to common stockholders
102 � �

Less stock-based compensation expense determined by the fair value method
(3,288 ) (4,092) (3,781)

Pro form income (loss) to common stockholders
$(16,654) $(3,616) $1,679

Income (loss) per share to common stockholders:

Basic�as reported
$(0.49 ) $0.02 $0.26

Basic�pro forma
$(0.61 ) $(0.15 ) $0.08
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Diluted�as reported
$(0.49 ) $0.02 $0.22

Diluted�pro forma
$(0.61 ) $(0.15 ) $0.06

The Company�s fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 fair value calculation for pro forma purposes was made using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

2004 2003 2002

Weighed average fair value of options granted
$1.92 $4.06 $2.28

Expected volatility
125 % 86 % 97 %

Risk free interest rate
2.33%-2.88% 3.86 % 4.78 %

Expected lives
5-6 years 5 years 5 years

Dividend rate
� � �

Advertising costs

Advertising costs, except for costs associated with direct-response advertising, are charged to marketing and sales expense when
incurred. Included in marketing and sales expense for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $11,988,000, $16,654,000 and $2,884,000 of
advertising and media space costs, respectively. The costs of direct-
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response advertising are capitalized and amortized to cost of revenues over the period future benefits are expected to be received. The
Company capitalized $179,000 of direct-response advertising in fiscal year 2003. Included in discontinued operations for fiscal year 2004 is
$2,584,000 of direct response advertising costs. There were no direct-response advertising costs in fiscal years 2003 and 2002.

Income taxes

Income tax expense is based on taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred taxes on temporary differences between
amounts of income and expense that are not reported in the financial statements and income tax returns in the same year. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are included in the financial statements at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred tax
assets and liabilities are expected to be realized or settled.

Discontinued operations

In February 2004, we sold the assets of the Body Dome fitness business unit and realized a $225,000 gain on sale. This business unit had
$6,229,000 in revenues and $6,706,000 in costs and expenses in fiscal year 2004, including $13,000 of state income tax expense. Prior year
operations were not significant.

In October 2000, the Company sold the assets of the discontinued music and movie retail products business and related e-commerce
sites. The assets were sold to CLBL, Inc. a corporation owned by a significant Company stockholder. The income from discontinued
operations in fiscal years 2003 and 2002 consisted of the reversal of costs accrued in fiscal year 2001.

In April 2004, the Company decided to pursue the possible sale of its Skill Jam gaming property. The operating results of this business
unit will be treated as a discontinued operation in the quarter ended June 30, 2004.

Income per share

Basic income per share is computed as net income (loss) less accretion of the Series A preferred stock and stock dividends on Series C
preferred stock divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted income per share gives
effect to all dilutive potential common stock equivalents outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted income per share does not
assume the conversion or exercise of securities that would have an anti-dilutive effect. For fiscal year 2004, 5,724,000 stock options,
4,444,000 shares of preferred stock and 146,000 stock purchase warrants were excluded from the computation of diluted income per share
because their effect is anti-dilutive. For fiscal year 2003, 1,505,000 stock options and 20,000 stock purchase warrants were excluded from the
computation of diluted income per share because their effect is anti-dilutive. For fiscal year 2002, 2,499,000 stock options and 320,000 stock
purchase warrants were excluded from the computation of income per share because their effect is anti-dilutive.
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The computation of basic and diluted income (loss) per common share for income from continuing operations is as follows (in
thousands):

Years ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Income (loss) from continuing operations
$(12,887) $ 318 $5,380

Preferred stock dividends and liquidation preference
(329 ) (77 ) (205 )

Income (loss) available to common stockholders�basic
(13,216) 241 5,175

Preferred stock dividends and liquidation preference
� 77 205

Interest expense on convertible debt, net of income taxes
� 11 15

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
(252 ) 235 285

Income (loss) available to common stockholders�diluted
$(13,468) $ 564 $5,680

Basic weighted average common shares
27,335 24,474 21,040

Conversion of convertible preferred stock
� 2,614 2,102

Conversion of convertible debt
� 98 172

Exercise of stock options
� 3,065 2,148

Exercise of stock purchase warrants
� 931 853
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Diluted weighted average common shares
27,335 31,182 26,315

Income (loss) per common share:

Continuing operations
$(0.48 ) $ 0.01 $0.25

Discontinued operations
(0.01 ) 0.01 0.01

Basic income (loss) per common share
$(0.49 ) $ 0.02 $0.26

Diluted income (loss) per common share
$(0.49 ) $ 0.02 $0.22

Recent accounting pronouncements

In April 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 149
(�SFAS No. 149�), �Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.� SFAS No. 149 is effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The provisions of this
statement will be applied prospectively. This statement amends SFAS 133 for decisions made in the derivatives project implementation
process, in connection with other FASB projects dealing with financial instruments, and in connection with implementation issues related to
the definition of a derivative. The adoption of SFAS 149 has not had any impact on the financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150 (�SFAS No. 150�), �Accounting for Certain
Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity.� This statement requires that certain financial instruments which
had previously been classified as equity be classified as liabilities. We have no outstanding securities that meet the criteria of SFAS No. 150
and, therefore, this statement will not have any impact on our financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts in the financial statements and segment disclosures have been reclassified to conform to the current period
presentation.
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Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

March 31,

2004 2003

Furniture and fixtures
$75 $75

Computers and equipment
2,656 1,958

Equipment under capital leases
2,495 2,353

Leasehold improvements
19 9

Purchased software
752 620

5,997 5,015

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization
(3,543) (1,786)

$2,454 $3,229

Depreciation and amortization expense for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $1,738,000, $1,344,000 and $300,000, respectively.

Note 5. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The net carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets was $17,573,000 as of March 31, 2004 and $19,934,000 as of March 31,
2003. Management periodically assesses the potential impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives to determine
whether an impairment of value exists. In the third quarter of fiscal year 2004, the ResponseBase division�s revenues declined $7.1 million
compared to the same period last year. We recorded a $1,200,000 impairment charge in the third quarter of fiscal year 2004 and reduced
goodwill by $556,000 and other intangible assets by $644,000 due to the significant reduction in ResponseBase�s revenues. The impairment
charge was computed by comparing discounted future cash flows of the ResponseBase business to the book value of the ResponseBase
business. In fiscal year 2003, $130,000 of other intangible assets were determined to be impaired. At March 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
management concluded that no other impairment of goodwill occurred.

Other intangibles assets consist of the following (in thousands):
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March 31,

2004 2003

Customer lists
$2,243 $2,243

Domain names
1,700 1,700

License agreements
315 315

Websites
1,210 1,210

Other
809 766

6,277 6,234

Less: accumulated amortization
(3,722) (1,787)

$2,555 $4,447
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Amortization expense for other intangible assets for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $1,291,000, $1,141,000 and $508,000,
respectively. Amortization expense for other intangible assets for the future years ending March 31 is as follows (in thousands):

2005
$1,006

2006
788

2007
365

2008
204

Thereafter
192

$2,555

Note 6. Debt Obligations and Capital Leases

Debt obligations consist of the following (in thousands):

March 31,

2004 2003

550 Digital Media Ventures�Affiliate (1 and 2)
$2,404 $2,290

VantagePoint�Affiliate (2)
2,500 �

Deb�s Fun Pages
� 287

Funny Greetings (3)
� 454

Fun Page Land
� 113
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SFX Entertainment, Inc. (4)
320 606

5,224 3,750

Less: current portion of debt obligations
(5,224) (1,460)

$� $2,290

(1) 550 Digital Media Ventures is an indirect subsidiary of Sony Corporation of America. In March 2003, the due date of the principal and
interest on this note was extended to March 31, 2005. This note bears interest at prime plus 2%, is collateralized by a security interest in
the Company�s assets and is convertible into Series B preferred stock after March 31, 2005. In October 2003, the Company agreed to
add $614,000 of accrued interest due on this note to the principal balance.

(2) 550 Digital Media Ventures and an affiliate of VantagePoint entered into an option agreement pursuant to which VantagePoint
purchased 3,050,000 shares of common stock and 1,750,000 shares of Series B preferred stock owned by 550 Digital Media Ventures.
VantagePoint purchased $500,000 of existing convertible debt the Company owed to 550 Digital Media Ventures as consideration for
the option. VantagePoint also loaned $2 million to the Company. The two notes to VantagePoint were then combined into a $2.5 million
note that bears interest at 8% and is collateralized by a security interest in all of the Company�s assets and is due October 31, 2004. See
Note 8 for information about the addition on October 31, 2003 of a conversion feature to the $2.5 million loan and the commitment by
VantagePoint to loan the Company, or provide a guarantee for a bank to loan the Company $4 million.

(3) On August 21, 2003, the Company entered in a settlement agreement to pay $365,000 to the debt holder in satisfaction of this debt.
(4) Principal and interest payments are due quarterly through August 2004 and the note has an effective interest rate of 9.7%. This note is

collateralized by 2,600,000 shares of the Company�s common stock owned by the Company�s previous Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer.
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The following are payments due under capitalized leases and the present value of future minimum rentals for the future years ending
March 31 (in thousands):

2005
$503

2006
24

Thereafter
10

Total minimum lease payments
537

Less: amounts representing interest
(15 )

Present value of net minimum lease payments
522

Less: current portion of capitalized lease obligations
(489)

Long-term obligations under capitalized leases
$33

Equipment with a cost of $2,495,000 at March 31, 2004 is collateral for the capital lease obligations. During fiscal year 2003 and the
first quarter of fiscal year 2004, the Company entered into several sale-leaseback transactions for computers and telephone equipment. Under
the terms of the agreements, the Company is required to maintain and insure the equipment and provide general liability insurance. In
addition, under one lease, the Company is required to maintain an irrevocable standby letter of credit through June 1, 2004 of at least 75% of
the principal balance owed ($417,000 at March 31, 2004).

Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating leases

The Company leases various facilities under non-cancelable operating leases that expire within the next two years. Minimum lease
payments under these non-cancelable operating leases for the future years ending March 31 are as follows (in thousands):
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2005
$1,042

2006
714

$1,756

Rent expense for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $1,261,000, $913,000 and $551,000, respectively.

Legal proceedings

As previously reported, on May 13, 2003 SoftwareOnline.com, Inc., a Washington corporation with its principal place of business in
King County, Washington (�SoftwareOnline�), filed a complaint against the Company in the United States District Court for the Western
District of Washington at Seattle. The Company had previously entered into a nondisclosure agreement and letter of intent with
SoftwareOnline in anticipation of a potential acquisition of SoftwareOnline. SoftwareOnline alleges a breach of the nondisclosure agreement
and misappropriation of trade secrets and trade dress related to the Company�s online marketing and sales of downloadable software.
SoftwareOnline seeks injunctive relief, actual damages in an amount to be proven at trial and punitive damages in the amount of $10,000. On
June 27, 2003, the Company filed an answer denying SoftwareOnline�s allegations and asserting various defenses. The Company disputes
SoftwareOnline�s claims and allegations, believes that they are without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself in this action. There have
been no material developments in this matter since the Company�s last report.

As previously reported, on January 31, 2003 Arcade Planet, Inc. (�Arcade Planet�), a California corporation, filed a patent infringement
complaint against the Company in the United States District Court for the District of
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Nevada. The complaint filed by Arcade Planet alleges that online skill-based gaming services offered by the Company infringes a patent held
by Arcade Planet entitled the �918 Patent.� On April 9, 2003, the Company filed an answer denying Arcade Planet�s allegations and seeking
declaratory judgment from the Court that the Company has not infringed the 918 Patent and that the claims of the 918 Patent are invalid and
unenforceable. On July 18, 2003, the Court stayed this action until the United States Patent and Trademark Office reexamines a substantial
new question of patentability affecting certain claims underlying the 918 Patent. The Company disputes Arcade Planet�s claims, believes that
they are without merit and will vigorously defend itself in this matter. There have been no material developments in this matter since the
Company�s last report.

As previously reported, on October 14, 2003, the purported stockholder class action lawsuits previously filed against the Company and
several current and former Company officers and/or employees in the United States District Court for the Central District of California were
consolidated into one action and lead counsel and plaintiff were appointed (the �Securities Litigation�). The Securities Litigation arises out of
the Company�s restatement of quarterly financial results for fiscal year 2003 and includes allegations of, among other things, intentionally
false and misleading statements regarding the Company�s business prospects, financial condition and performance. On December 17, 2003,
plaintiffs in the Securities Litigation filed their amended and consolidated class action complaint reiterating those allegations and also naming
the Company�s former auditor as an additional defendant. The Company and other defendants have filed motions to dismiss the lawsuit for,
among other things, the failure of the complaint to state a valid claim for violation of securities laws. A decision on the motions is still
pending.

Also as previously reported, two purported stockholder derivative actions, which are substantially similar, are pending against various
current and former Company directors, officers, and/or employees. One of the actions is pending in the United States District Court for the
Central District of California and the other, formerly two actions which have been consolidated, is pending in the Superior Court of California
for the County of Los Angeles (collectively, the �Derivative Litigation�). The Derivative Litigation similarly arises out of the Company�s
restatement of quarterly financial results for fiscal year 2003 and includes claims of breach of fiduciary duty in connection with the
restatement and in connection with allegedly improper insider sales of Company stock by one officer and one former Company employee. On
January 12, 2004, the Company filed a motion to dismiss plaintiffs� consolidated derivative complaint in the State Court derivative action on
the grounds, among others, that plaintiffs have not pled, and will not be able to plead, facts sufficient to demonstrate that demand on the
Company�s Board of Directors would have been futile. On April 27, 2004, the Company�s motion, as well as those filed by the individual
defendants in the case, were sustained in there entirety and plaintiffs were given leave to amend their complaint with respect to all but one
claim. On May 27, 2004, plaintiffs filed an amended consolidated derivative complaint which essentially replicated the allegations made in the
Securities Litigation. Discovery in the action remains stayed. The Federal Court derivative action has been stayed pending the outcome of the
hearing on defendants� motions challenging the complaint in the Securities Litigation.

The Company intends to vigorously defend itself in the Securities Litigation and to address the Derivative Litigation as appropriate.
Defending against existing and potential securities and class action litigation relating to the fiscal year 2003 accounting restatement will likely
require significant attention and resources of management and, regardless of the outcome, result in significant legal expenses. If the
Company�s defenses were ultimately unsuccessful, or if the Company was unable to achieve a favorable settlement, the Company could be
liable for large damage awards that could seriously harm its business and results of operations. While one of the Company�s insurance carriers
has agreed that certain claims made in the lawsuits are covered by a directors and officers� insurance policy, such coverage is subject to the
limits and other terms and conditions of the policy. The Company cannot predict how much of the ongoing litigation costs or any eventual
settlement or judgment, if any, will be reimbursed by the insurance carrier.
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On January 22, 2004, Bridge Ventures, Inc. (�Bridge�) and Saggi Capital Corp. (�Saggi�), both Florida corporations, filed a demand for
arbitration with the American Arbitration Association in Los Angeles pursuant to a settlement agreement between Bridge and Saggi on the
one hand, and the Company on the other, dated as of February 13, 2003. The settlement agreement resolved, among other things, disputes
relating to warrants to purchase Company common stock previously issued to Bridge and Saggi relating to a consulting agreement between
Saggi and the Company. The demand for arbitration filed by Bridge and Saggi alleges securities and common law fraud in connection with the
settlement agreement based on Saggi�s and Bridge�s contention that the Company knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that its financial
statements and public comments on financial results were materially inaccurate at the time of entering into the settlement agreement. Saggi
and Bridge are seeking compensatory damages in excess of $968,000, punitive damages in an unspecified amount, and costs and fees. The
Company disputes Saggi�s and Bridge�s claims and allegations, believes that they are without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself in
this action.

On December 11, 2003, Brad Greenspan, the Company�s former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, filed a complaint against the
Company, each of the Company�s directors and the Company�s Series C preferred stockholders in the Court of Chancery of the State of
Delaware in and for New Castle County. The complaint challenged various actions taken by the Company and its Board of Directors in
advance of the Company�s 2003 annual meeting of stockholders, which was held on January 29, 2004. The Company and the Company�s
directors denied Mr. Greenspan�s allegations and claims as factually incorrect and otherwise without merit. Prior to the January 13, 2004 trial
in this matter, Mr. Greenspan dropped all of his claims but one. Trial concerning the one remaining claim proceeded, but Mr. Greenspan also
dropped this claim after the Company�s majority Series B preferred stockholder delivered a consent unequivocally taking the actions about
which Mr. Greenspan had raised questions. On January 14, 2004, Mr. Greenspan informed the Court that he may raise additional claims, but
has not to date done so.

On January 28, 2004, the Company filed a lawsuit against Mr. Greenspan in the United States District Court for the Central District of
California for violation of federal securities laws governing proxy solicitation based on Mr. Greenspan�s filing and dissemination of what the
Company believed to be deficient, false and misleading proxy materials. Later the same day, Mr. Greenspan filed a complaint against the
Company in the same Court similarly alleging that the Company had distributed false and misleading proxy materials and sought to enjoin the
Company�s conduct of its 2003 annual meeting of stockholders. Mr. Greenspan also sought an order from the Court declaring that California
law requires that the election of directors at its annual meeting be determined on a cumulative voting basis instead of by a plurality vote. On
January 29, 2004, the Company�s annual meeting of stockholders was held and the voting results of the annual meeting were certified by the
independent inspector of elections on February 6, 2004. On May 3, 2004, both the Company and Mr. Greenspan dismissed their lawsuits,
without prejudice, in order to avoid proceeding with the litigation until the parties had the opportunity to pursue an out of court resolution of
the issues. In the event no resolution is reached, the Company and Mr. Greenspan are free to reinstate their lawsuits and pursue their
respective claims. The Company believes Mr. Greenspan�s claims are without merit and will vigorously defend itself, and prosecute its claims
against Mr. Greenspan in the event litigation of these matters resumes.

Note 8. Common and Preferred Stock

Common stock

In October 2003, the Company repurchased 27,000 shares of common stock for $2.39 per share from the Company�s former Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and the Company�s President in connection with agreements to repay bonuses paid in fiscal year 2003.

F-18

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


Table of Contents

eUniverse, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements��(Continued)

As partial consideration for the application download and content distribution agreements with Sharman Networks, Ltd., the Company
issued Sharman Networks 500,000 shares of Company common stock valued at $975,000 in November 2003. The Company has given
registration rights to Sharman Networks for this unregistered common stock.

In November 2003, the Company sold 1,643,000 shares of common stock to existing and new stockholders for $1.50 per share
generating approximately $2.4 million of proceeds. The Company has given registration rights to the holders of this unregistered common
stock.

In April 2004, the Company�s Board of Directors retired 58,000 shares of common stock. Prior year stockholders� equity has been
restated to reflect the treasury stock as retired in the period repurchased.

Series A preferred stock

In April 1999, the Company sold 1,795,000 shares of Series A 6% convertible preferred stock in a private placement for $6,462,000.
Holders of the Series A preferred stock have the right to convert the preferred stock into shares of common stock at any time after July 9,
2002. The shares of preferred stock have a liquidation preference of $3.60 per share, which increases at a rate of 6% per year. Each share of
preferred stock may be converted to common stock at a rate of one share of common stock for each $3.60 of liquidation preference plus the
6% annual accretion factor. Prior to any conversion, the conversion price is adjusted to account for any increase or decrease in the number of
outstanding shares of common stock by stock split, stock dividend or other similar event.

In fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, preferred stockholders converted 163,000, 593,000 and 505,000, respectively of shares of preferred
stock into common stock. As of March 31, 2004, there are 194,000 outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock that are convertible into
252,000 shares of common stock at the current conversion rate.

The Company does not pay dividends on the Series A preferred stock and the holders of such stock are not entitled to receive any
dividends thereon. In the event of the liquidation or dissolution of the Company, the holders of the Series A preferred stock will be entitled to
receive the liquidation preference amount described above prior and in preference to any distribution to the holders of the common stock and
any other class of stock which has been designated as junior in rank to the Series A preferred stock. The Series B and Series C preferred stock
are senior in preference to the Series A preferred stock.

Series B, Series C and Series C-1 preferred stock

In July 2001, the Company sold 1,923,000 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock to 550 Digital Media Ventures for $5 million.
The Sony investment simultaneously involved the Company�s acquisition of Infobeat from an affiliate of Sony and the conversion of
1,101,000 warrants in exchange for 308,000 shares of our common stock valued at $1 million. Although the conversion price of the preferred
stock was less than the fair market value of the stock at the date of the transactions, the Company believes there was no beneficial conversion
feature related to the preferred stock as the fair value of the warrants exchanged by Sony exceeded the fair value of the common stock to
which the warrants were converted. The Company recorded the transaction and its potential dilution to stockholders in the consolidated
statement of stockholders� equity as a reclassification from retained earnings to additional paid in capital. The Series B preferred stock is
junior to the Series C preferred stock.

On October 31, 2003, the Company sold 5,333,000 shares Series C convertible preferred stock to VantagePoint for $8 million. The
Company paid $314,000 in professional fees in connection with the stock sale. In addition, on July 15, 2003, 550 Digital Media Ventures and
VantagePoint entered into an option agreement
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pursuant to which VantagePoint purchased 3,050,000 shares of our common stock and 1,750,000 shares of our Series B preferred stock owned
by 550 Digital Media Ventures. 550 Digital Media Ventures also released the Company from any claims that it may have, other than claims
relating to the outstanding convertible secured promissory note held by 550 Digital Media Ventures, including the related security interest, and
any current advertising arrangements with the Company. In connection with the transaction, 550 Digital Media Ventures waived its anti-
dilution protection, preemptive rights and rights of first refusal.

VantagePoint also agreed to loan the Company, or provide a guarantee to a bank for the bank to loan the Company, up to $4 million. The
Company chose not to complete the loan documentation by February 28, 2004 and the loan commitment expired. The $4 million loan would
have been secured by all of the Company�s assets and would have been senior to the $2,404,000 secured loan due to 550 Digital Media
Ventures and the $2.5 million secured loan due to VantagePoint. The Company committed to issue to VantagePoint 250,000 five year
warrants to purchase shares of Series C preferred stock at $2.00 for each $1 million of money borrowed from or guaranteed by VantagePoint.
In addition, on October 31, 2003, the Company amended the terms of the $2.5 million note due to VantagePoint to permit VantagePoint to
convert the note to a prospective series of Company preferred stock, designated Series C-1 preferred stock, at the rate of one share for each
$2.00 of principal. The Company�s stockholders approved the addition of this conversion feature at the January 2004 annual meeting of
stockholders. This note must ether be converted into Series C-1 preferred stock or repaid by October 31, 2004, as determined by
VantagePoint.

The Series B and Series C preferred stock have many similar terms. The significant terms of these two series of preferred stock are
summarized below. The Series C and Series C-1 preferred stock terms are nearly identical except that the Series C-1 preferred stock provides
for a liquidation preference and initial conversion rate of $2.00 per share compared to $1.50 per share for the Series C preferred stock.

Series A, Series B, Series C and Series C-1 preferred stockholders are entitled to vote with common stockholders as a single class on an
as-converted basis on all matters voted on by stockholders, except for matters directly affecting the rights of each series of preferred stock
which may only be voted upon by stockholders of the affected series. The current conversion rate for the Series B and Series C preferred stock
is one-for-one.

VantagePoint will receive 427,000 additional shares of Series C preferred stock as dividends for the year ended October 31, 2004. If and
when declared by the Board, the Series B and Series C stockholders will also receive common stock dividends based on the current conversion
ratios at that time. The Series B preferred stockholders are also entitled to receive noncumulative dividends in preference to any dividend on
the Company�s common stock of $0.208 per annum, when and if declared. For distributions of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of the Company, our preferred stockholders will receive a liquidation preference equal to the aggregate original issue price of their
preferred stock plus accrued and unpaid stock and cash dividends, and thereafter will participate pro rata with the common stockholders on an
as-converted basis. In the event that the full liquidation preference cannot be paid, the Series C preferred stockholders are entitled to receive
the Series C preference amount plus the unpaid stock and cash dividends, prior and in preference to any other class of stock that has been
designated as junior in rank to the Series C preferred stock. The Series C preferred stock ranks senior to the Series B preferred stock which
ranks senior to the Series A preferred stock.

The Company allocated 10 million shares of authorized preferred stock for the Series B preferred stock and has reserved shares of
common stock for conversion of the Series B preferred stock into common stock. The Company allocated 22 million shares of authorized
preferred stock for the Series C preferred stock and has reserved shares of common stock for conversion of the Series C preferred stock into
common stock. The Series B and Series C preferred stockholders have registration rights, anti-dilution protection and preemptive rights.
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Series B and Series C stockholders have the right to convert any or all of their preferred stock into common stock at any time. Each
share of Series B, Series C and Series C-1 preferred stock will be converted to shares of common stock at an initial conversion price of $2.60,
$1.50 and $2.00, respectively subject to any adjustment to account for any increase or decrease in the number of outstanding shares of
common stock by a stock split, stock dividend or other similar event. The conversion price per share of Series B and Series C preferred stock
may be adjusted downward in the event we acquire or issue any shares of common stock, other than certain exceptions, without consideration
or for consideration per share less than the then-current conversion price. All shares of Series B and Series C preferred stock will
automatically convert into common stock upon the written consent of holders of more than 50% of the issued and outstanding shares that class
of preferred stock. The Company has the right to convert the Series B preferred stock into common stock within 60 days of the public filing of
its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or Annual Report on Form 10-K evidencing the Company�s achievement of four consecutive post-closing
quarters of operating profits equal to or greater than $750,000 for each applicable quarter.

The Series B preferred stockholders are entitled to designate at least one and not more than three members of the Board of Directors,
depending on the size of the Board of Directors. If VantagePoint acquires 50% or more of the Series B preferred stock, then this right
terminates. The Series C stockholders have the right, voting separately as a single class, to elect two members to the Board as long as 51% or
more of the originally issued shares of Series C preferred stock remains outstanding.

So long as 67% or more of the original issue of Series B preferred stock or 51% or more of the original issue of Series C preferred stock
remains outstanding, the Company will not, without the written consent or affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the shares held by Series B
and Series C preferred stockholders, (1) amend, alter, waive or repeal, whether by merger, consolidation, combination, reclassification or
otherwise, the Company�s Certificate of Incorporation, including the Series B and Series C Certificates of Designation, or the Company�s
Bylaws or any provisions thereof including the adoption of a new provision, (2) increase the size of the Board of Directors beyond nine
members, or (3) authorize or issue any class, series or shares of preferred stock or any other class of capital stock ranking either as to payment
of dividends, distributions or as to distributions of assets upon liquidation prior to or on parity with the Series B and Series C preferred stock.

As long as 550 Digital Media Ventures owns at least 1,442,000 shares of Series A preferred stock or VantagePoint owns at least
2,667,000 shares of Series C preferred stock or common stock, as adjusted for any stock split, combination, reorganization, reclassification,
stock dividend, stock distribution or similar event, the Company will not, without the written consent or affirmative vote of at least two-thirds
of the Board of Directors (1) enter into an agreement to, or consummate, a reorganization, merger, change of control or consolidation of the
Company or sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company�s assets, (2) enter into transactions which result in or require
the Company to issue shares of its capital stock in excess of 5% in any one transaction, or 12.5% in the aggregate, in a series of transactions,
of the Company�s issued and outstanding shares of capital stock, (3) enter into transactions which result in or require the Company to pay,
whether in cash, stock or a combination thereof, in excess of 5% in any one transaction, or 12.5% in the aggregate, in a series of transactions,
of the Company�s current market capitalization, (4) increase or decrease the number of authorized shares of capital stock, (5) directly or
indirectly declare or pay any dividend or make any other distribution, or directly or indirectly purchase, redeem, repurchase or otherwise
acquire any shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, whether in cash or property or in obligations of the Company or
any Company subsidiary, other than repurchases pursuant to an employee�s employment or incentive agreement, or upon an employee�s
termination and at a price not to exceed such employee�s cost, or (6) increase or decrease the size of the Board of Directors, provided that in
no event shall the total number of members of the Board of Directors exceed nine.
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Note 9. Equity Compensation Plans

Stock compensation plan

Under the Company�s stock option plan, stock options may be granted to officers, directors, employees and consultants. Nine million
shares of common stock have been reserved for issuance under the stock option plan. In fiscal year 2004, stock option grants typically vest
ratably over four years with 1/4 vesting after 12 months and the remaining 3/4 vesting quarterly over the remaining three years. In fiscal years
2003 and 2002, stock option grants typically vest ratably over three years with 1/3 vesting after 12 months and the remaining 2/3 vesting
quarterly over the remaining two years.

The following is a summary of stock option activity for the years ended March 31 (in thousands, except per share data):

2004 2003 2002

Number

of

Options

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Number

of

Options

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Number

of

Options

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Outstanding at beginning of year
7,602 $ 3.25 8,707 $ 3.16 6,694 $ 4.15

Granted
4,066 1.92 570 4.06 3,525 2.28

Exercised
(73 ) 2.10 (699 ) 6.01 (108 ) 2.14

Cancelled
(3,751 ) 3.84 (976 ) 5.89 (1,404 ) 3.47

Outstanding at end of year
7,844 2.28 7,602 3.25 8,707 3.16

Available to grant at end of year
275 1,398 293

Exercisable at end of year
3,521 2,601 3,033

In fiscal year 2003, the Company repurchased 910,000 stock options from employees for $452,000.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at March 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Price Range Number

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price Number

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

$5.01-7.00
170 $ 5.92 158 $ 5.96

3.01-5.00
189 3.86 92 3.86

1.00-3.00
7,485 2.16 3,271 2.41

7,844 3,521

Employee stock purchase plan

The Company has an employee stock purchase plan that can issue up to 1,250,000 shares of common stock. In fiscal years 2004 and
2003, the Company sold 9,000 and 5,000, respectively of shares of common stock to employees at 85% of market price on the date of
purchase. We have reserved 1,236,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the employee stock purchase plan as of March 31, 2004.
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Profit sharing plan

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan that has a Company matching contribution of 100% of the first 3% of gross salary
contributed by the employee plus 50% of the next 2% contributed. For fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company�s matching
contributions were $155,000, $144,000 and $111,000, respectively. All employee and Company 401(k) contributions are fully vested.

Warrants

The Company has granted warrants to purchase common stock in connection with debt issuance and professional services. The
following is a summary of stock purchase warrant activity for the years ended March 31 (in thousands, except per share data):

2004 2003 2002

Number

of

Options

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Number

of

Options

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Number

of

Options

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

Outstanding at beginning of year
353 $ 2.05 2,267 $ 1.98 3,287 $ 3.24

Granted
150 1.87 10 5.10 912 1.18

Exercised
(235 ) 2.07 (1,921 ) 3.29 � �

Cancelled
(10 ) 5.10 (3 ) 2.00 (1,932 ) 3.74

Outstanding at end of year
258 2.20 353 2.05 2,267 1.98

Exercisable at end of year
258 353 2,174

In fiscal year 2004, the Company issued 150,000 warrants to a consultant at an exercise price of $1.87. The warrants were valued at
$133,000 in the financial statements using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with a risk free interest rate of 2.40%, a volatility of 125%
with no expected dividend yield and a life of one year.

In fiscal year 2002, the Company cancelled 1,101,000 warrants originally issued to the predecessor of 550 Digital Media Ventures in
September 2000 at exercise prices ranging from $4.50 to $6.00 in connection with the Sony preferred stock investment. The Company also
issued warrants for 93,000 shares of the Company�s common stock at an exercise price of $1.75 to the Series A preferred stockholders. The
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warrants were valued at $110,000 in the financial statements using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with a risk free interest rate of
5.75%, a volatility of 100% with no expected dividend yield and a life of two years. The warrants became exercisable on January 9, 2003 and
expire on January 9, 2005.

Note 10. Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes for the years ending March 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002

Federal:

Current
$� $� $�

Deferred
� � �

State:

Current
20 63 �

Deferred
� � �

Provision for income taxes
$20 $63 $�
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The following is a reconciliation of the difference between the provision for income taxes at the federal statutory rate and the actual
provision for income taxes for the years ending March 31 (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002

Provision at federal statutory tax rate
$(4,375) $130 $1,829

State income taxes
(678 ) 167 587

Stock compensation
80 4 220

Other
35 20 11

Utilization of net operating loss carry forwards
� (860) (3,022)

Discontinued operations
(81 ) 93 97

Valuation allowance
5,039 509 278

Provision for income taxes
$20 $63 $�

In December 2003, the Company filed federal and state income tax returns for fiscal year 2003. In those income tax returns, prior year
federal and state net operating loss carry forwards were corrected to reflect actual taxable income and loss for fiscal years 2000 to 2002. As of
March 31, 2004, federal and state net operating loss carry forwards amount to $39,700,000 and $12,563,000 respectively. In addition, the
Company has $2,772,000 of loss carry forwards created by the exercise of non-qualified stock options and the early disposition of incentive
stock options, the benefit of which will be recorded through stockholders� equity. The use of these loss carry forwards will be recorded based
on the order they were created. Unused net operating loss carry forwards begin to expire between 2021 and 2022. The State of California
temporarily suspended usage of net operating loss carry forwards for fiscal years 2003 and 2004 and the Company will not be able to utilize
State of California net operating loss carry forwards until fiscal year 2005. Management has provided a full valuation allowance for net
deferred tax assets as realization is beyond the twelve-month time horizon the Company is using for valuation purposes.

The utilization of net operating losses is subject to annual limitations if a change in ownership by 5% or more stockholders within a
three-year period that aggregates 50 percentage points or more occurs. The Company�s sales of preferred stock to VantagePoint and 550
Digital Media Ventures and the purchase by VantagePoint from 550 Digital Media Ventures of Company common and preferred stock
occurred within a three-year period. Other stockholders have also acquired more than 5% of our common stock in the same three-year period.
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If the aggregate change in ownership by these stockholders exceeds 50 percentage points, the utilization of our net operating losses would be
limited.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31 consist of the following (in thousands):

2004 2003

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carry forwards
$14,608 $10,218

Accounts receivable, inventories and accrued expenses
726 661

Goodwill and other intangible assets
4,181 3,422

Other
18 33

19,533 14,334

Valuation allowance
(19,146) (14,107)

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment
(387 ) (227 )

(387 ) (227 )

Net deferred tax assets
$� $�

F-24
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Note 11. Segment Disclosures

The Company groups its businesses into two principal business segments, the product marketing and network segments. In fiscal years
2003 and 2002, we combined our products, services and gaming businesses into one segment, but due to a change in internal reporting we
now report our gaming and non-product businesses in the network segment. We also renamed the two business segments in fiscal year 2004.
The Company does not allocate any operating expenses other than direct cost of revenues to the four business groups, as management does not
use this information to measure the performance of the underlying businesses. Management does not believe that allocating these expenses is
material in evaluating the performance of the two business segments.

Revenue and gross profit by segment are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Revenues:

Product marketing
$29,110 $34,746 $8,584

Network
28,208 30,996 24,612

Total revenues
$57,318 $65,742 $33,196

Gross profit:

Product marketing
$18,179 $18,045 $2,747

Network
25,373 30,433 24,612

Total gross profit
$43,552 $48,478 $27,359

During fiscal year 2004, one customer exceeded 10% of segment revenues. This customer represented 12% of network segment
revenues. In the product marketing segment, the top 10 customers were less than 1% of segment revenues in fiscal year 2004. In the network
segment, the top 10 customers were 30% of segment revenues in fiscal year 2004. Revenues from the sale of Dream Shape and Hydroderm
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products were approximately 15% and 24%, respectively of fiscal year 2004 product marketing segment revenues. Most of the products sold
in fiscal year 2004 were purchased from among five vendors.

During fiscal year 2003, no customer exceeded 10% of segment revenues. In the product marketing segment, the top 10 customers were
less than 1% of segment revenues in fiscal year 2003. In the network segment, the top 10 customers were 28% of segment revenues in fiscal
year 2003.

During fiscal year 2002, no customer exceeded 10% of segment revenues. In the product marketing segment, the top 10 customers were
less than 1% of segment revenues in fiscal year 2002. In the network segment, the top 10 customers were 51% of segment revenues in fiscal
year 2002.

The Company does not allocate assets to business segments because product marketing and network segment assets minus liabilities,
other than goodwill and other intangible assets, are not significant. Goodwill and other intangible assets by segment are as follows (in
thousands):

March 31,

2004 2003 2002

Goodwill and other intangible assets:

Product marketing
$86 $1,449 $�

Network
17,487 18,454 16,832

Corporate
� 31 43

Total
$17,573 $19,934 $16,875
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Note 12. Unaudited Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table presents summary unaudited quarterly results of operations for fiscal years 2004 and 2003 (in thousands, except per
share data).

June 30,

2003

September 30,

2003

December 31,

2003

March 31,

2004

Fiscal Year

2004

Revenues
$ 13,922 $ 12,259 $ 15,392 $ 15,745 $ 57,318

Gross profit
10,247 9,599 11,838 11,868 43,552

Loss from continuing operations
(3,224 ) (3,305 ) (1,548 ) (4,810 ) (12,887)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
176 (293 ) (545 ) 410 (252 )

Net loss
(3,048 ) (3,598 ) (2,093 ) (4,400 ) (13,139)

Continuing operations
(0.13 ) (0.13 ) (0.06 ) (0.17 ) (0.48 )

Discontinued operations
0.01 (0.01 ) (0.02 ) 0.01 (0.01 )

Basic loss per common share
(0.12 ) (0.14 ) (0.08 ) (0.16 ) (0.49 )

Diluted loss per common share
(0.12 ) (0.14 ) (0.08 ) (0.16 ) (0.49 )

June 30,

2002

September 30,

2002

December 31,

2002

March 31,

2003

Fiscal Year

2003

Revenues
$10,782 $ 10,988 $ 21,959 $ 22,013 $ 65,742

Gross profit
8,618 9,351 15,129 15,380 48,478
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Income (loss) from continuing operations
2,074 (176 ) (485 ) (1,095 ) 318

Income from discontinued operations
� � 235 � 235

Net income (loss)
2,074 (176 ) (250 ) (1,095 ) 553

Continuing operations
0.09 (0.01 ) (0.02 ) (0.04 ) 0.01

Discontinued operations
� � 0.01 � 0.01

Basic income (loss) per common share
0.09 (0.01 ) (0.01 ) (0.04 ) 0.02

Diluted income (loss) per common share
0.07 (0.01 ) (0.01 ) (0.04 ) 0.02

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004, the Company sold certain assets of the Body Dome fitness product joint venture and recognized
a $225,000 gain on sale. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003, the Company sold the joint venture interests of the Abdominal King fitness
product and recognized a $108,000 gain on sale. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2003, the Company settled a dispute with employees from
whom the Company had acquired intellectual property. The Company recorded a $1,266,000 gain on debt extinguishment in the settlement
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EXHIBIT 3.03

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION
OF

SERIES A 6% CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
OF

eUNIVERSE, INC.

eUniverse, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the �Corporation�),
does hereby certify:

FIRST: That in accordance with the authority contained in the Fourth Article of its Certificate of Incorporation and in accordance with
the provisions of Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the �DGCL�), the Board of Directors of the
Corporation, at a meeting duly called and convened on November 14, 2003, adopted a resolution setting forth the proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Designation of Series A 6% Convertible Preferred Stock of eUniverse, Inc. (the �Series A Certificate of Designation�) of the
Series A 6% Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $.10 per share (the �Series A Preferred Stock�), which resolution is as follows:

RESOLVED, that the Series A Certificate of Designation of this Corporation be amended to delete in its entirety Section 12
entitled �Event of Default� from the Series A Certificate of Designation.

SECOND: That at a duly noticed annual meeting of the Corporation�s stockholders held on January 29, 2004, the holders of not less
than a majority of the outstanding stock entitled to vote thereon voted in favor of said amendment in accordance with the provisions of the
Certificate of Incorporation and the DGCL.

THIRD: That in lieu of a meeting and vote of the holders of the Corporation�s Series A Preferred Stock, the requisite number of holders
of Series A Preferred Stock and the holders of the requisite amount of outstanding Series A Preferred Stock, voting as a single class, have
given their written consent to said amendment in accordance with the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and the DGCL.

FOURTH: That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the DGCL.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have signed this Certificate the 13th day of February 2004, and affirm, under penalties of
perjury that the Certificate is the act and deed of the Corporation and the facts stated herein are true.

eUNIVERSE, INC.

By:
/s/ CHRISTOPHER S. LIPP

Name:
Christopher S. Lipp

Title:
Senior Vice President and General Counsel
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EXHIBIT 3.05

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION
OF

SERIES B CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
OF

eUNIVERSE, INC.

eUniverse, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the �Corporation�),
does hereby certify:

FIRST: That in accordance with the authority contained in the Fourth Article of its Certificate of Incorporation and in accordance with
the provisions of Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the �DGCL�), the Board of Directors of the
Corporation, at a meeting duly called and convened on January 22, 2004, adopted a resolution setting forth the proposed amendment of the
Certificate of Designation of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of eUniverse, Inc. (the �Series B Certificate of Designation�) of the Series
B Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $.10 per share (the �Series B Preferred Stock�), which resolution is as follows:

RESOLVED, that Section 4(b) of the Series B Certificate of Designation of this Corporation be amended by restating Section 4(b)
to read in its entirety as follows:

�The holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall have the exclusive right, voting separately as a single class, to elect the following
number of members of the Board of Directors: one (1) member in the event the Board of Directors consists of one (1) to five (5)
members; two (2) members in the event the Board of Directors consists of six (6) or more members (each such member elected by
the Series B Preferred Stockholders, a �Preferred Stock Director�). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if VantagePoint Venture
Partners or any affiliate thereof exercises, in whole or in part, its option to purchase Series B Preferred Stock under that certain
Option Agreement, dated as of July 15, 2003, by and among 550 Digital Media Ventures, Inc., the Company and VP Alpha
Holdings IV, L.L.C. such that VantagePoint Venture Partners and such affiliates (in the aggregate) hold 50% or more of the
outstanding Series B Preferred Stock, then the right of the holders of the Series B Preferred Stock to elect directors as a separate
class shall immediately terminate and the board seats formerly allocated to the Preferred Stock Directors shall be filled by the vote
of the Company�s shareholders generally. Except as permitted by Section 4(c) below, in no event shall the total number of
members of the Board of Directors exceed eleven (11). In any such election the holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall be
entitled to cast one vote per share of Series B Preferred Stock held of record on the record date for the determination of the holders
of Series B Preferred Stock entitled to vote on such election. The initial Preferred Stock Director(s) shall be Thomas Gewecke, and
he is elected to serve until his successor is duly elected; and thereafter the Preferred Stock Directors shall be elected at the same
time as other members of the Board of Directors. A Preferred Stock Director may only be removed by the written consent or
affirmative vote of at least a majority of the Series B Preferred Stock. If for any reason a Preferred Stock Director shall resign or
otherwise be removed from the Board of Directors, then his or her replacement shall be a person elected by the holders of the
Series B Preferred Stock, in accordance with the voting procedures set forth in this Section 4(b). In the event that the holders of
Series B Preferred Stock choose not to, or otherwise
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fail to, elect a Preferred Stock Director at the time of the election of directors of the Company generally or, with respect to a
Preferred Stock Director resignation or other removal from the Board of Directors, within thirty (30) days from the effective date
of such resignation or removal, then the Board seat(s) otherwise reserved for the Preferred Stock Director(s) shall be considered
vacant and may be filled by the Company in accordance with the provisions of its By-laws pertaining to the filling of vacant board
seats generally and any director so appointed shall serve until the next election of the directors of the Company generally and may
not be removed by a vote of the Series B Preferred Stock prior to that time.�

SECOND: That at a duly noticed annual meeting of the Corporation�s stockholders held on January 29, 2004, the holders of not less
than a majority of the outstanding stock entitled to vote thereon voted in favor of said amendment in accordance with the provisions of the
Certificate of Incorporation and the DGCL.

THIRD: That in lieu of a meeting and vote of the holders of the Corporation�s Series B Preferred Stock, the holders of the requisite
amount of outstanding Series B Preferred Stock, voting as a single class, have given their written consent to said amendment in accordance
with the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and the DGCL.

FOURTH: That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the DGCL.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have signed this Certificate the 13th day of February 2004, and affirm, under penalties of
perjury that the Certificate is the act and deed of the Corporation and the facts stated herein are true.

eUNIVERSE, INC.

By:
/s/ Christopher S. Lipp

Name: Christopher S. Lipp

Title: Senior Vice President and General Counsel
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EXHIBIT 10.14

THIS NOTE HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE �ACT�), NOR
QUALIFIED UNDER APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND HAS BEEN TAKEN FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES ONLY.
IT MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED IN THE ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT AS TO SUCH SECURITIES UNDER THE ACT AND QUALIFICATION UNDER APPLICABLE
STATE LAW WITHOUT AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO BORROWER THAT SUCH REGISTRATION AND
QUALIFICATION ARE NOT REQUIRED.

THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED
CONVERTIBLE SECURED PROMISSORY NOTE

$2,403,528.00 October 31, 2003

New York, New York

THIS THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED CONVERTIBLE SECURED PROMISSORY NOTE (the �Third Restated Note� or �this Note�) is
hereby issued by eUniverse, Inc., a Delaware corporation (�Borrower�) to 550 Digital Media Ventures Inc. (f.k.a. New Technology Holdings
Inc.) (�Lender�). This Note amends and restates in its entirety that certain Second Amended and Restated Convertible Secured Promissory
Note dated July 15, 2003 in the principal amount of $1,789,764.00 (the �Second Restated Note�), which Second Restated Note replaced, and
represented the remaining unsold portion of, that certain Second Amended and Restated Convertible Secured Promissory Note dated March
28, 2003 in the principal amount of $2,289,764.00 (the �Original Second Restated Note�), which Original Second Restated Note amended that
certain Amended and Restated Convertible Secured Promissory Note dated October 23, 2001 (the �First Restated Note�), which First Restated
Note amended a certain Secured Promissory Note dated February 14, 2001 (the �Replacement Note�), which Replacement Note replaced the
original Secured Promissory Note issued on September 6, 2000 (the �Original Note�). This Note is issued pursuant to Section 5 of that certain
Consent and Waiver Agreement, dated October 29, 2003, by and between Borrower, Lender and the affiliates of VantagePoint Venture
Partners named therein, which calls for replacement of the Second Restated Note with a new note in the principal amount hereof representing
the principal amount of the Second Restated Note plus all accrued interest thereunder.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Borrower hereby unconditionally promises to pay on demand to the order of Lender in lawful money of the
United States of America and in immediately available funds, the aggregate principal sum of up to $2,403,528.00, or, if less, the aggregate
principal amount of the borrowing outstanding (the �Principal Amount�) together with accrued and unpaid interest thereon, in the manner set
forth herein. Borrower further agrees to pay interest on the Principal Amount at the rate per annum equal to the rate reported in the Wall Street
Journal as the prime rate for major banks plus 2% on the outstanding Principal Amount.
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Interest shall be calculated from and including the date of this Note to but not including the date such Principal Amount has been repaid in
full. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 365-day or 366-day year, as the case may be, for the actual number of days elapsed and shall
be paid together with the outstanding Principal Amount, as provided in Section 1 of this Note.

All borrowings evidenced by this Note and all payments (including those described in Sections 1(b)) and prepayments of the principal
hereof and interest hereon and the respective date thereof shall be endorsed by the holder hereof on the grid schedule attached hereto and made
a part hereof, or on a continuation thereof which shall be attached hereto and made a part hereof (the �Grid�); provided, however, that the
failure of the holder hereof to make such a notation or any error in such a notation shall not affect the obligations of Borrower under this Note.

This Note is a portion of that �Second Restated Note� referred to in that certain Letter Agreement by and between the Borrower and the
Lender dated March 28, 2003, as the same may from time to time be amended or supplemented (the �Debt Amendment Letter Agreement�).

1. Repayment.

(a) The outstanding Principal Amount and all interest accrued thereon shall be payable on demand, unless Lender has received a
written notice from Borrower within 30 days of its delivery of a Demand Notice of Borrower�s intent to convert pursuant to Section 6
below; provided, however, that unless there has been an Event of Default (as defined in the Security Agreement described in Paragraph 2
below) or a Change of Control (as defined below), Lender agrees not to make demand prior to March 31, 2005 and provided, further,
that Lender shall provide Borrower with 30 days� advance written notice of such demand (the �Demand Notice�).

(b) Borrower may at any time and from time to time prepay the Principal Amount, in whole or in part, without premium or penalty.

2. Security Agreement. This Note is entitled to the benefit of that certain Security Agreement, dated as of September 6, 2000, between Lender
and Borrower, as and to the extent amended by (i) the Debt Amendment Letter Agreement and (ii) that certain Intercreditor Agreement, dated
as of July 15, 2003, between Lender, Borrower and VP Alpha Holdings IV, L.L.C. (�VPVP�), as the same may from time to time be amended
or supplemented (as amended, the �Security Agreement�), pursuant to which Lender is granted a first priority security interest in the
Collateral (as such term is defined in the Security Agreement). This Note shall be subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such Security
Agreement.

3. Place of Payment; Application of Payments. All amounts payable hereunder shall be payable to Lender in United States dollars at such bank
account as shall be designated by Lender in the Demand Notice in immediately available funds. Payment on this Note shall be applied first to
any expenses of collection, then to accrued interest, and thereafter to the outstanding principal balance hereof.

4. Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in the Security Agreement) the unpaid Principal Amount, all unpaid
accrued interest thereon and all other amounts owing hereunder may, at the option of Lender, become immediately due and payable to Lender
with the effect provided in the Security Agreement.
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5. Change of Control. As used herein, the term �Change of Control� means the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower in one transaction or a series of transactions;

(b) the merger or consolidation of Borrower with or into another person under circumstances in which the holders of the voting
stock of Borrower immediately prior to such merger or consolidation, do not own a majority of the voting stock of Borrower or the
surviving corporation immediately after such merger or consolidation;

(c) any �person� or �group� (as such terms are used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the �Exchange Act�)), after the date of this Note, becomes the �beneficial owner� (as defined in Rules 13-d-3 and 13d-5
under the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of voting stock of Borrower entitled to cast more than 30% of the votes entitled to be
cast by the holders of the outstanding voting stock of Borrower.

6. Conversion.

(a) Mechanics of Conversion. Within 60 days following receipt of a Demand Notice, Borrower may at its option elect to
automatically convert the outstanding Principal Amount and unpaid accrued interest thereon as of such date into shares of the
Borrower�s Series B Preferred Stock, $.10 par value per share (the �Series B Preferred Stock�), in accordance with this Section 6. The
Borrower shall give at least 15 days prior notice to Lender of the date on which such automatic conversion is to be effectuated (such
date, the �Conversion Date�). The number of shares of Series B Preferred Stock (calculated to the nearest 1/100,000th of a share) to
which Lender shall be entitled upon such automatic conversion shall be determined by dividing (x) the outstanding Principal Amount
and unpaid accrued interest thereon as of the Conversion Date by (y) the lower of (i) the average Closing Price (as defined below) for the
twenty (20) trading days immediately prior to the date of the Original Second Restated Note as set forth above in the preamble hereof
and (ii) the average Closing Price (as defined below) for the twenty (20) trading days immediately prior to March 31, 2005. �Closing
Price� means, the price with respect to the shares of the Borrower�s Common Stock on any day, (i) the last reported sales price, or in the
case no such reported sale takes place on such day, the average of the reported closing bid and asked prices, in either case on any
national securities exchange on which the shares of Common Stock are listed or admitted to trading, or (ii) if the shares of Common
Stock are not listed on any national securities exchange, the average of the closing bid and asked prices in the over-the-counter market as
furnished by any NYSE member firm selected from time to time by Borrower for that purpose, or (iii) if such prices in the over-the-
counter market are not available, the fair market value of such shares. On the Conversion Date, the outstanding Principal Amount and
unpaid accrued interest thereon shall be converted automatically into the Series B Preferred Stock without further action by the Lender
and whether or not this
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Note has been surrendered to Borrower or its transfer agent, and Lender shall be deemed to be the shareholder of record as of the
Conversion Date with respect to the Series B Preferred Stock. Within fourteen (14) days subsequent to the Conversion Date Lender shall
surrender this Note to Borrower or its transfer agent, duly marked cancelled and, in exchange therefor, Lender shall receive from
Borrower share certificates evidencing the Series B Preferred Stock in the name or names in which Lender wishes such certificate or
certificates for the Series B Preferred Stock to be issued. If within fourteen (14) days of the Conversion Date, Lender is unable to deliver
this Note, Lender shall notify Borrower or its transfer agent that such Note has been lost, stolen or destroyed and shall deliver to
Borrower an acknowledgement that the obligations evidenced by this Note, shall have been upon the Conversion Date be deemed fully
satisfied, and, if requested by Borrower, Lender shall execute an agreement reasonably satisfactory to Borrower to indemnify Borrower
from any loss incurred by it in connection with inability of Lender to deliver such Note.

(b) Issue Taxes. Borrower shall pay any and all stamp, issue and other taxes that may be payable in respect of the issuance or
delivery of the Series B Preferred Stock.

(c) In the event that the Company exercises the option to convert this Note pursuant to Section 6(a) after all Series B Preferred
Stock held by 550 DMV has been converted into the Company�s common stock, par value $.001 per share (the �Common Stock�), than
the outstanding principal and interest of this Note may be converted by the Company into Common Stock at the price per share
otherwise applicable to the Series B Preferred Stock.

(d) Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. Upon any automatic conversion pursuant to Section 6(a) above, Borrower will
take all corporate action as may be necessary to increase its authorized but unissued shares of Series B Preferred Stock or Common
Stock, as the case may be, to such number of shares as shall be sufficient to effect the conversion of this Note under Section 6(a) above,
including, without limitation, obtaining the requisite stockholder approval of any necessary amendment to Borrower�s certificate of
incorporation.

(e) Fractional Shares. No fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of this Note into the Series B Preferred Stock or
Common Stock, as the case may be. If the conversion would result in the issuance of a fraction of a share of the Series B Preferred Stock
or Common Stock, as the case may be, Borrower shall, in lieu of issuing any fractional share, pay Lender who is otherwise entitled to
such fraction a sum in cash equal to the fair market value of such fraction on the Conversion Date, with respect to the Series B Preferred
Stock, or Common Stock, as the case may be, (in each case as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of Borrower and
agreed to by Lender).

(f) Registration Rights. If the outstanding Principal Amount of and unpaid accrued interest thereon has been converted pursuant to
Section 6(a) hereof into Series B Preferred Stock or Common Stock, as the case may be, Borrower shall grant to Lender the same
registration rights and other minority shareholder rights granted to other holders of Series B Preferred Stock. If the outstanding Principal
Amount and unpaid accrued interest thereon has been converted pursuant to Section 6(a) in to Series B Preferred Stock or Common
Stock, as the case may be, Borrower shall ensure that Lender shall receive registration rights and other minority shareholder rights
whenever such rights are granted by Borrower to other holders of
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its securities (such holders, �Other Shareholders�), and the terms of such rights granted to Lender shall, in each case, be equal
(including, without limitation, any holding periods) to the terms governing the grant of such registration rights and minority shareholder
rights to such Other Shareholders.

7. Waiver. Except as otherwise provided herein, Borrower waives presentment and written demand for payment, notice of dishonor, protest
and notice of protest of this Note, and shall pay all costs of collection when incurred, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys� fees,
costs and other expenses. BORROWER WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A JURY TRIAL IN CONNECTION WITH ANY CLAIMS ARISING
UNDER THIS NOTE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. The right to plead any and all statutes of limitations as a
defense to any demands hereunder is hereby waived to the fullest extent permitted by law.

8. Expenses; Attorney�s Fees; Collection Costs. Borrower agrees that it will pay the reasonable costs and expenses of the parties (including
legal and accounting fees) in connection with this Note. Without limiting the foregoing, if there has been an Event of Default by Borrower
hereunder, Lender shall be entitled to receive and Borrower agrees to pay all costs of enforcement and collection incurred by Lender,
including, without limitation, reasonable attorney�s fees relating thereto.

9. Successors and Assigns; Assignment. The provisions of this Note shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on any successor to Borrower
and shall extend to any holder hereof. Borrower may assign this Note to any of its affiliates or the affiliates of Sony Music Entertainment Inc.,
and such rights may be similarly assigned by such assignee.

10. Further Assurances. Borrower shall, at any time and from time to time, upon the written request of Lender, execute and deliver to Lender
such further documents and instruments (including, without limitation, financing statements in connection with Lender�s security interest
granted hereby) and do such other acts and things as Lender may reasonably request in order to effectuate fully the purpose and intent of this
Note.

11. THIS NOTE HAS BEEN EXECUTED AND DELIVERED IN THE CITY OF NEW YORK, STATE OF NEW YORK, UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA. THIS NOTE SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH,
THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SECTION 5-1401 OF THE NEW YORK
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW (WITHOUT REGARD TO ANY CONFLICTS OF LAW PROVISION THAT WOULD REQUIRE THE
APPLICATION OF THE LAW OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTION).

BORROWER

EUNIVERSE, INC.

By:
/s/ Brett Brewer

Name: Brett Brewer

Title: President
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EXHIBIT 10.32

February 23, 2004

Mr. Richard Rosenblatt
219 Arizona Ave.
Santa Monica, CA 90401

Re: Employment Agreement with eUniverse, Inc.

Dear Richard:

On behalf of eUniverse, Inc. (the �Company�), I am pleased to offer you employment as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on the
terms and conditions set forth in this letter agreement (this �Agreement�). You may accept this Agreement by signing and returning a copy of
this Agreement to the Company as provided below.

1. Term of Employment. Your employment under this Agreement shall commence on February 23, 2004 (�Start Date�) and continue until
February 28, 2008, unless it is terminated earlier either by you or the Company or is extended by both you and the Company in a signed
writing (�Separation Date�). Your employment under this Agreement is terminable at will by you or the Company at any time (for any reason
or for no reason) subject to the provisions of Section 3.

2. Position and Duties. During the term of this Agreement, the Company shall employ you as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and you shall report to the Board of Directors of the Company (the �Board�). Your duties shall include the duties set forth in the bylaws of the
Company for your position and any other duties the Board may delegate to you from time to time that are not inconsistent with duties assigned
to a Chief Executive Officer of a publicly-traded company of comparable size and with a similar business as the Company. You agree,
beginning March 1, 2004 and until the Separation Date, to commit substantially all of your working time, attention and efforts to the position
on a full-time basis. Subject to the foregoing, the Company acknowledges that, outside of your obligations to the Company, you may also be
spending a reasonable amount of time on Permitted Activities (as defined below). Upon your employment, the Board shall appoint you to
serve as a member of the Board. Thereafter, you may be elected and re-elected to the Board in accordance with the terms of the bylaws of the
Company. This Agreement is personal to you and you may not assign or delegate any of your rights or obligations hereunder without first
obtaining the written consent of the Company by action of the Board.

3. Compensation and Benefits. In consideration for your services to the Company during the time period in which this Agreement is
effective, you shall receive the following compensation and benefits from the Company.
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February 23, 2004
Page 2

(a) Base Salary. The Company shall pay you an annual base salary at the rate of two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per year
to be paid in installments according to the Company�s regular payroll policy. The Company shall withhold and deduct all applicable federal
and state income and employment and disability taxes from your base salary as required by applicable laws. You shall be eligible for
discretionary annual increases in your base salary in connection with the Company�s annual executive compensation and performance review
conducted by the Board.

(b) Annual Incentive Opportunity. You shall be eligible to participate in any bonus plan which the Company may maintain or
establish for the executives of the Company on the terms that apply to the executives of the Company. Until the Company establishes such a
plan, it shall provide you with an individual annual incentive opportunity under which you would be eligible to receive an annual target bonus
based on the achievement of individual and/or corporate objectives set by the Compensation Committee of the Board and/or the Board. Such
annual target bonus shall be set at seventy-five percent (75%) of your annual base salary with the bonus target for Fiscal Year 1 (beginning
April 1, 2004) to be set by the Compensation Committee of the Board and/or the Board in consultation with you and shall be based upon the
achievement of quarterly and annual EBITDA milestones, subject to the discretion of the Board to award the bonus or a portion thereof in the
event such milestones are not attained. The incentive payment shall be in cash or such other form agreed upon by you and the Compensation
Committee of the Board or the Board.

(c) Stock Options. The Company shall grant you two stock options to purchase up to 2,000,000 shares of the common stock of the
Company (jointly referred to as the �Options�) under and pursuant to the Company�s 1999 Stock Award Plan (the �Plan�) upon the
commencement of your employment with the Company as follows:

(1) Standard Option Grant. The Company shall grant you a nonqualified stock option to purchase 1,300,000 shares of the
common stock of the Company at an exercise price equal to $1.83 per share of the common stock of the Company on the date of the
commencement of your employment with the Company (the �Standard Option�), pursuant to the Plan and the stock option agreement for the
Standard Option. One hundred thousand (100,000) shares subject to the Standard Option shall be fully vested on the date of the grant of the
Standard Option and the remaining one million two hundred thousand (1,200,000) shares shall vest monthly in equal increments (25,000) per
month over a four year period subject to your remaining in continuous employment or service as required by the stock option agreement for
the Standard Option.

(2) Milestone Option Grant. The Company shall also grant you a second, nonqualified stock option to purchase 700,000 shares of
the common stock of the Company at an exercise price equal to $1.83 per share of the common stock of the Company on the date of the
commencement of your employment with the Company (the �Milestone Option�), pursuant to the Plan and the stock option agreement for the
Milestone Option. The 700,000 shares of
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February 23, 2004
Page 3

common stock subject to the Milestone Option shall vest in full after six (6) years of your remaining in continuous employment or service as
required by the stock option agreement for the Milestone Option, provided, however, that such vesting of the Milestone Option shall be
accelerated upon the achievement of the following performance milestones if you remain in continuous employment or service with the
Company through such milestone date or dates:

(i) One hundred thousand (100,000) shares shall vest upon the Company�s achievement of positive EBITDA over any
consecutive four quarter period.

(ii) Two hundred thousand (200,000) shares shall vest upon the Company�s achievement of each of $7 million, $12.5
million and $20 million in EBITDA over any consecutive four quarter period. In the event that the Company achieves less than 100%, but
greater than 90%, of the EBITDA corresponding to any of these three EBITDA performance milestones (i.e., 90% of $7 million, $12.5 million
and $20 million), then 80% of the Milestone Option associated with such performance milestone shall vest with the remaining 20% vesting
upon the Company�s achievement of 100% of such milestone.

Example of EBITDA vesting of the Milestone Option: If the Company were to achieve (i) positive EBITDA for the four quarter period ended
September 30, 2004, (ii) EBITDA of $12.5 million for the four quarter period ended March 31, 2005, and (iii) EBITDA of $20 million for the
four quarter period ended September 30, 2005, then (x) 100,000 shares of the Milestone Option would vest effective as of September 30,
2004, (y) 400,000 additional shares of the Milestone Option would vest effective March 31, 2005 and (z) the remaining 200,000 shares of the
Milestone Option would vest effective September 30, 2005.

(3) Terms of the Options. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, each of the Options shall be governed by
the terms of the Plan and the respective stock option agreement for such stock option (which shall contain the provisions in the form of the
stock option agreement attached as Exhibit A hereto), the policies of the Company (including but not limited to the insider trading policy of
the Company) and applicable laws (including but not limited to state and federal securities laws). The Company represents and warrants to
you that the Options and shares underlying the Options are registered under federal securities laws under a registration statement on Form S-8
that is effective as of the date hereof.

(i) Vesting of the Options. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, after your employment or service
with the Company has terminated for any reason, the vesting of the Options shall cease immediately.

(ii) Exercisability of the Options. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, you may exercise the
vested portion of the Options while you remain in employment or service with the Company. You or your estate (if applicable) may exercise
the vested portion of your Options following the termination of your employment or service as follows:

(A) Termination for Cause. In the event that your employment or service with the Company is terminated for Cause
by the Company, you shall be permitted to exercise the vested portion of your Options for a period of 90 days after the date of termination.
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(B) Termination For Reasons Other Than For Cause, Death or Disability. In the event that your employment or
service with the Company is terminated by you in the absence of any grounds for Cause or is terminated by the Company for any reason other
than for Cause, you shall be permitted to exercise the vested portions of your Options for a period of 180 days after the termination of your
employment.

(C) Termination Due to Death or Disability. In the event that your employment or service with the Company is
terminated due to your death or �Disability� (as defined below), you or your estate (if applicable) shall be permitted to exercise the vested
portions of your Options for a period of 12 months after the termination of your employment.

(d) Section 401(k) Plan and Other Benefits. As an employee of the Company, you shall be eligible to participate in the Company�s
401(k) Plan, subject to the terms of that plan. Subject to the terms of such other plans, you shall be eligible to receive such other benefits or
rights as may be provided under any employee benefit plans provided by the Company to its executives that are now or hereafter will be in
effect, including participation in life, medical, disability and dental insurance plans.

(e) Vacation and Sick Leave. You shall be entitled to accrue up to three (3) weeks of paid vacation each year of employment under this
Agreement plus sick leave on the same basis as all other executives of the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
vacation and sick leave policies of the Company.

(f) Termination and Change of Control Payments and Benefits.

(1) Termination for Cause or Termination for Other than Good Reason. In the event that your employment with the Company
is terminated by the Company for �Cause� (as defined below) or is terminated by you for reasons other than �Good Reason� (as defined
below) then you shall be entitled to payment of your accrued but unpaid salary and vacation pay through the date of the termination of your
employment plus any accrued but unpaid incentive payments tied to your quarterly bonus targets achieved through the termination date.

(2) Termination Without Cause or for Good Reason or Termination Due to Death or Disability. In the event that your
employment as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is terminated by the Company without Cause, is terminated by you due to a Good
Reason or is terminated due to your death or Disability, then you or your estate (if applicable)
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shall be entitled to payment of your accrued but unpaid salary and vacation pay through the date of the termination of your employment plus
any accrued but unpaid incentive payments tied to your quarterly bonus targets achieved through the termination date plus the following
severance benefits in this Section 3(f)(2) provided that you (unless you are deceased) execute an effective release in a form to be provided by
the Company with terms substantially as set forth in the attached Exhibit B:

(i) Cash Severance Payment. The Company shall pay you or your estate (if applicable) an additional nine (9) months of
your then current base salary and shall continue your health insurance coverage for such nine month period.

(ii) Acceleration of Vesting of Standard Option. The vesting of your Standard Option shall be accelerated in the amount
of (A) 200,000 shares of the common stock of the Company if the termination of your employment occurs within the first 12 months of your
employment with the Company, or (B) 400,000 shares of the common stock of the Company (or, if less, the number of remaining unvested
shares of the common stock of the Company subject to the Standard Option) if termination of your employment occurs after 12 months of the
commencement of your employment with the Company.

(3) Change of Control.

(i) Change of Control Benefits. In the event of a �Change of Control� (as defined below) of the Company, then you shall
receive immediate vesting of fifty percent (50%) of the unvested portion of the Milestone Option. In the event of a Change of Control and the
simultaneous or subsequent termination of your employment by the Company for any reason or termination of your employment by you for
�Good Reason� within six (6) months of the closing of the Change of Control, then you shall receive immediate vesting of the unvested shares
subject to the Options (the Standard Option and the Milestone Option).

(ii) Parachute Excise Tax. If any cash payments, benefits or acceleration of the vesting of the Options under this
Agreement that are deemed contingent upon a Change of Control (collectively �COC Benefits�) would (i) constitute a �parachute payment�
within the meaning of section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), and (ii) but for this sentence, be subject
to the excise tax imposed by section 4999 of the Code (the �Excise Tax�), then such COC Benefits shall be reduced to the Reduced Amount.
The �Reduced Amount� shall be whichever of the following which would provide the largest after-tax benefit to Executive: (i) the largest
portion of the COC Benefits that would result in no portion of the COC Benefits being subject to the Excise Tax or (ii) the largest portion, up
to and including the total, of the COC Benefits, whichever amount, after taking into account all applicable federal, state and local employment
taxes, income taxes, and the Excise Tax (all computed at the highest applicable marginal rate), results in your receipt, on an after-tax basis, of
the greater amount of the COC Benefits notwithstanding that all or some portion of the COC Benefits may be subject to the Excise Tax. In the
event that the COC Benefits are to be reduced, such COC Benefits shall be cancelled in the order of benefits, cash compensation and the
acceleration of the Options unless the you elect in writing a different order for cancellation.
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The accounting firm engaged by the Company for general audit purposes as of the day prior to the effective date of
the Change of Control shall perform the foregoing calculations. If the accounting firm so engaged by the Company is serving as accountant or
auditor for the individual, entity or group effecting the Change of Control, the Company shall appoint a nationally recognized accounting firm
to make the determinations required hereunder. The Company shall bear all expenses with respect to the determinations by such accounting
firm required to be made hereunder.

The accounting firm engaged to make the determinations hereunder shall provide its calculations, together with
detailed supporting documentation, to the Company and you within fifteen (15) calendar days after the date on which your right to the COC
Benefits arises (if requested at that time by the Company or you) or at such other time as requested by the Company or you. If the accounting
firm determines that no Excise Tax is payable with respect to a COC Benefit, either before or after the application of the Reduced Amount, it
shall furnish the Company and you with an opinion reasonably acceptable to you that no Excise Tax shall be imposed with respect to such
COC Benefits. Any good faith determination of the accounting firm made hereunder shall be final, binding and conclusive upon the Company
and you.

(g) Definitions.

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(1) ��Cause�� shall mean:

(i) your failure (other than due to Disability) to materially comply with written Company policies generally applicable to
Company officers or employees or any directive of the Board that is reasonably achievable, that is not inconsistent with your position as Chief
Executive Officer or the fulfillment of your fiduciary duties and that is not otherwise prohibited by law or established public policy, subject to
notice and 30 day cure period to the extent curable;

(ii) your engagement in willful misconduct against the Company that is materially injurious to the Company;

(iii) your engagement in any activity that is a conflict of interest or competitive with the Company (other than (1) any action
not taken in bad faith and which is promptly remedied by you upon notice by the Board, (2) your management of current personal investments
which do not require your active participation in the management or the operation of the investments and (3) your continuing to serve on the
board of directors of Dolphinsearch and Superdudes and as Managing Member of Prime Ventures and Highview Ventures to the extent
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such service does not constitute a breach of your fiduciary duties to the Company or prevents you from discharging all of your duties under
this Agreement (the activities described in clauses (2) and (3) are hereafter referred to as �Permitted Activities�);

(iv) your engaging in any act of fraud or dishonesty against the Company or any of its Affiliates or any material breach of
federal or state securities or commodities laws or regulations;

(v) your engaging in an act of assault or other acts of violence in the workplace;

(vi) your harassment of any individual in the workplace based on age, gender or other protected status or class or violation
of any policy of the Company regarding harassment (subject to investigation by an independent third party of such harassment claim); or

(vii) your conviction, guilty plea or plea of nolo contendre for any felony charge.

(2) ��Change of Control�� shall mean:

(i) a sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company (which shall mean the business
assets responsible for 85% or more of the revenue of the Company); or

(ii) any consolidation or merger of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company with or into any other corporation or other
entity or person, or any other corporate reorganization, in which, and as a result of which, stockholders of the Company immediately prior to
such consolidation, merger or reorganization, owns less than fifty percent (50%) of the Company�s voting power immediately after such
consolidation, merger or reorganization, or any transaction or series of related transactions in which in excess of fifty percent (50%) of the
Company�s voting power is transferred.

(3) ��Disability�� shall mean a disability as determined under the Company�s long-term disability plan that prevents you from
performing your duties under this Agreement (even with a reasonable accommodation by the Company) for a period of six months or more.

(4) ��EBITDA�� shall mean the Company�s reported earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization expenses .

(5) ��Good Reason�� shall mean any one of the following without your consent:

(i) a demotion or any action by the Company which results in diminution of your position, authority, duties or
responsibilities (other than any insubstantial action not taken in bad faith and which is promptly remedied by the Company upon notice by
you);
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(ii) requirement that you report to work more than 60 miles from the Company�s existing headquarters (not including
normal business travel required of your position);

(iii) a reduction in your base salary or benefits (unless, in the case of a reduction in benefits only, such reduction in benefits
applies to all officers of the Company);

(iv) a material breach by the Company of its obligations hereunder which is not cured within thirty (30) days following
written notice to the Board by you; or

(v) any failure by a successor to the Company to assume and agree to perform the Company�s obligations hereunder.

4. Employment and Post Termination Covenants. By accepting the terms of this Agreement and as a condition for the termination
payments and benefits contemplated by Section 3(f)(2)(i), you hereby agree to the following covenants in addition to any obligations you may
have by law and make the following representations.

(a) Confidentiality. You acknowledge that, in connection with your employment by the Company, you will have access to trade secrets
of the Company and other information and materials which the Company desires to keep confidential, including customer lists, supplier lists,
financial statements, business records and data, marketing and business plans, and information and materials relating to the Company�s
services, products, methods of operation, key personnel, proprietary software and other proprietary intellectual property and information
disclosed to the Company of third parties to which the Company owes a duty of nondisclosure (collectively, the �Confidential Information�);
provided, however, that Confidential Information does not include information which (i) is or becomes publicly known other than as a result
of your actions in violation of this Agreement; (ii) is or becomes available to you from a source (other than the Company) that you reasonably
believe is not prohibited from disclosing such information to you by a contractual or fiduciary obligation to the Company, (iii) has been made
available by the Company, directly or indirectly, to a non-affiliated third party without obligation of confidentiality; or (iv) you are obligated
to produce as a result of a court order or pursuant to governmental action or proceeding, provided that you give the Company prompt written
notice of such requirement prior to such disclosure and assistance in obtaining an order protecting such Confidential Information from public
disclosure. You covenant and agree that, both during and after the term of your employment with the Company, you will keep secret all
Confidential Information and will not disclose, reveal, divulge or otherwise make known any Confidential Information to any person (other
than the Company or its employees or agents in the course of performing you duties hereunder) or use any Confidential Information for your
own account or for the benefit of any other individual or entity, except with the prior written consent of the Company.
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(b) Ownership of Intellectual Property. You agree that all inventions, copyrightable material, software, formulas, trademarks, trade
secrets and the like which are developed or conceived by you in the course of your employment by the Company or on the Company�s time or
property (collectively, the �Intellectual Property�) shall be disclosed promptly to the Company and the Company shall own all right, title and
interest in and to the Intellectual Property. The parties expressly agree that any and all of the Intellectual Property developed by the Employee
shall be considered works made-for-hire for the Company pursuant to the United States Copyright Act of 1976, as amended from time to time.
In order to ensure that the Company shall own all right, title and interest in and to the Intellectual Property in the event that any of the
Intellectual Property is not deemed a work made-for-hire (as defined in the Copyright Act of 1976) and in any other event, you hereby sell and
assign all right, title and interest in and to all such Intellectual Property to the Company, and you covenant and agree to affix to the Intellectual
Property appropriate legends and copyright notices indicating the Company�s ownership of all Intellectual Property and all underlying
documentation to the extent reasonably appropriate, and shall execute such instruments of transfer, assignment, conveyance or confirmation as
the Company reasonably considers necessary to transfer, confirm, vest, perfect, maintain or defend the Company�s right, title and interest in
and to the Intellectual Property throughout the world. Your obligation under this Section 4(b) to assign to the Company inventions created or
conceived by you shall not apply to an invention that you developed entirely on your own time without using the Company�s equipment,
supplies, facilities, or trade secret information, provided that those inventions (1) do not or did not relate directly, at the time of conception or
reduction to practice of the invention, to the Company�s business as conducted at such time or actual or demonstrably anticipated research or
development of the Company; and (2) do not or did not result from any work performed by you for the Company.

(c) Non-Solicitation. You agree for a period of not less than one year following the last receipt of any payments under this Agreement
that you shall not solicit the services or employment of the employees of the Company and you shall not divert clients or customers of the
Company to the disadvantage of the Company; provided that (i) general advertisements not specifically directed at employees of the Company
shall not constitute solicitation for purposes of this clause (c) and (ii) this clause (c) shall not prohibit you from hiring employees of the
Company who first approach you seeking employment.

(d) Non-Competition. You agree not to compete directly or indirectly as a principal, partner, shareholder, limited liability company
member, agent, officer, directors, employee, consultant or in any other capacity, with any current or future business of the Company during
the period of your employment with the Company and during the post-employment period during which you are being paid compensation by
the Company; provided that (i) this clause (d) shall not prohibit you from acquiring securities representing less than 5% of the voting interests
of any entity (so long as you are not involved in the management of such entity) and (ii) this clause (d) will not prohibit you from engaging in
Permitted Activities (during or after a termination of employment) to the extent you are (or would be) permitted to engage in such Permitted
Activity under Section 2 of this Agreement.
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(e) Authorization To Work for the Company. You represent that you are legally authorized to work in the United States and that your
employment with the Company shall not constitute a violation of any contractual or other legal obligation you may have to another entity or
employer.

5. Business Expenses. You shall be entitled to reimbursement by the Company for such customary, ordinary and necessary business expenses
as are incurred by you in the performance of your duties and activities associated with promoting or maintaining the business of the Company.
All expenses as described in this paragraph shall be reimbursed only upon presentation by you of such documentation as may be reasonably
necessary to substantiate that all such expenses were incurred in the performance of his duties in accordance with the Company�s policies

6. Return Of Company Property. On the Separation Date or as earlier requested by the Company, you agree to return to the Company all
Company documents (and all copies thereof) and other Company property in your possession or control, including, but not limited to,
Company files, correspondence, memos, notebooks, notes, drawings, records, business plans and forecasts, financial information,
specifications, computer-recorded information, tangible property and equipment, credit cards, entry cards, identification badges and keys; and
any materials of any kind that contain or embody any proprietary or confidential information of the Company (and all reproductions thereof in
whole or in part) (collectively, the �Company Property�). You agree to conduct a good faith and diligent search of your belongings in advance
of the aforementioned deadline to ensure your compliance with the provisions of this Section 6.

7. Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Company and any entity which is a successor by merger, acquisition,
consolidation or otherwise to the business formerly carried on by the Company, or an affiliate of any such entity, and becomes your employer
by reason of (or as the direct result of) any direct or indirect sale or other disposition of the Company or substantially all of the assets of the
business currently carried on by the Company, without regard to whether or not such person actively adopts this letter agreement.

8. Arbitration. You agree that any future disputes between you and the Company (the �parties�) including but not limited to disputes arising
out of or related to this Agreement and Release of Claims, shall be resolved by binding arbitration except where the law specifically forbids
the use of arbitration as a final and binding remedy, or where section 8(g) below specifically allows a different remedy.

(a) The complainant shall provide the other party a written statement of the claim identifying any supporting witnesses or documents and
the relief requested.
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(b) The respondent shall furnish a statement of the relief, if any, that it is willing to provide, and identifying supporting witnesses or
documents. If the matter is not resolved, the parties agree to submit their dispute to a non-binding mediation paid for by the Company,
provided, however, that if the amount in dispute is $50,000 or less, this step may be waived at the election of either party.

(c) If the matter is not resolved, the parties agree that the dispute shall be resolved by binding arbitration according to the California
Code of Civil Procedure, including the provisions of Section 1283.05, pertaining to discovery.

(d) The arbitrator shall have the authority to determine whether the conduct complained of in section 8(a) violates the complainant�s
rights and, if so, to grant any relief authorized by law; subject to the exclusions of section (g) below. The arbitrator shall not have the authority
to modify, change or refuse to enforce any lawful term of this Agreement and Release of Claims.

(e) The Company shall bear the costs of the arbitration. If the Company prevails, you shall pay any litigation costs of the Company to the
same extent as if the matter had been heard in a court of general jurisdiction. Each party shall pay its own attorneys� fees, unless the arbitrator
orders otherwise, pursuant to applicable law.

(f) Arbitration shall be the exclusive final remedy for any dispute between the parties, such as disputes involving claims for
discrimination or harassment (such as claims under the Fair Employment and Housing Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the
Americans with Disabilities Act, or the Age Discrimination in Employment Act), wrongful termination, breach of contract, breach of public
policy, physical or mental harm or distress or any other disputes, and the parties agree that no dispute shall be submitted to arbitration where
the complainant has not complied with the preliminary steps provided for in sections (a) and (b) above.

(g) The parties agree that the arbitration award shall be enforceable in any court having jurisdiction to enforce this Agreement and
Release of Claims, so long as the arbitrator�s findings of fact are supported by substantial evidence on the whole and the arbitrator has not
made errors of law; however, either party may bring an action in a court of competent jurisdiction, regarding or related to matters involving
the Company�s confidential, proprietary or trade secret information, or regarding or related to inventions that you may claim to have
developed prior to or after joining the Company, seeking preliminary injunctive relief in court to preserve the status quo or prevent irreparable
injury before the matter can be heard in arbitration.

(h) The arbitration shall be held in the city of Los Angeles, California, unless the parties mutually agree to a different location for the
arbitration.
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9. Indemnification. As soon as practicable following the commencement of your employment with the Company, the Company shall enter
into an indemnification agreement mutually acceptable to you and the Company which shall provide you with indemnification to the fullest
extent permissible under Delaware law. In addition, the Company shall maintain a Directors and Officers insurance policy covering its
directors and officers consistent with prevailing commercial practice, and you shall be entitled to indemnification as set forth in the
Company�s Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws.

10. Miscellaneous.

(a) This Agreement constitutes the complete, final and exclusive embodiment of the entire agreement between you and the Company
with regard to the terms and conditions of your employment with the Company and your anticipated termination of employment. It is entered
into without reliance on any promise or representation, written or oral, other than those expressly contained herein, and it supersedes any other
such promises, warranties or representations and any other written or oral statements concerning your rights to any compensation, equity or
benefits from the Company, its predecessors or successors in interest.

(b) Subject to the mandatory arbitration provided in Section 8 above, jurisdiction and venue in any action to enforce any arbitration
award or to enjoin any action that violates the terms of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the County of Los Angeles or the U.S.
District Court for the Central District of California.

(c) This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in a writing signed by both you and a duly authorized officer of the
Company. This Agreement shall bind the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of both you and the Company, and inure to
the benefit of both you and the Company, their heirs, successors and assigns. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or
unenforceable, in whole or in part, this determination shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement and the provision in question shall
be modified by the court so as to be rendered enforceable in a manner consistent with the intent of the parties insofar as possible. Headings
and subheadings in this Agreement are solely for convenience and do not constitute terms of this Agreement.

(d) This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and the counterparts taken together shall constitute one agreement. Facsimile
signatures shall be deemed as effective as original signatures.

(e) This Agreement shall be deemed to have been entered into and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of California as applied to contracts made and to be performed entirely within California.

If this Agreement is acceptable to you, please sign below and return the original, fully executed Agreement to Chris Lipp, General Counsel
and Corporate Secretary of the Company. A copy of the Agreement is also being provided to you for your records.
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I and the other members of the Board of Directors of the Company look forward to your future contributions to the Company.

Sincerely,

eUNIVERSE, INC.

By:
/s/ Brett C. Brewer

Brett C. Brewer

President

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

/s/ Richard Rosenblatt 2/23/04

Richard Rosenblatt Date
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EXHIBIT 10.33

April 6, 2004

Mr. Adam Goldenberg
456 33rd Street
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266

Re: Employment Agreement with eCommerce Transactions LLC

Dear Adam:

On behalf of eCommerce Transactions LLC (the �Company�), I am pleased to offer you employment as the President of Performance
Marketing Group, a division of the Company, on the terms and conditions set forth in this letter agreement (this �Agreement�). You may
accept this Agreement by signing and returning a copy of this Agreement to the Company as provided below.

1. Term of Employment. Your employment under this Agreement shall commence as of February 1, 2004 (�Start Date�) and continue until
January 31, 2006, or until such other date on which it is terminated sooner by you or the Company or to which it may be extended by both you
and the Company in a signed writing (the �Separation Date�). Your employment under this Agreement is terminable at will by you or the
Company at any time (for any reason or for no reason) subject to the provisions of Section 3.

2. Position and Duties. During the term of this Agreement, the Company shall employ you as the President of the Performance Marketing
Group (�PMG�), a division of the Company, and you shall report to eUniverse, Inc., the Managing Member of the Company (�EUNI�). Your
duties shall include the duties EUNI may delegate to you from time to time consistent with duties assigned to a head of a division of a
company of comparable size and with a similar business as the Company. You agree, beginning February 1, 2004 and until the Separation
Date, to commit substantially all of your working time, attention and efforts to the position on a full-time basis. This Agreement is personal to
you and you may not assign or delegate any of your rights or obligations hereunder without first obtaining the written consent of the
Company.

3. Compensation and Benefits. In consideration for your services to the Company during the time period in which this Agreement is
effective, you shall receive the following compensation and benefits from the Company:

(a) Base Salary. The Company shall pay you an annual base salary at the rate of one hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($175,000)
per year to be paid in installments according to the Company�s regular payroll policy. The Company shall withhold and deduct all applicable
federal and state income and employment and disability taxes from your base salary as required by applicable laws.
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(b) Annual Incentive. The Company shall pay you a bonus equal to six percent (6%) of PMG Net Income (defined below) on an annual
basis (the �Annual Incentive�). The Annual Incentive shall be paid in quarterly installments, within forty-five days from the end of each fiscal
quarter based on PMG Net Income for such quarter, with the payment for the fourth quarter of the Company�s fiscal year (ending March 31)
to be made within ninety (90) days from the end of such fiscal year and to be calculated by subtracting (i) the amount of Annual Incentive
already paid for the fiscal year to date, from (ii) six percent (6%) of PMG Net Income for such fiscal year. Notwithstanding the above, your
Annual Incentive for fiscal year 2004 (ending March 31, 2004) shall be based on PMG Net Income for the quarter ended December 31, 2003
(�Q304�) and the quarter ending March 31, 2004 (�Q404�), with payment of the portion of the Annual Incentive related to Q304 to be made
upon execution of this Agreement, and payment of the portion of the Annual Incentive related to Q404 to be made within ninety (90) days
from the end of fiscal year 2004 and to be calculated by subtracting (i) the amount of Annual Incentive already paid for Q304, from (ii) six
percent (6%) of PMG Net Income for the six (6) months ending March 31, 2004. For purposes of this Section 3(b), PMG Net Income shall
mean the net income of the ePMG and Telemarketing (RMS) divisions of the Company determined by the Company in good faith consistent
with the Company�s then applicable practices for determining divisional net income, with adjustment for the following pro forma items: (i)
allocation of Company and EUNI corporate overhead in the amount of $187,500 per quarter, (ii) inter-company revenues and expenses
determined in consultation with Company and EUNI business unit, division and subsidiary heads, and (iii) the Annual Incentive to the extent
not already reflected in divisional net income.

(c) Stock Option. On January 29, 2004, the Board of Directors of EUNI authorized and approved the issuance to you of a nonqualified
option to purchase up to 200,000 shares of EUNI common stock under and pursuant to EUNI�s 1999 Stock Award Plan (the �Plan�) and as
more fully described in the Notice of Grant attached hereto as Exhibit A (the �Option�).

(d) Section 401(k) Plan and Other Benefits. As an employee of the Company, you shall be eligible to participate in EUNI�s 401(k)
Plan, subject to the terms of that plan. You shall also be eligible to receive such other benefits or rights as may be provided under any
employee benefit plans provided by the Company to its executives that are now or hereafter will be in effect, including participation in life,
medical, disability and dental insurance plans, and subject in each instance to the terms of such plans.

(e) Vacation and Sick Leave. You shall be entitled to accrue up to three (3) weeks of paid vacation each year of employment under this
Agreement plus sick leave on the same basis as all other executives of the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
vacation and sick leave policies of the Company.
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(f) Termination Payments and Benefits.

(1) Termination for Cause or Termination for Other than Good Reason. In the event that your employment with the Company
is terminated by the Company for �Cause� (as defined below) or is terminated by you for reasons other than �Good Reason� (as defined
below) then you shall be entitled to payment of your accrued but unpaid salary and vacation pay through the date of the termination of your
employment plus any accrued but unpaid Annual Incentive payments.

(2) Termination Without Cause or for Good Reason or Termination Due to Death or Disability. In the event that your
employment as the President of PMG is terminated by the Company without Cause, is terminated by you due to a Good Reason or is
terminated due to your death or Disability, then you or your estate (if applicable), in addition to the payments described in Section 3(f)(1)
above and provided that you (unless you are deceased) execute an effective release with terms substantially as set forth in the attached Exhibit
B, shall be entitled to payment of (i) twelve (12) months of Base Salary, or (ii) your Base Salary though January 31, 2006, whichever is
greater.

(f) Definitions.

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

(1) ��Cause�� shall mean:

(i) your failure (other than due to Disability) to materially comply with written Company policies generally applicable to
Company executives or employees or any directive of EUNI that is reasonably achievable, that is not inconsistent with your position or the
fulfillment of your fiduciary duties and that is not otherwise prohibited by law or established public policy, subject to notice and 30 day cure
period to the extent curable;

(ii) your engagement in willful misconduct against the Company that is materially injurious to the Company;

(iii) your engagement in any activity that is a conflict of interest or competitive with the Company, other than any action not
taken in bad faith and which is promptly remedied by you upon notice by the Company;

(iv) your engaging in any act of fraud or dishonesty against the Company or any of its Affiliates or any material breach of
federal or state securities or commodities laws or regulations;

(v) your engaging in an act of assault or other acts of violence in the workplace;
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(vi) your harassment of any individual in the workplace based on age, gender or other protected status or class or violation
of any policy of the Company regarding harassment (subject to investigation by an independent third party of such harassment claim); or

(vii) your conviction, guilty plea or plea of nolo contendre for any felony charge.

(2) ��Disability�� shall mean a disability as determined under the Company�s long-term disability plan that prevents you from
performing your duties under this Agreement (even with a reasonable accommodation by the Company) for a period of six months or more.

(3) ��Good Reason�� shall mean any one of the following without your consent:

(i) a demotion or any action by the Company which results in diminution of your position, authority, duties or
responsibilities (other than any insubstantial action not taken in bad faith and which is promptly remedied by the Company upon notice by
you);

(ii) requirement that you report to work more than 60 miles from the Company�s existing headquarters (not including
normal business travel required of your position);

(iii) a reduction in your base salary or benefits (unless, in the case of a reduction in benefits only, such reduction in benefits
applies to all officers of the Company);

(iv) a material breach by the Company of its obligations hereunder which is not cured within thirty (30) days following
written notice to the Company by you; or

(v) any failure by a successor to the Company to assume and agree to perform the Company�s obligations hereunder.

4. Employment and Post Termination Covenants. By accepting the terms of this Agreement and as a condition for the termination
payments and benefits contemplated by Section 3(f)(2), you hereby agree to the following covenants in addition to any obligations you may
have by law and make the following representations:

(a) Confidentiality. You acknowledge that, in connection with your employment by the Company, you will have access to trade secrets
of the Company and other information and materials which the Company desires to keep confidential, including customer lists, supplier lists,
financial statements, business records and data, marketing and business plans, and information and materials relating to the Company�s
services, products, methods of operation, key personnel, proprietary software and other proprietary intellectual property and information
disclosed to the Company of third parties to which the Company owes a duty of nondisclosure
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(collectively, the �Confidential Information�); provided, however, that Confidential Information does not include information which (i) is or
becomes publicly known other than as a result of your actions in violation of this Agreement; (ii) is or becomes available to you from a source
(other than the Company) that you reasonably believe is not prohibited from disclosing such information to you by a contractual or fiduciary
obligation to the Company, (iii) has been made available by the Company, directly or indirectly, to a non-affiliated third party without
obligation of confidentiality; or (iv) you are obligated to produce as a result of a court order or pursuant to governmental action or proceeding,
provided that you give the Company prompt written notice of such requirement prior to such disclosure and assistance in obtaining an order
protecting such Confidential Information from public disclosure. You covenant and agree that, both during and after the term of your
employment with the Company, you will keep secret all Confidential Information and will not disclose, reveal, divulge or otherwise make
known any Confidential Information to any person (other than the Company or its employees or agents in the course of performing you duties
hereunder) or use any Confidential Information for your own account or for the benefit of any other individual or entity, except with the prior
written consent of the Company.

(b) Ownership of Intellectual Property. You agree that all inventions, copyrightable material, software, formulas, trademarks, trade
secrets and the like which are developed or conceived by you in the course of your employment by the Company or on the Company�s time or
property (collectively, the �Intellectual Property�) shall be disclosed promptly to the Company and the Company shall own all right, title and
interest in and to the Intellectual Property. The parties expressly agree that any and all of the Intellectual Property developed by the Employee
shall be considered works made-for-hire for the Company pursuant to the United States Copyright Act of 1976, as amended from time to time.
In order to ensure that the Company shall own all right, title and interest in and to the Intellectual Property in the event that any of the
Intellectual Property is not deemed a work made-for-hire (as defined in the Copyright Act of 1976) and in any other event, you hereby sell and
assign all right, title and interest in and to all such Intellectual Property to the Company, and you covenant and agree to affix to the Intellectual
Property appropriate legends and copyright notices indicating the Company�s ownership of all Intellectual Property and all underlying
documentation to the extent reasonably appropriate, and shall execute such instruments of transfer, assignment, conveyance or confirmation as
the Company reasonably considers necessary to transfer, confirm, vest, perfect, maintain or defend the Company�s right, title and interest in
and to the Intellectual Property throughout the world. Your obligation under this Section 4(b) to assign to the Company inventions created or
conceived by you shall not apply to an invention that you developed entirely on your own time without using the Company�s equipment,
supplies, facilities, or trade secret information, provided that those inventions (1) do not or did not relate directly, at the time of conception or
reduction to practice of the invention, to the Company�s business as conducted at such time or actual or demonstrably anticipated research or
development of the Company; and (2) do not or did not result from any work performed by you for the Company.
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(c) Non-Solicitation. You agree for a period ending no sooner than (i) one year following the Separation Date or (ii) the date of the last
receipt of any payments by you under this Agreement, whichever is later, that you shall not solicit the services or employment of the
employees of the Company or any of its affiliates and you shall not divert clients or customers of the Company or its affiliates to their
disadvantage; provided that (i) general advertisements not specifically directed at employees of the Company or its affiliates shall not
constitute solicitation for purposes of this clause (c) and (ii) this clause (c) shall not prohibit you from hiring employees of the Company or its
affiliates who first approach you seeking employment.

(d) Non-Competition. You agree not to compete directly or indirectly as a principal, partner, shareholder, limited liability company
member, agent, officer, directors, employee, consultant or in any other capacity, with any current or future business of the Company during
the period of your employment with the Company and during the post-employment period during which you are being paid compensation by
the Company; provided that this clause (d) shall not prohibit you from acquiring securities representing less than 5% of the voting interests of
any entity (so long as you are not involved in the management of such entity).

(e) Authorization To Work for the Company. You represent that you are legally authorized to work in the United States and that your
employment with the Company shall not constitute a violation of any contractual or other legal obligation you may have to another entity or
employer.

5. Business Expenses. You shall be entitled to reimbursement by the Company for such customary, ordinary and necessary business expenses
as are incurred by you in the performance of your duties and activities associated with promoting or maintaining the business of the Company.
All expenses as described in this paragraph shall be reimbursed only upon presentation by you of such documentation as may be reasonably
necessary to substantiate that all such expenses were incurred in the performance of his duties in accordance with the Company�s policies

6. Return Of Company Property. On the Separation Date or as earlier requested by the Company, you agree to return to the Company all
Company documents (and all copies thereof) and other Company property in your possession or control, including, but not limited to,
Company files, correspondence, memos, notebooks, notes, drawings, records, business plans and forecasts, financial information,
specifications, computer-recorded information, tangible property and equipment, credit cards, entry cards, identification badges and keys; and
any materials of any kind that contain or embody any proprietary or confidential information of the Company (and all reproductions thereof in
whole or in part) (collectively, the �Company Property�). You agree to conduct a good faith and diligent search of your belongings in advance
of the aforementioned deadline to ensure your compliance with the provisions of this Section 6.

7. Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Company and any entity which is a successor by merger, acquisition,
consolidation or otherwise to the business
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formerly carried on by the Company, or an affiliate of any such entity, and becomes your employer by reason of (or as the direct result of) any
direct or indirect sale or other disposition of the Company or substantially all of the assets of the business currently carried on by the
Company, without regard to whether or not such person actively adopts this letter agreement.

8. Arbitration. You agree that any future disputes between you and the Company (the �parties�) including but not limited to disputes arising
out of or related to this Agreement and Release of Claims, shall be resolved by binding arbitration except where the law specifically forbids
the use of arbitration as a final and binding remedy, or where section 8(g) below specifically allows a different remedy.

(a) The complainant shall provide the other party a written statement of the claim identifying any supporting witnesses or documents and
the relief requested.

(b) The respondent shall furnish a statement of the relief, if any, that it is willing to provide, and identifying supporting witnesses or
documents. If the matter is not resolved, the parties agree to submit their dispute to a non-binding mediation paid for by the Company,
provided, however, that if the amount in dispute is $50,000 or less, this step may be waived at the election of either party.

(c) If the matter is not resolved, the parties agree that the dispute shall be resolved by binding arbitration according to the California
Code of Civil Procedure, including the provisions of Section 1283.05, pertaining to discovery.

(d) The arbitrator shall have the authority to determine whether the conduct complained of in section 8(a) violates the complainant�s
rights and, if so, to grant any relief authorized by law; subject to the exclusions of section (g) below. The arbitrator shall not have the authority
to modify, change or refuse to enforce any lawful term of this Agreement and Release of Claims.

(e) The Company shall bear the costs of the arbitration. If the Company prevails, you shall pay any litigation costs of the Company to the
same extent as if the matter had been heard in a court of general jurisdiction. Each party shall pay its own attorneys� fees, unless the arbitrator
orders otherwise, pursuant to applicable law.
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(f) Arbitration shall be the exclusive final remedy for any dispute between the parties, such as disputes involving claims for
discrimination or harassment (such as claims under the Fair Employment and Housing Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the
Americans with Disabilities Act, or the Age Discrimination in Employment Act), wrongful termination, breach of contract, breach of public
policy, physical or mental harm or distress or any other disputes, and the parties agree that no dispute shall be submitted to arbitration where
the complainant has not complied with the preliminary steps provided for in sections (a) and (b) above.

(g) The parties agree that the arbitration award shall be enforceable in any court having jurisdiction to enforce this Agreement and
Release of Claims, so long as the arbitrator�s findings of fact are supported by substantial evidence on the whole and the arbitrator has not
made errors of law; however, either party may bring an action in a court of competent jurisdiction, regarding or related to matters involving
the Company�s confidential, proprietary or trade secret information, or regarding or related to inventions that you may claim to have
developed prior to or after joining the Company, seeking preliminary injunctive relief in court to preserve the status quo or prevent irreparable
injury before the matter can be heard in arbitration.

(h) The arbitration shall be held in the city of Los Angeles, California, unless the parties mutually agree to a different location for the
arbitration.

9. Miscellaneous.

(a) This Agreement constitutes the complete, final and exclusive embodiment of the entire agreement between you and the Company
with regard to the terms and conditions of your employment with the Company and your anticipated termination of employment. It is entered
into without reliance on any promise or representation, written or oral, other than those expressly contained herein, and it supersedes any other
such promises, warranties or representations and any other written or oral statements concerning your rights to any compensation, equity or
benefits from the Company, its predecessors or successors in interest. Notwithstanding the foregoing, that certain Stock Option Agreement by
and between you and EUNI dated as of October 6, 2000, shall remain in full force and effect.

(b) Subject to the mandatory arbitration provided in Section 8 above, jurisdiction and venue in any action to enforce any arbitration
award or to enjoin any action that violates the terms of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the County of Los Angeles or the U.S.
District Court for the Central District of California.

(c) This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in a writing signed by both you and a duly authorized officer of the
Company. This Agreement shall bind the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of both you and the Company, and inure to
the benefit of both you and the Company, their heirs, successors and assigns. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or
unenforceable, in whole or in part, this determination
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shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement and the provision in question shall be modified by the court so as to be rendered
enforceable in a manner consistent with the intent of the parties insofar as possible. Headings and subheadings in this Agreement are solely for
convenience and do not constitute terms of this Agreement.

(d) This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and the counterparts taken together shall constitute one agreement. Facsimile
signatures shall be deemed as effective as original signatures.

(e) This Agreement shall be deemed to have been entered into and shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of California as applied to contracts made and to be performed entirely within California.

If this Agreement is acceptable to you, please sign below and return the original, fully executed Agreement to Chris Lipp, General Counsel
and Corporate Secretary of EUNI. A copy of the Agreement is also being provided to you for your records.

On behalf of EUNI and the Company, we look forward to your future contributions to the Company.

Sincerely,

ECOMMERCE TRANSACTIONS LLC

By:
/s/ Richard Rosenblatt

Richard Rosenblatt, Chief Executive Officer
eUniverse, Inc., Managing Member

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

/s/ Adam Goldenberg 4-7-04

Adam Goldenberg Date
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EXHIBIT 14

eUniverse Finance Code of Professional Conduct

Among eUniverse�s Finance Department missions is the promotion of professional conduct in the practice of financial management.
eUniverse�s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Corporate Controller and other management employees of the
finance organization hold an important and elevated role in corporate governance, in that they are responsible for demonstrating ethical
conduct that is guided by the need to preserve and protect the interests of our stockholders. Furthermore, eUniverse demands the highest
ethical conduct from its principal executive officer and its senior financial managers.

The Finance Code of Professional Conduct defines the framework by which we are expected to function in our role within the organization.
Consequently, this framework contains rules that define individual duties and responsibilities as they relate to the organization, its employees,
and stockholders; and how you conduct matters in your personal life, which may affect the integrity and honesty with which you carry on your
responsibilities here at eUniverse.

The CEO, CFO and Finance Department management personnel are expected to adhere to this Code as well as the standards defined in the
Associate Handbook. Any violation(s) of the eUniverse Finance Code of Professional Conduct may result in disciplinary action, up to and
including termination of employment. Changes to this Code must be disclosed publicly as defined and required by the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Honest and Ethical Conduct

A senior financial manager is required to act and perform his or her duties ethically, honestly and with the greatest sense of integrity. Any
apparent or actual conflicts of interest should be avoided in both professional and personal relationships.

A �conflict of interest� occurs when an individual�s private interest interferes with the best interests of the Company. Conflicts of interest are
prohibited, and must be fully disclosed to the Company prior to, or at the first discovery of, the occurrence. Most important, a senior financial
manager must never use or attempt to use his or her position at the Company to obtain any improper personal benefit for himself or herself, for
his or her family, or for any other person.

Furthermore, any senior financial manager who is aware of a conflict of interest, or is concerned that a conflict might develop, is required to
discuss the matter with the Audit Committee Chairman, the CEO or the General Counsel promptly.

1
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Disclosure

Senior financial managers must also exercise diligence and good faith in the preparation of financial statements, which includes the following:

� Provide stockholders with information that is accurate, complete, objective, fair, relevant, and timely.

� In the performance of their duties, senior financial managers are prohibited from knowingly misrepresenting facts. A senior financial
manager will be considered to have knowingly misrepresented facts if he or she knowingly: makes, or permits or directs another to
make, materially false or misleading entries in an entity�s financial statements or records; fails to correct materially false or
misleading entries in an entity�s financial statements or records; signs or permits another to sign, a document containing materially
false or misleading information; or falsely responds, or fails to respond, to specific inquiries of the Company�s external accountant.

� Maintain the principle of transparency in the preparation and delivery of financial information to both internal and external users.

� Comply with the rules and regulations of federal, state, provincial and local governments, and other appropriate private and public
regulatory agencies.

� Act in good faith, responsibly, with due care, competence and diligence, without misrepresenting material facts or allowing one�s
independent judgment to be subordinated.

� Adequately supervise staff by closely reviewing and critically analyzing the financial information to be disclosed.

� Respect the confidentiality of information acquired in the course of one�s work except when authorized or otherwise legally
obligated to disclose.

� Confidential information acquired in the course of one�s work will not be used for personal advantage.

Any senior financial manager who is aware of a material misrepresentation or omission in the Company�s periodic reports is required to
report the matter to the Audit Committee Chairman, the CEO or the General Counsel immediately.

Compliance

It is the Company�s policy to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations. It is the personal responsibility of each senior financial
manager to adhere to the standards and restrictions imposed by those laws, rules and regulations, and in particular, those relating to accounting
and auditing matters.

2
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Any Finance Department manager who is unsure whether a situation violates any applicable law, rule, regulation or Company policy should
discuss the situation with the General Counsel or the CFO to prevent possible problems at a later date. Failure to do so is in itself a violation of
this Code.

To encourage Finance Department managers to report any violations, the Company will not allow retaliation for reports made in good faith.
eUniverse will handle all inquiries discretely and make every effort to maintain, within the limits allowed by law, the confidentiality of anyone
requesting guidance or reporting questionable behavior and/or a compliance concern.

If you are still concerned after speaking with your supervisor, or the CEO, CFO or General Counsel, or feel uncomfortable speaking with
them, you must send a detailed letter with relevant documents to eUniverse, Inc., Attn.: Audit Committee Chairman, 6060 Center Drive �
Suite 300, Los Angeles, CA 90045.

If you fail to comply with this Code, with any applicable laws and regulations, you will be subject to disciplinary measures, up to and
including termination of employment.

It is eUniverse�s intention that this eUniverse Finance Code of Professional Conduct be its written code of ethics under Section 406 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 complying with the standards set forth in Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-K, Item 406.

3
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EXHIBIT 21

Registrant:

eUniverse, Inc.
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

100% owned subsidiaries of eUniverse, Inc.:

Cases Ladder, Inc.
Jurisdiction of formation: California

Download Solutions, Limited
Jurisdiction of formation: Bermuda

eCommerce Transactions, LLC
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

Entertainment Universe, Inc.
Jurisdiction of formation: California

Falcon Ventures Corporation
Jurisdiction of formation: California

Gamer�s Alliance, Inc.
Jurisdiction of formation: Missouri

GameUniverse, Inc.
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

Infobeat, LLC
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

Next Speed Hosting, LLC
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

North Plains, LLC
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

Opt-In Group, LLC
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

Social Labs, LLC
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

Sunningdale Holdings, LLC
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

50.1% owned subsidiary of eCommerce Transactions, LLC

Hydroderm, LLC
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Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware

50% owned subsidiary of eUniverse, Inc.:

Yogabol, LLC
Jurisdiction of formation: Delaware
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EXHIBIT 23.01

Consent of Moss Adams LLP

We consent to the inclusion in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of eUniverse, Inc. for the years ended March 31, 2004 and 2003 and to the
incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Numbers 333-102313 and 333-76898 of eUniverse, Inc. on Form S-8, of our report dated
June 3, 2004.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP

Los Angeles, California
June 14, 2004
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EXHIBIT 23.02

Consent of Merdinger, Fruchter, Rosen & Corso, P.C.

We consent to the inclusion in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of eUniverse, Inc. for the year ended March 31, 2002, and to the
incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Numbers 333-102313 and 333-76898 of eUniverse, Inc. on Forms S-8, of our report
dated June 14, 2002.

/s/ Merdinger, Fruchter, Rosen & Corso, P.C.

New York, New York
June 14, 2004

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

http://www.secdatabase.com


EXHIBIT 31

Section 302 Certification

I, Richard Rosenblatt, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of eUniverse, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant�s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) (omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238; 34-47986)

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant�s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant�s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant�s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant�s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect, the registrant�s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant�s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant�s auditors and the audit committee of registrant�s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant�s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant�s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 14, 2004

/s/ RICHARD M. ROSENBLATT

Richard M. Rosenblatt

Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
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Section 302 Certification

I, Thomas Flahie, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of eUniverse, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant�s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) (omitted pursuant to SEC Release Nos. 33-8238; 34-47986)

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant�s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant�s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant�s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant�s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect, the registrant�s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant�s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant�s auditors and the audit committee of registrant�s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant�s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant�s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 14, 2004

/s/ THOMAS J. FLAHIE

Thomas J. Flahie

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

I, Richard Rosenblatt, Chief Executive Officer, and Thomas Flahie, Chief Financial Officer, of eUniverse, Inc. (the �Company�), certify
pursuant to section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for the period ending March 31, 2004, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 14, 2004, (the �Report�), fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Date: June 14, 2004

/s/ RICHARD M. ROSENBLATT

Richard M. Rosenblatt

Chief Executive Officer

(Principle Executive Officer)

/s/ THOMAS J. FLAHIE

Thomas J. Flahie

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
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